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To the Shareholders of Acciona, S.A.

REPORT ON THE ANNUAL FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Opinion

We have audited the annual financial statements of Acciona, S.A. (the “Company”), which comprise
the balance sheet at 31 December 2017, the income statement, the statement of changes in equity,
the statement of cash flows, and the notes, for the year then ended.

In our opinion, the accompanying annual financial statements give a true and fair view, in all material
respects, of the equity and financial position of the Company at 31 December 2017, and of its
financial performance and cash flows for the year then ended in accordance with the applicable
financial reporting framework (specified in note 2 to the accompanying annual financial statements)
and, in particular, with the accounting principles and criteria set forth therein.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with prevailing legislation regulating the audit of accounts in
Spain. Our responsibilities under those standards are further described in the Auditor's
Responsibilities for the Audit of the Annual Financial Statements section of our report.

We are independent of the Company in accordance with the ethical requirements, including those
regarding independence, that are relevant to our audit of the financial statements in Spain pursuant
to the legislation regulating the audit of accounts. We have not provided any non-audit services, nor
have any situations or circumstances arisen which, under the aforementioned regulations, have
affected the required independence such that this has been compromised.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis
for our opinion.
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Key Audit Matters

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgement, were of most significance
in the audit of the financial statements of the current period. These matters were addressed in the
context of our audit of the annual financial statements as a whole, and in forming our opinion
thereon, and we do not provide a separate opinion on these matters.

Valuation of investments in group companies and associates

See notes 4.5.1 and 8 to the annual financial statements

Key Audit Matter

How the Matter was Addressed in Our Audit

The Company, which is the parent of the Acciona
Group, has several investments in Group
companies and associates. At 31 December 2017,
total provisions for impairment of these
investments amount to Euros 1,333 million.

Management and the Directors assess whether
there are indications of impairment of the
aforementioned investments at each reporting date
and, if this is the case, test the investments for
impairment to determine the need to increase or
decrease the impairment provisions recognised for
these items.

To this end, the recoverable amount of investments
in group companies and associates is determined
by applying valuation techniques that require
management and the Directors to exercise
judgement and make assumptions and estimates
based on, among other aspects, macroeconomic
trends, the internal circumstances of the investees
and their competitors, discount and growth rates
and business forecasts.

Due to the uncertainty and judgement associated
with the aforementioned estimates and the
significance of the carrying amount of the
investments, we have considered the
measurement thereof to be a key audit matter.

Our audit procedures included, among others, the

following:

We obtained an understanding of the process for
estimating the recoverable amount of
investments in group companies and associates,
and evaluated the design and implementation of
the relevant controls established by management
in relation to this process.

We assessed the criteria used by the Company in
determining whether there are indications that
the investments in group companies and
associates may be impaired.

We assessed the reasonableness of the
methodology and assumptions used by the
Company in estimating the recoverable amount of
investments in group companies and associates,
with the collaboration of our specialists in
business valuations. We reviewed the extent of
achievement of the estimates in past business
plans and contrasted the information contained in
the valuation model with the investees' business
plans used by the Company, and with estimates
and forecasts for the industry of which the
investees form part, calculated by external
sources. In addition, we evaluated the growth
rates and discount rates used in the calculation of
recoverable amounts, and their sensitivity to
changes in key assumptions to determine their
impact on the valuation.

We also assessed whether the information
disclosed in the annual financial statements
meets the requirements of the financial reporting
framework applicable to the Company.




Litigation and contingencies
See notes 4.9 and 12 to the financial statements

Key Audit Matter How the Matter was Addressed in Our Audit

In the course of its activity, the Company is exposed | Our audit procedures included, among others, the
to claims and disputes and may find itself becoming | following:
a party to administrative or judicial proceedings and

arbitration e \We obtained details of claims and litigation

involving the Company from the information
The process for controlling, monitoring and provided by the Company’s legal counsel.
evaluating claims and disputes involving the
Company is complex. Management and the
Directors must exercise judgement to predict the
outcome thereof and estimate the probability of a
ruling against the Company, its possible economic
consequences and, where appropriate, the amount
of any provisions needed to cover the related
obligations and other accounting impacts and/or

e \We evaluated the design and implementation of
the relevant controls established by the
Company in relation to the integrity of claims and
litigation and to estimate the possible
consequences thereof for the Company and,
where appropriate, the necessary provisions and
their corresponding recognition.

disclosures to be included in the annual financial ¢ We obtained responses from the Company's
statements. lawyers containing their representations

regarding the status, probability and possible
Due to the judgement involved in predicting the consequences for the Company of the most
outcome of these matters and the uncertainty significant claims and disputes in quantitative
inherent in the estimates related to claims and and qualitative terms.

disputes, particularly those subject to a court ruling
or arbitration, and because changes therein could
give rise to significant differences with respect to
the amounts recognised by the Company at the
reporting date, we have considered litigation and
contingencies to be a key audit matter.

e In the case of the more significant claims and
litigation, we evaluated the reasonableness of
the assumptions and estimates made by
management and the Directors and, where
appropriate, the Company's lawyers.

e \We also assessed whether the disclosures in
the annual financial statements meet the
requirements of the applicable financial reporting
framework.

Other Information: Directors’ Report

Other information solely comprises the 2017 directors' report, the preparation of which is the
responsibility of the Company's Directors and which does not form an integral part of the annual
financial statements.

Our audit opinion on the annual financial statements does not encompass the directors' report. Our
responsibility regarding the content of the directors' report is defined in the legislation regulating the
audit of accounts, which establishes two different levels:

a) A specific level applicable to certain information included in the Annual Corporate Governance
Report, as defined in article 35.2. b) of Audit Law 22/2015, which consists solely of verifying
that the aforementioned information has been provided in the directors' report, and if not, to
report on this matter.
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b) A general level applicable to the rest of the information included in the directors' report, which
consists of assessing and reporting on the consistency of this information with the annual
financial statements, based on knowledge of the entity obtained during the audit of the
aforementioned accounts and without including any information other than that obtained as
evidence during the audit. Also, assessing and reporting on whether the content and
presentation of this part of the directors' report are in accordance with applicable legislation. If,
based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there are material misstatements, we
are required to report them.

Based on the work carried out, as described above, we have verified that the information referred to
in a) above has been provided in the directors' report and that the rest of the information contained
in the directors' report is consistent with that disclosed in the annual financial statements for 2017,
and that the content and presentation of the report are in accordance with applicable legislation.

Directors' and Audit Committee's Responsibility for the Annual Financial
statements

The Directors are responsible for the preparation of the accompanying annual financial statements in
such a way that they give a true and fair view of the equity, financial position and financial
performance of the Company in accordance with the financial reporting framework applicable to the
entity in Spain, and for such internal control as they determine is necessary to enable the preparation
of annual financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or
error.

In preparing the financial statements, the Directors are responsible for assessing the Company's
ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and
using the going concern basis of accounting unless the aforementioned Directors intend either to
liguidate the Company or to cease operations, or have no realistic alternative but to do so.

The audit committee is responsible for overseeing the preparation and presentation of the annual
financial statements.

Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of the Annual Financial statements _

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the annual financial statements as
a whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor's
report that includes our opinion.

Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in
accordance with prevailing legislation regulating the audit of accounts in Spain will always detect a
material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are
considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to
influence economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these annual financial statements.
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As part of an audit in accordance with prevailing legislation regulating the audit of accounts in Spain,
we exercise professional judgement and maintain professional scepticism throughout the audit. We
also:

— Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to
fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit
evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not
detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error,
as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override
of internal control.

— Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, and not for the purpose of expressing an
opinion on the effectiveness of the Company's internal control.

— Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting
estimates and related disclosures made by the Company's Directors.

— Conclude on the appropriateness of the Company Directors' use of the going concern basis of
accounting and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists
related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Company's ability to
continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to
draw attention in our auditor's report to the related disclosures in the annual financial statements
or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the
audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor's report. However, future events or
conditions may cause the Company to cease to continue as a going concern.

— Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the annual financial statements,
including the disclosures, and whether the annual financial statements represent the underlying
transactions and events in a manner that achieves a true and fair view.

We communicate with the audit committee of Acciona, S.A. regarding, among other matters, the
planned scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant
deficiencies in internal control that we identify during our audit.

We also provide the Company's audit committee with a statement that we have complied with the
applicable ethical requirements, including those regarding independence, and to communicate with
them all matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and where
applicable, related safeguards.

From the matters communicated to the audit committee of the Company, we determine those that
were of most significance in the audit of the annual financial statements of the current period and
which are therefore the key audit matters.

We describe these matters in our auditor’s report unless law or regulation precludes public
disclosure about the matter.
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REPORT ON OTHER LEGAL AND REGULATORY REQUIREMENTS

Additional Report to the Audit Committee

The opinion expressed in this report is consistent with our additional report to the Company's audit
committee dated 26 February 2018.

Contract Period

We were appointed as auditor of the Company by the shareholders at the ordinary general meeting
on 18 May 2017 for a period of three years, from the year ended 31 December 2017.

KPMG Auditores, S.L.
On the Spanish Official Register of
Auditors (“ROAC") with No. S0702

(Signed on the original in Spanish)

Borja Guinea Lopez
On the Spanish Official Register of Auditors (“ROAC") with number 16210

26 February 2018
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ACCIONA, S A.
BALANCE SHEET AT 31 DECEMBER 2017 AND 2016

(Thousand euros)
Notes to Notes to
tinnncial financial
ASSETS statements 31/12/2017 31/12/2016 EQUITY AND LIABILITIES statements 31/12/2017 31/12/2016
NON-CURRENT ASSETS 5,790,338 5,667,121 EQUITY Note 11 3,659,413 3,657,425
CAPITAL AND RESERVES 3,659,413 3,657,425
Capital 57,260 57,260
Issue preminm 170,110 170,110
Reserves 3,225,980 3,057,145
Property, plant and equipment Note & 6,712 6,295 Legal and stamtory 695,652 656.992
Land and buildings 5,159 5,268 Other reserves 2,530 334 2,400,153
Other technical plant and fixtures & fittings 740 139
Other property, plant and equipment 813 888 Tressury stock (3,145) {13,692)
Year’s profit /(loss} 209,202 386,602
Non-corrent investments in Group companies, joint ventures and Notes 8.2.1 &
associales 17.2 5,563,584 5,416,742
Equity instruments 5,550,395 5,376,958
Loans and credits to companies 3,689 39,784
Non-corrent financial investments Note 8,1 937 2,042 NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES 636,638 915,780
Equity instruments - 895 Non-current provisions Note 12 128,502 166,293
Other financial assets 937 1,147 Other provisions 125,502 156,393
Deferred tax assets Note 14.6 219,105 242,042 Non-current payables 511,136 739,512
CURRENT ASSETS 197,295 121,271 Debentures and other nepotiable securities Note 13.2 194,609 308,342
Bank barrowings Note 13.1 316,527 431,170
Non-current assets held for sale Note 9 3,000
Deferred tax Labilities Nute 14.7 - 9,975
Trade and other accounts recelvable 154,160 111,520
Clients, froup companies and associates: Note 17.2 55,439 51,259
Sundry receivable 327 76 CURRENT LIABILITIES 1,691,582 1,215,187
Personnel 2,823 3,595 Current provisions 3,527 7,315
Current tax sssets Note 14.1 95,193 56,577 Current payables 244,739 145,331
Other credits with Public Fntities Note 14.1 I8 13 Debentures and other negotiable securities Note 13.2 18,226 39,667
Other financial lizbilities 13,472 13,472
Current investments in Gronp compauies and associates Nt 38,462 4521 . 213,041 92,192
17.2 ! Bank borrowings Note 13.1 * ?
Current credits to companies and other financial assets 38,462 4,521
Current payables to Group companies and nsgociates Note 17.2 1,379,688 958,338
Trade and other accounts payable 63,628 74,203
Suppliers 13.073 10,475
Current prepayments 393 L416 Suppliers, group companiey wd associates Note 17.2 4,617 4,867
Cash and other cash equivalents Note 10 1,280 3,814 Sundry payables 9,364 34,145
Cash and banks 1.280 3.814 Personnel 18,377 20,598
Other payables to Public Entities Note 14.1 18,197 4,118
TOTAL ASSETS 5,987,633 5,788,392 TOTAL EQUITY AND LIABILITIES 5,987,633 5,788,392

Notes 1 to 20 to the accompanying financial statements are an integral part of the balauce sheet at 31 December 2017.
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ACCIONA, S.A.
INCOME STATEMENT FOR FINANCIAL YEARS 2017 AND 2016

{Thousand euros)
Notes to FY FY
financial
statements 2017 2016

Net turnover Note 16.1 115222 124,408
Provision of services 60,860 51,064
Financial income from investments in equity instruments 51,942 45,869
Financial income from negotiable securities and other financial

instruments Note 17.1 2,420 27475
Other operating income 364 328
Non-core and other current operating revenues 304 328
Personnel expenses Note 162 (53.460) (52,319)
Wages, salaries and similar (42,290) (42,346)
Welfare charges (11,170) (9,973)
Other operating costs (73,249) (65,646)
External services {73,090) (64,292)
Taxes (159) (83)
Losses, impairment and change in provisions for trade operations 2 (1,271}
Amortisation/depreciation of assets Note 6 (1,306) (1,906)
Impairment and profit/(loss) on disposal of financial instruments 196,080 363,023
Excess provisions Note 12 41,642 80,400
OPERATING PROFIT/(LOSS) 225,233 448,288
Financial income 763 375
From negotiable securities and other third-party financial instruments 763 375
Finance costs (55,7193) (57,732)
For payables to Group companies, jointly-controlled entities and

associates Note 17.1 (24,940) (12,377)
Yor payables to third parties (30,853) (45,355}
Change in fair value of financial instruments - -
Trading portfolic and other -- -
Translation differences (509) (604)
FINANCIAL PROFIT / (LOSS) (55,539 (57.961)
PROFIT/(LOSS) BEFORE TAX 169,694 390,327
Tax on profit Note 144 39,508 (3,725)
YEAR’S PROFIT/(LOSS) 209,202 386,602

Accompanying Notes 1 to 20 and the appendices are an integral part of the income stat 2017.
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ACCIONA, S.A.

STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY FOR FINANCIAL YEAR 2017 & 2016

A) STATEMENT OF RECOGNISED INCOME AND EXPENSES
(Thousand enros}

FY FY
2017 2016

RESULTS OF INCOME STATEMENT (1) 209,202 386,602

Income and expenses recognised directly in equity
- For measurement of financial instruments: -- -
Available-for-sale financial assets -- -
Other income / expenses - -

- For cash flow hedges -- -

- Grants, donations and legacies received -- -

- For actuarial gains and losses and other adjustments -- -

- Tax effect - -
TOTAL INCOME AND EXPENSES RECOGNISED DIRECTLY IN '
EQUITY (II) - -

Transfers to income statement:
- For measurement of financial instruments: -- -
Available-for-sale financial assets - -
Other income / expenses .- -

- For cash flow hedges - -

- (Grants, donations and legacies received = -

- Tax effect -- --
TOTAL TRANSFERS TO INCOME STATEMENT (I1I) - -

TOTAL RECOGNISED INCOME AND EXPENSES (I+I+I1I) 209,202 386,602 |

Accompanying Notes 1 to 20 and the appendices are an integral part of the statement of recognised income and expenses for 2017,
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ACCIONA, SA.

STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY FOR FINANCIAL YEAR 2017 & 2016

B) COMPREHENSIVE STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY

(Thousand enros)
Issue Treasury Years®
| Premium Reserves Stock Profit/(I.oss) TOTAL |
BALANCE AT 31/12/2015 57,260 170,110 2,756,010 (19,527) 180,550 3,144,403
Total recognised income and expenses - - - e 386,602 386,602
Operations with shareholders - - (20,359) 5335 (180,550) (195,074)
- Application of results / dividends - - 37,401 - (180,550) (143,149}
- Operations with bonds (57,658) - - (57.658)
- Operations with treasury stock (net) - - (102) 5,835 - 5,733
Other changes in equity - effect of corporate _ _ _ _
restructure g TR 321,494 321,494
BALANCE AT 31/12/2016 57,260 170,110 3,057,145 (13,692) 386,602 3,657,425
Total recognised income and expenses - - - - 209,202 209,202
Operations with shareholders - - 186,843 10,547 (386,602) (189,212)
- Application of results / dividends (Note 3) - - 221,981 - (386,602) (164,621)
- Operations with bonds - - (35711) - - {35,711)
- Operations with treasury stock (net) - - 513 10,547 - 11,120
Other changes in equity — effect of corporate
restructure - - (18,002) - - {18,002)
BALANCE AT 31/12/2017 57,260 170,110 3,225,986 (3,145) 209,202 3,659,413

Accompanying Notes 1 to 20 and the appendices are an integral part of the comprehensive siatement of changes in equity for

financial year 2017.

- Page 5-




ACCIONA, S.A.

STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS FOR FINANCIAL YEARS 2017 & 2016

{Thousand euros)

FY FY
2017 2016
CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES (73,652) {16,618}
Profit / (loss) before tax 169,694 390,327
Adjustments: {196,118) {456,943}
Amortisation/depreciation of assets 1,306 1,906
Other adjustments (net) {197.424) (458,849)
Change in provisions (196,215 187481
Profit/(loss) for derecognition and disposal of financial assets (2,385) (631,322)
Financial income {3.183) (27.475)
Dividends (5,942) {45,869)
Finance costs 55,793 57,732
Translation differences 509 604
Changes in working capital (14,261) 22,079
Other cash flows from operating activities: (32.967) 27919
Interest paid (58.0583) (44.313) !
Dividends received 51,942 45.869
Interest received 3,183 26,120
Collections/(pavments) for tax on profit (30,039) 243
CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTMIENT ACTIVITIES (7,978) 508,609
Payments for investments: (9,743) (3,188,249) .
Group companies, associates and business units (9,743) (3.187.934)
PPE and intangible assets — {315)
Receipis from disinvestments: 660 3,697,687
Group companies, associates and business units - 3,389,620
PPE and intangible assets 660 -
i Available-for-sale financial assets - 308,067
\  Other receipts/(payments) from investment activities 1,105 (829)
CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCE ACTIVITIES 79.605 {491,498)
Receipts and (payments) from equity instruments: 395,527 £.835
Acquisition 357,601 (338.284)
Disposal 37,926 344,119
Proceeds and (payments) from financial liability instruments: (126,708) (296,420)
- Issue ot bank borrowings 6,206 309,672
- Repayments and amortisation of bank borrowings 591 (56,832)
- Repayment and amortisation of bonds and other negotiable securities {133.505) (549,260)
Payments for dividends and returns on other equity instruments (164.621) (143,149)
Other cash flows from financing activities (24,592) (57,764)
EFFECT OF EXCHANGE RATE FLUCTUATIONS (509) 1604)
NET INCREASE / (DECREASE) IN CASH & CASH EQUIVALENTS 2,534) 11
CASH & CASH EQUIVALENTS AT BEGINNING OF PERIOD ' 3,814 3,925
CASH & CASH EQUIVALENTS AT YEAR’S END 1,280 3,814
COMPONENTS OF CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT YEAR'S END 1,280 3814
Cash and banks 1,280 3.814
TOTAL CASH & CASIE EQUIVALENTS AT YEAR’S END 1,280 3814

Notes 1 to 20 to the financial statements are an integral part of the statement of cash flows for financial year 2617.
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ACCIONA,S.A.

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

1. - Company Activities

Acciona, S.A. is the Parent Company of the Acciona group. It was established under the
laws for the time being in force in Barcelona on 16 June 1916, for an indefinite period of
time. Its registered office and main offices where it develops its activities are located at
Avenida de Europa 18 in Alcobendas (Madrid). The Company is registered under the
Spanish Classification for Business Activities with code number 6420.

The Company is part of a Group of companies that operate in different economic activity
sectors, including mest notably:

Acciona Energy: including the electricity business and its various industrial and
commercial aspects, from the construction of wind farms to the generation,
distribution and retailing of the different energy sources.

Acciona Infrastructure Construction: including mainly construction and engineering
activities and transport and hospital concessions.

Acciona Water: including the activities relating to the construction of desalination
plants, water treatment plants and drinking water plants as well as the management
of the entire water cycle, an activity that covers from the initial water collection, to
its treatment, including desalination, to its purification and return to the environment
after use. It also operates concessions for services related to the entire water cycle.

- Acciona Services: including the activities of facility services, airport handling
services, waste collection and treatment, and logistics services, among others.

- Other Activities: businesses relating to fund management and stock market
brokerage, wine production, as well as the activities of the Acciona Trasmediterranea
subgroup, real estate business, and other investments.

The Company may develop any and all activities to carry out and additional to the
businesses above, and hold interests in other companies by way of investments.

The Company is the parent of a Group of subsidiaries and, in accordance with the
regulations for the time being in force, it is under an obligation to prepare separate
consolidated statements under the International Financial Reporting Standards adopted
by the European Union (IFRS-UE), which show the following consolidated key figures,
in thousand euros:
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THem 2017 2016

Total assets 17,147,358 17,407,764
Net equity 3,963,268 4,097,346
Net turnover 7,253.974 5,977.419
Conso_l’tdatgd;proﬁt.at-tn.butable- 10 220,131 351,981
the Parent-Compary

The annual financial statements for 2017 were prepared by the Directors, at meeting of
the Board of Directors held on 26 February 2018.

The annual financial statements for 2016 were approved by the General Shareholders’
Meeting of Acciona, S.A. held on 18 May 2017 and filed for deposit at the Madrid
Companies Register.

2. - Bases of presentation of annnal financial statements
2.1 Financial reporting standards framework applicable to the Company

These annual financial statements were prepared by the Board of Directors in
accordance with the financial reporting standards framework applicable to the
Company, which is as established in:

a) The Code of Commerce and any other mercantile legislation.
b) General Accounting Plan as approved by Royal Decree 1514/2007.

¢) The mandatory standards approved by Instituto de Contabilidad y Auditoria de
Cuentas (Spanish Accounting and Accounts Audit Institute) within the
development of the General Accounting Plan and its supplementary regulations.

d) Any other Spanish accounting regulations as applicable.
2.2 True and fair view

The annual financial statements for 2017 expressed in thousand euros, the functional
curtency of the Company, were obtained from the accounting records of the
Company and they are presented in accordance with the financial reporting standards
framework applicable to the Company and specifically with the principles and
criteria contained therein so as to show a true and fair view of the equity, financial
position and results of the Company, and of cash flows as occurred in the year.
These annual financial statements, as prepared by the Directors of the Company, will
be submitted to the General Shareholders’ Meeting, for approval; and it is believed
that they will be approved as they stand.

The annual financial statements for 2017 have been prepared including the joint
ventures (sec Note 4.13 and Note 8.2.3) where the Company participates, by
applying the proportional integration method, that is, through inclusion of the
Company’s participation share in the joint ventures, in terms of profit/(loss) and
balance carrying amount, with balances for assets and liabilities being duly
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eliminated as they applied, as well as operations carried out between the Company
and the joint ventures in the year.

2.3 Non-mandatory accounting principles applied

Only mandatory accounting principles in force at the date of preparation of these
annual financial statements were applied. Additionally, the Directors prepared these
annual financial statements taking into account all the mandatory accounting
principles and standards that are applicable and with a significant impact on said
annual financial statements. There is no accounting principle, that being mandatory,
has ceased beign applied.

24 Critical aspects concerning measurement and estimate of uncertainiy

For the preparation of these annual financial statements, estimates were made by the
Directors of the Company to measure some of the assets, liabilities, income,
expenses and obligations appearing recorded therein. Basically, these estimates refer
to:

= Assessment of possible losses due to impairment of certain assets. (See Note 4.3)
s The useful life of PPE and intangible assets. (See Note 4.1 and 4.2)
The fair value of certain financial instruments. (See Note 4.5)
Estimate of provisions. (See Note 4.9)
Tax results to be declared to the tax authorities in future, which served to record
the different amounts related to corporate tax on these annual financial
statements. (See Note 4.7)

Although these estimates were made on the basis of the best information available at
the close of 2017, it may so happen that fiture events will make it necessary to
change them {upwards or downwards) in the next few years. If so, it would be done
prospectively.

2.5 Comparison of information

The information contained in these notes referred to financial year 2017 is disclosed,
for comparative purposes, with the information on financial year 2016.

For comparative purposes, and as the Company’s main activity is to hold shares,
“Impairment and profit/(loss) on disposal of financial instruments” from financial
year 2016 has been reclassified from financial profit/(loss) to operating profit/(loss).

In December 2016, Royal Decree 602/2016, of 2 December, was approved; it
modifies, inter alia, the General Accounting Plan approved by Royal Decree
1514/2007, of 16 November. Said Royal Decree 602/2016 is applicable to financial
years beginning on or after 1 January 2016. As the Company does not have any
intangible assets deemed to have an indefinite useful life previously or goodwill, the
Company is not significantly impacted by such regulatory change.
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Thus, the main changes introduced by Royal Decree 602/2016 affecting the
Company refer to new disclosures of information in the notes, which include, as the
most significant, employees with a disability higher than or equal to 33%.

In relation to the new information required under Royal Decree 602/2016, the
Company opted for not disclosing comparative information in accordance with what
is permitted in the aforementioned Royal Decree.

2.6 Grouping of items

Certain items on the balance sheet, the income statement, the statement of changes in
equity or the statement of cash flows were grouped together to facilitate their
understanding but, to the extent that it was significant, separate information was
included in these Notes.

2.7 Changes in accounting criteria and correction of errors

In 2017 no significant changes took place in accounting criteria in respect of those
applied in 2016.

When these annual financial statements for 2017 were prepared, no material error
was found that led to restatement of the amounts included in the financial statements
for financial year 2016.

3. - Application of results
The proposed application of the results of financial year 2017 that the Board of Directors

will submit to the General Shareholders’ Meeting for approval is the following (in
thousand euros):

2017 2016
Distribution base:
Acciona, S.A. profit or loss 209,202.462.05 386.601.903.47
Application:
To legal reserve - -
To statutory reserve 20,920,246.21  38,660,190.34
To capitalisation reserves 4,667,230.18
To voluntary réserves 111,836,335:66° 183,320,506.88
Dividends 171,778,650 164.621.206.25
Total 20920246205 386,601,903.47

The proposed allocation contemplates the distribution of dividends of 3.00 euros per
share.

The Board of Directors proposes to allocate the capitalisation reserve against the 2017
results in accordance with Article 25 of Act 27/2014, of 27 November on Corporate Tax,
amounting to 4,667,230.18 euros and equivalent to 10% of the increase in own funds
associated with the companies that are part of the tax group with Acciona, S.A. as the
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parent company. This reduction is limited to 10% of the tax base for the tax period
obtained for the tax group, and the excess over this limit can be transferred to the next
two tax periods.

Under the Articles of Association, the Company is under an obligation to allocate, if
appropriate, 10% of net profit to the legal and statutory reserve, in such a manner that
when the former is covered (20% of the share capital), the remaining amount resulting
from such 10% must be allocated to the statutory reserve. This reserve is unrestricted.

4. Recognition and measurement standards

The recognition and measurement standards applied by the Company to the preparation
of its financial statements, following the General Accounting Plan, were the following:

4.1. Intangible assets

As a general rule, intangible assets are initially measured at cost, be it the acquisition
price or the production cost, and subsequently they are measured at their cost reduced by
the relevant accrued amortisation and, if any, by impairment losses as occurred, in
‘conformity with the criterion indicated in Note 4.3. These assets amortise on the basis of
their useful life. When their useful life cannot be reliably estimated, they amortise in a
period of 10 years.

a) Industrial property:

This account records the amounts paid for the acquisition of the property or the
right to use the different manifestations of them (patents and trademarks), or for
the expenses incurred as a result of the registration of the property developed by
the company. Industrial property amortises by applying the straight-line method for
a five-year period.

b) Software:

The Company records in this account the costs incurred in the acquisition and
development of computer programs, including the development costs of web
pages. Software maintenance costs are recorded on the income statement for the
year in which they are incurred. Software amortises by applying the straight-line
method for a four-year period.

At 31 December 2017 and 2016 these assets were fully amortised.

4.2, Property, plant and equipment
Property, plant and equipment is initially measured at the acquisition price and this is

subsequently reduced by the relevant accrued depreciation and by impairment losses,
if any, in accordance with the criterion mentioned in Note 4.3.
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Upkeep and maintenance expenses concerning the different property, plant and
equipment elements are recognised on the income statement for the year in which
they are incurred. However, the costs of improvements leading to increased capacity
or efficiency or to a lengthening of the useful lives of the assets are capitalised.

The Company depreciates property, plant and equipment following the straight-line
method, applying annual depreciation percentages based on the years of useful life
estimated for the relevant assets (or the years of useful life left, whichever is the
lower), according to the following detail:

Depreciation

percentage
Buldings 2% - T%
Tools and fixiures & fittings 10% - 15%
IT equipment 25% - 50%
Other PPE, ' _ 10% - 20%

4.3. Value impairment of PPE and intangible assets

At the close of every year, the Company carries out an asset analysis to detect the
existence of impairment losses that reduce the recoverable value of these assets to an
amount lower than their carrving amount. This analysis is systematically performed
for all goodwill or intangible assets with indefinite useful lives and for the remaining
assets whenever there are objective indications that such losses could exist.

For the purposes of this analysis, known as “impairment test”, the recoverable
amount is determined as the fair value less estimated costs necessary for sale or the
value in use, whichever is the higher. Fair value means the value at which the asset
in question could be disposed of under normal conditions and is determined on the
basis of market information, transactions external to the Group, etc. On the other
hand, the procedures established by Management consist in calculating the value in
use of the assets in question on the basis of the current value, discounted at rates
representative of the Company’s cost of, of the estimated future cash flows to be
obtained for the asset in question.

An impairment test is applied for each asset considered separately where possible or
for the set of assets in question that make up the “cash generating unit” for which it
is possible to have the financial information required for the analysis.

If a loss must be recognised for impairment of a cash generating unit where goodwill
in whole or in part had been assigned, the camrying amount of goodwill
corresponding to such unit is first reduced. If impairment exceeds the carrying
amount, then, in proportion to their carrying amount, the carrying amount of the
other assets in the cash generating unit is reduced, to the limit of their fair value less
sale costs or their value in use or zero, whichever is the highest.

When an impairment loss subsequently reverses (which is not allowed specifically in
the case of goodwill), the carrying amount of the asset or the cash-generating unit is
increased to the revised estimate of its recoverable amount, but in such a way that the
increased carrying amount will not exceed the carrying amount that would have been

- Page 12-



determined had no impairment loss been recognised in previous years. The reversion
of an impairment loss is immediately recognised as income.

As a result of the value impairment test applied, it was not necessary to allocate
additional amounts to the impairments reflected on the financial statements for
previous years (see Note 6).

44. Leases
Leases are classified as finance leases whenever the terms of the lease transfer
substantially all the risks and profits associated to ownership of the leased asset

object to the contract. All other leases are classified as operating leases. The
Company only has operating leases.

Operating lease

Expenses resulting from operating leases are charged to income statemnet of the year
in which they are accrued.

Any amount collected or paid when arranging an operating lease will be treated as
early collection or payment to be recognised in results throughout the term of the
lease, as the benefits from the leased asset are gradually transferred or received.

4.5. Financial instruments

4.5.1 Financial assets

Classification:

The financial assets usually held by the Company are classified under the following
categories:

a) Loans and receivables: financial assets arising from the sale of goods or the
rendering of services in the ordinary course of the Company's business, or
financial assets which, not having commercial substance, are not equity
instruments or derivatives, have fixed or determinable payments and are not
traded in an active market. This category is comprised practically in its entirety
of the assets recorded in “Trade and other accounts receivable” and “Loans and
credits to companies” (both basically recorded with Group companies, Joint
Ventures and Associates).

b) Held-to-maturity investments: Securities representing debt, with a fixed due date
and collection of quantifiable amounts, traded on an active market and over
which the Company expresses its intention and capacity to hold them until their
due date.

¢) Group companies are those over which the Company has control, directly or
indirectly through subsidiaries, as established in article 42 of the Code of
Commerce, or when companies are controlled by any means by one or more
individual or legal entity acting jointly, or are managed on a unified basis
through agreements or clauses in Articles of Association.
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Control means the power to govern a company’s tinancial and operating policies
in order to obtain profit from the company’s activities, considering for these
purposes the voting rights held by the Company or third parties that are
exercisable or convertible at the end of the accounting period.

Associates are considered to be those on which the Company, directly or
indirectly through subsidiaries, has significant influence. Significant influence is
the power to participate in decisions on a company’s financial and operating
policies, without there being a control structure or joint control over the same.
When evaluating the existence of significant influence, the potential voting rights
that may be exercisable or convertible at the end of each accounting period are
considered, as well as considering the potential voting rights held by the
Company or by another company.

Jointly-controlled entities are those that are jointly managed by the Company or
by one or more Group companies, including parent’s entities or individuals, and
one or more third parties outside the group.

d) Available-for-sate financial assets: these include debt securities and equity
instruments of other companies that are not classified in any of the
aforementioned categories.

Initial measurement:

Financial assets are initially recognised at the fair value of the consideration given
plus the transaction costs as are directly attributable.

Investments in Group companies, Joint Ventures and Associates are initial
recognised at cost, which is equivalent to the fair value of the consideration given,
including the transaction costs incurred for investments in associates and jointly-
controlled entities.

Subsequent measurement:
a) Loan and accounts receivable are measured at their amortised cost.
b) Held-to-maturity investments are measured at their amortised cost.

¢) Investments in the equity of group companies, joint ventures and associates are
measured at their cost, reduced, if appropriate, hy the accrued amount of
impairment value adjustments. These losses are calculated as the difference
between the carrying amount of the investments and their recoverable amount,
the recoverable amount understood as the higher value between fair value less
costs to sell and the present value of the future cash flows from the investment.
Unless there is better evidence of the recoverable amount, it is based on the value
of the equity of the investee, adjusted by the amount of the unrealised gains
existing at the date of measurement (including any goodwill).
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Impairment is calculated as the result of comparing the carrying amount of the
investment with its recoverable value, understood as the wvalue in use or the
carrying amount less costs to sell, whichever is the higher.

In previous financial years reversals of impairment have been recognised to the
extent that there is an increase in the recoverable value, with the limit being the
carrying amount that the investment would have if the value impairment had not
been recognised.

The loss or reversal of impairment is recognised on the income statement, except
in the cases where it should be charged to equity.

d) Available-for-sale financial assets are measured at their fair value, any changes in
said fair value being recognised in Equity, until the asset is disposed of or its
value is impaired (steadily or permanently), at which time the cumulative gains
or losses previously recognised in Equity are recognised on the income
statement. In this respect, it is considered that there is impairment (permanent) if
the trading value of the asset has fallen by over 40% for one and a half years and
has not recovered, or if the value has dropped over an extended period of time.

Investments in equity instruments the fair value of which cannot be reliably
estimated are measured at their cost, less, if applicable, the cumulative amount of
impairment value adjustments. In these cases, value adjustment is calculated in
the same way as for investments in Group companies and Associates and
reversion of the adjusted value recognised in previous years is not possible.

At least at the close of the financial year the Company implements an impairment
test for the financial assets not recognised at their fair value. It is considered that
there is objective evidence of impairment if the recoverable value of the financial
asset is lower than its carrying amount. When this occurs, the impairment loss is
recognised in the income staternent.

The Company writes off financial assets when they mature or the rights over the
related cash flows are transferred and the risks and benefits attached to their
ownership have been substantially transferred.

Otherwise, the Company does not write off financial assets, and recognises financial
liabilities in an amount equivalent to the consideration received, in transfers of
financial assets where the risks and benefits attached to their ownership are retained.

4.5.2 Financial liabilities

Financial liabilities, including trade and other accounts payable that are not classified
as held for sale or as financial liabilities at fair value with changes in the income
statement, are initially recognised at their fair value less any directly attributable
transaction costs, if applicable.

Debits and accounts payable are initially measured at the fair value of the
consideration received, adjusted by any directly attributable transaction costs. These
liabilities are subsequently measured at amortised cost.

A
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The Company de-recognises financial liabilities when the obligations giving rise to
them cease to exist.

4.5.3 Equity instruments

An equity instrument represents a residual investment in the Company’s equity after
all related liabilities are deducted.

Capital instruments issued by the Company are recognised in equity at the amount
received, net of any cost to issue them.

Treasury shares acquired by the Company in the year are recognised at the value of
the consideration given in exchange, directly at lower value of equity. The results of
purchase, sale, issue or retirement of own equity instruments are recognised directly
in equity and no result is recognised on the income statement.

At 31 December 2017, Acciona, S.A. held 45,702 treasury shares representing
0.0798% of the share capital at the time. The acquisition cost of these shares
amounted to 3.145 thousand euros. The acquisition cost of the treasury shares and
the gains or losses on transactions involving them were recognised directly in equity
{(see Note 11.5).

At 31 December 2016, Acciona, S.A. held 215,898 treasury shares represeniing
0.3771% of the share capital at the time. In turn, its subsidiary Finanzas Dos, S.A.
held 18,000 treasury shares representing 0.0314% of the share capital at the time.
The acquisition cost of these shares amounted to 13,692 thousand euros for the
treasury shares held by Acciona, S.A. and to 711 thousand euros for the treasury
shares heid by Finanzas Dos, S.A. The acquisition cost of the treasury shares and the
gains or losses on transactions involving them were recognised directly in equity (see
Note 11.5).

4.5 4 Derivative financial instruments

The Company uses derivative financial instruments to hedge the risks to which its
activities, operations and future cash flows are exposed. Basically, these risks arise
from fluctuations in interest rates. Within the framework of such operations, the
Company engages cash flow hedge financial instruments. The Company does not use
derivative financial instruments for speculative purposes. The use of financial
derivatives is governed by the policies and guidelines established by Corporate
Management.

For these financial instruments to be classified as hedge accounting, they are initially
designated as such by documenting the hedging relationship. In addition, the
Company verifies initially and periodically throughout their life (at least at the close
of every accounting period) that the hedge relationship is effective, that is, it can be
prospectively expected that the changes in fair value or in the cash flows of the
hedged item (attributable to the hedged risk) will be almost completely offset by
those of the hedge instrument and that, retrospectively, the hedge results will have
ranged from 80% to 125% in respect of the hedged item.
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For this type of hedges, the portion of the gain or loss on the hedging instrument that
has been determined to be an effective hedge is recognised temporarily in equity and
is recognised in the profit or loss statement in the same period during which the
hedged item affects profit or loss, unless the hedge relates to a forecast transaction
that results in the recognition of a non-financial asset or a non-financial liability, in
which case the amounts recognised in equity are included in the initial cost of the
asset or liability when it is acquired or assumed. In 2017 the Company did not use
cash flow hedges.

4.6. Foreign currency transactions

The Company's functional currency is the euro. Therefore, transactions in currencies
other than the euro are deemed to be “foreign currency transactions” and are
recognised by applying the exchange rates prevailing at the date of the transaction.

At the close of the financial year, the cash assets and liabilities denominated in
foreign currencies are translated to euros by applying the prevailing exchange rate at
the balance sheet date. Any profit or loss as shown is directly recognised in the
income statement for the financial year in which they occur.

4.7. Tax on profit

Profit tax expense or income comprises the portion that relates to current tax expense
or income and the portion that relates to deferred tax expense or income.

Current tax is the amount that the Company pays as a result of the tax settlements for
tax on profit for a given financial year. Tax credits and other tax benefits, excluding
tax withholdings and pre-payments, and tax loss carry-forwards from previous
financial years effectively applied in the current financial year, result in fower
current tax.

Deferred tax expense or income relates to the recognition and derecognition of
deferred tax assets and liabilities. These include temporary differences which are
identified as the amounts that are expected to be payable or recoverable and which
arise from the differences between the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities and
their fiscal value, and the negative tax bases pending carry-forward and credits for
tax deductions that have not been fiscally applied. These amounts are recorded by
applying the tax rate at which they are expected to be recovered or settled, to the
temporary difference or credit in question.

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for all taxable temporary differences, except
for those arising from the initial recognition of goodwill or of other assets and
liabilities in a transaction affects neither accounting profit (loss) nor taxable profit
(tax loss) and which is not a business combination.

Deferred tax assets, however, are only recognised to the extent that it is considered

likely that the Company will have future tax gains against which the deferred tax
assets can be applied.
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Deferred tax assets and liabilities arising from operations directly charged against or
credited in equity accounts are also entered in the accounts with a balancing entry in

equity.

At the close of every accounting period, recognised deferred tax assets are reassessed
and the appropriate adjustments are applied thereto to the extent that there are doubts
as to their future recoverability. Similarly, deferred tax assets not recognised on the
balance sheet are reassessed at the end of each accounting period and are recognised
to the extent that they are likely to be recovered through future tax gains.

Acciona, S.A. is allowed to apply the fiscal consolidation system for Corporate Tax,
and it is part of the Fiscal Consolidation Group, where il is the Parent Company,
under group number 30/96.

4.8. Income and expenses

Income and expenses are recognised following the accrual principle, that is, when
the actual flow of goods and services represented by income and expenses takes
place, regardless of the time when the cash or financial flow arising therefrom
occurs. Income is measured at the fair value of the consideration received, with any
discounts and taxes being deducted.

Ordinary income from the provision of services is recognised by taking into account
the degree of completion of the provision at the balance sheet date, provided that the
outcome of the transaction may be reliably estimated.

Interest received from financial assets is recognised by applying the effective interest
rate method and dividends are recognised when the shareholder’s right to receive
them has been declared. In any event, interest and dividends from financial assets as
accrued after the time of acquisition are recognised as income on the income
statement.

4.9. Provisions and contingencies

When preparing the annual financial statements, the Directors of the Company
distinguish between:

a) Provisions: Balances payable covering present obligations arising from past
events, the cancellation of which is likely to give rise to an outflow of resources,
but which are undetermined as regards the cancellation amount and/or timing.

b) Contingent Liabilities: Possible obligations that arise from past events. the future
materialisation of which is conditional to the occurrence or non-occurrence of
one or more future events beyond the Company’s control.

The annual financial statements contain all the provisions for which it is estimated
that the probability of having 1o satisfy the obligation is higher than otherwise.
Contingent liabilities are not recognised on the balance sheet, but information is
provided about them in the Notes, to the extent that they are not considered remote.
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Provisions are measured at the present value of the best possible estimate of the
amount required to cancel or transfer the obligation, taking into account the
information available on the event and its consequences. Where discounting is used,
adjustments made to provisions are recognised as interest cost on an accrual basis.

4.10. Compensation for dismissal

According to the current employment legislation, companies are under an obligation
to compensate employees when, under certain circumstances, their employment is
terminated. Compensation for dismissal that can be reasonably quantified is
registered as expense for the year when the decision about dismissal is taken. No
provision for compensation for dismissal was recorded in these annual financial
statements, since such situation was not foreseen.

4.11. Equity elements of an environmental nature

Assets used on a lasting basis in the Company's activity, the main purpose of which
is to minimise environmental impact and protect and upgrade the environment,
including the reduction or elimination of future pollution, are considered assets of an
environmental nature.

Given its nature, the Company’s activity does not have a significant environmental
impact.

4.12. Share-based payments

The Company recognises, on the one hand, the goods and services received as an
asset or an expense, depending on their nature, at the time of their acquisition and, on
the other hand, the appropriate increase in net equity, if the transaction is settled with
equity instruments, or the applicable liability if the transaction is settled with an
amount based on the value of the equity instruments.

In the case of transactions settled with equity instruments, both the services rendered
and the increase in net equity are measured at the fair value of the transferred equity
instruments, referring to the date of the granting agreement. If they are settled in
cash, the goods and services received, and the related liability are recognised at the
fair value of the latter, referred to the date on which the requirements for recognition
are met.

4.13. Joint arrangements

The Company books its investments in Joint Ventures (JVs) recognising on the
balance sheet proportionally, based on its share percentage, the portion of the assets
jointly controlled and of the liabilities jointly incurred. In addition, the portion of
income generated, and expenses incurred by the joint business and related to the
Company, and the expenses incurred in relation to its holding in the joint venture, are
proportionally recorded on the income statement. Similarly, the share that relates to
the Company in the amounts for items in the joint business is recorded on the
statement of changes in equity and on the statement of cash flows.
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Joint arrangements are considered as those in which there is a contractual agreement
or clauses in the articles of association to share control over an economic activity, in
such a way that strategic decisions, both financial and operational, related to the
activity require the unanimous consent of the Company and remaining parties.

Transactions, balances, income, expenses and reciprocal cash flows have been
removed proportionally based on the share percentage held by the Company in the
joint arrangement.

4.14. Related-party transactions

The Company carries out all its transactions with related parties on an arm’s length
basis. Additionally, the prices of operations with related parties are adequately
supported, so the Directors of the Company consider that there is no risk that might
lead to significant liabilities in future.

Transactions between group companies, except for those related to mergers, spin-
offs and non-cash contributions to businesses are recognised at the fair value of the
consideration given or received. The difference between this value and the agreed
amount is recorded in accordance with the underlying economic circumstances.

4.15. Current and non-current items

Current assets are those associated with the Company’s ordinary course of
operations, which is usually considered to be one year, and also other assets for
which the due date, disposal or realisation is expected to occur in the short term as
from or after the close of the financial year, and cash and cash equivalents. Any
other assets are classified as non-current.

In the same way, current liabilities are those associated with the Company’s ordinary
course of operations and in general all liabilities for which the due date or
cancellation will take place in the short term. Otherwise, liabilities are classified as
non-current.

4.16. Disposable non-current assets and groups of elements held for sale

The Company recognises under this heading disposable non-cutrent assets or groups
of elements at the carrying amount that will essentially be recovered through a sale
transaction, rather than for their continued use. To classify disposable non-current
assets or groups of elements as held for sale, these items must be available for
immediate disposal in their current conditions, subject only to standard sale
transaction terms; in addition, the derecognition of the asset must be considered to be
highly likely.

Disposable non-current assets or groups of elements classified as held for sale do not
amortise, but are valued at the carrying amount or at fair value less the sale costs,

whichever is the lowest.

The company recognises initial and subsequent losses for value impairment of the
assets classified in this category, charging it to the profit/(loss) of ongoing operations
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on the income statement, except in the case of discontinued operations. The losses of
a CGU for value impairment are recognised by reducing the goodwill assigned to the
CGU and then to the other non-current assets, pro-rata on the basis of the carrying
amount of the assets. Impairment losses of goodwill are not recoverable.

Profit for increases in fair value less sale costs are recognised in profit/{loss) up to
the limit of the accumulated impairment losses recognised in previous years, which
is either measured at the fair value less sale costs or by the impairment losses
recognised prior to the classification.

The Company measures non-current assets that are no longer classified as held for
sale, or that cease to belong to a disposable group of elements, at the carrying
amount before its classification less amortisation or depreciation that would have
been recognised if it had not been classified as such, or the recoverable value at the
re-classification date, whichever is the lowest. Valuation adjustments resulting from
such re-classification are recognised in the profit/(loss) from ongoing operations.

4.17. Business combinations

Business combinations carried out after 1 January 2010 are recognised by applying
the acquisition method established in Recognition and Measurement Standard 19
from the General Accounting Plan, as amended by article 4 of Royal Decree
1159/2010 which approves the standards for preparing consolidated financial
statements and amends the General Accounting Plan.

The Company applies the acquisition method for business combinations except for
mergers, spin-offs and non-cash contributions to business between group companies.

The acquisition date is the date on which the Company took over control of the
business acquired.

The cost of the business combination is determined at the acquisition date by the sum
of the fair values of the assets delivered, the liabilities incurred or assumed, the net
equity instruments issued and any contingent consideration that depends on future
events or compliance with certain conditions in exchange for control of the acquired
business.

The cost of the business combination excludes any disbursement that is not part of
the exchange for the acquired business. The costs related to the acquisitions are
recognised an expense as they are incurred.

The costs of issuing equity instruments and liability instruments are recognised
according to the measurement standards applied to these transactions.

The Company recognises the assets acquired and the liabilities assumed at their fair
value on the acquisition date. The liabilities assumed include contingent liabilities to
the extent that they represent present obligations arising from past events and their
fair value can be measured reliably. Likewise, the Company recognises
indemnification assets assigned by the seller at the same time and following the same
measurement criteria as the acquired business item subject to indemnification,
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considering the risk of insolvency and any other contractual limitation on the
indemnification amount as applicable.

The excess between the cost of the business combination and the net amount of the
assets acquired and the liabilities assumed is recorded as goodwill.

After evaluating the amount of the cost of the business combination and the net
amount of the assets acquired and the liabilities assumed, any negative difference
would lead to a reduction in the value of the intangible assets identified, the
measurement of which cannot be calculated by referencing it to an active market
(identifying the type of assets reduced, as applicable), and any asset assigned for a
contingent consideration and the residual value, as applicable, is recognised as a
negative difference for the asset on the income statement.

For business combinations carried out in stages, the excess between the cost of the
business combination, plus the fair value of the previous share in the business
acquired and the net amount of the assets acquired, and the liabilities assumed is
recorded as goodwill. After evaluating the amount of the cost of the business
combination plus the value assigned to the previous share and the net amount of the
assets acquired and the liabilities assumed, any negative difference would lead to a
reduction in the value of the intangible assets identified, the measurement of which
cannot be calculated by referencing it to an active market (identifying the type of
assets reduced, as applicable), and any asset assigned for a contingent consideration
and the residual value, as applicable, is recognised as a negative difference for the
asset on the income statement. The Company recognises the difference between the
fair value of the previous share in the business acquired and the carrying amount in
profit/(loss), according to its classification. Furthermore, the Company reclassifies
the amounts deferred in recognised revenue and expenses corresponding to the
previous share to profit/(loss) for the activity.

The Company determines the fair value of the previous share by taking the cost of
the business combination as the reference point.

On 28 July 2017 the Parent Company acquired the additional 50% of the
concessionaire Autovia de los Vifiedos, S.A. for 8,219 thousand euros; hence the
Group now holds 100% of this company and the consolidation method changes from
being consolidated using the equity method to being fully consolidated.

4.18. Cash and other cash equivalents

Cash and other cash equivalents include cash on hand and bank deposits on demand.
Other investments in short-term highly liquid investments are also included under
this concept provided they are easily convertible to given amounts of cash and that
they are subject to an insignificant risk of changes in value. Investments with
maturities of less than three months from the acquisition date are also included under
this heading.
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5. — Intangible assets

The movement in intangible assets of the balance sheet in financial years 2017 and
2016 was the following (in thousand euros):

COST ACCRUED AMORTISATION
o Total __ Total
Patents Software cost Patenis :  Software amortisation
Balance at 536 2565 3101 (536) (2,565) - 3100
31/12/2015 sl I : »
Additions or _ B _ _ B B
allocations
Balance at . 3 .
311272016 536 2565 3,101 (536) (2.565) (3,101}
Additions.or B . _ B
allocations
Bal t
wf;fzz;‘_, 536 2,565 3,101 (536) (2,565) (3,101)
Total intangible assets Cost - Total net
Balance at 31/12/2015 3,101 - (3,101)
Balance at 31/12/2016 3,101 (3,101)
Balance at 31/12/2017 3,101 @11

At the close of 2017 and 2016, the Company had fully amortised intangible asset
elements still in use, according to the following detail (in thousand euros):

amount amount

Description (gross) (gross)
2017 2016
Software 2,565 2,565
Patenits 536 536
“Total 3,101 3,101

At 31 December 2017 and 2016, intangible assets were fully amortised.
There were no firm commitments to buy intangible assets at the close of 2017. And
there were no firm commitments to sell intangible assets at 31 December 2017,

6. — Property, plant and equipment

The movement in Property, plant and equipment on the balance sheet in financial years

2017 and 2016, and the main information on this caption was the following (in thousand
euros):

N Pa_ge -

%




COS1 ACCRUEP AMORTISATION PROVISIONS
_ Other . __ . 7 Other' Totdl  Other  Total
]];::;g:gsl plant/fix. ?sstheet: Tg:: zﬁgm plant/fix 2‘:;:7 amortisa * plant/fix. provi-
& fiftmgs i M8 g fittings ) tion - & fittings sions
Balance at 31/12/2015 5,378 11,832 2,603 19313 (83)  (8,382)  (1.584) ({10,049} (1,879)  (1879)
) Additions.or ’ = - - ! s
_ allocations. 82 45 189 316 {109} (1,477 (3200 (1,906 - =
Balance at 31/12/2016 5,460 11877 2792 20,129 192) (9859  (1904) (11955) (1,879) (1,879
Additions. oc ' [ ! ‘ . : : J -
allocations - - = (09 (12D 75 (1.306) 1,879 1.879
, Removals —~  {5548) -~ (5548 = 5392 - 5,392
Balonce at 31/12017 54600 6329 2792 14581  (301)  (5589). (1979). (7.869) = -
_— Amortisation/ :
Total PPE Cost depreciation Provision Total net
Balance at 31/12/2015 19,813 {10,049) - (1,.879) 7885
Balance at 31/12/2016 20,129 (11,985) {1,879} 6.295
Balance at 31/12/2017 14,581 (7.869) - 6,712

The Company has real property the value of which, by land and buildings, at the close of

2017 and 2016, was as follows (in thousand curos):

o Balance at Balance at
RealEstate 4105 0017 3171212016
Land 1,466 4,466
Buildings 994 994

Total 5460 5,460

At the close of 2017 and 2016, the Company had fully amortised/depreciated property,
plant and equipment elements still in use, according to the following detail (in thousand

euros):
Carrying
o g amoung Bross
Description 31-/12/'(2017 )
Fixtures & fittings 1368
Other PPE 1,298
Total 2,666

Carrying
amount {gross)
3171272016
1,123
1,272
2,395

There were no firm commitments to buy PPE at the close of 2017. And there were no
firm commitments to sell PPE at 31 December 2017. At the date when these annual
financial statements were prepared there were no special circumstances that affected the
availability of PPE goods, such as litigation, embargo, fixed-term leasing or otherwise.

The Company’s policy is to take out insurance policies to cover the possible risks to
which the various PPE elements are exposed. The Directors consider that the covers in
place at the close of financial years 2017 and 2016 were adequate for the risks covered.
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7. - Leases

At the close of 2017 and 2016, the Company had operating leases with the following
regular payments under contract with the lessors, for the set of future years covered by
the contracts currently in force (in thousand euros):

Nominal * Nominal

Operating leases _ I
Less than one yeat 2,857 © 2,546
Betwien oné and five years 4,563 2,436
Over five years . - =
Total TAW . 4982

The amounts above do not include contingent payments such as a charge for common
expenses, future increases based on the CPI, or future updates on rents agreed on
contract.

The main operating lease contract held by the Company as a lessee at the close of
financial years 2017 and 2016 relates to the office building of 22,510 square metres
where it develops its activity, located at Avenida de Europa 18 in Alcobendas (Madrid).
The lease contract began on 15 December 1993 and the term of validity is for 25 years,
which has been extended until the end of 2020.

8. — Financial investments (long- and short-term)
8.1. Long-term financial investments

The movement in this caption on the balance sheet in financial years 2017 and 2016, and
the main information affecting this caption were the following (in thousand euros):

Equity Instrnments . Other
Value = term financial  Total
Cost  impair- Net carrying assets
ment B
Balance at LT _ _ 1 1
31/12/2015 1,058 (1,058): 1,213 1,213
Additions - 1,500 (605) 895 619 1.514
Removals = = , = (685) . (685)
Balance at i
311212016 2,558 {1,663) 895 1,147 . Z,II-I?
Additions - - s | 351 381
Removals ’ {1.500) 603 {895} {561y (1456)

There are no significant differences between the carrying amount and the fair value of financial
assets.

The items included in “Other long-term financial assets” related to guarantees and
deposits and to other long-term time period adjustments.
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Detail by category of the caption “Long-term financial investments” at 31 December
2017 and 2016 was the following (in thousand euros):

FY 2017 Long-term financial instruments
Equity Credits and
Categories / Classes- Instrikments ~  other Total
Investiients held o numaty - 398 398
Loans and itéms receivable and other - 539 539
Total - 937 937
FY 2016 Long-term financial instruments
" Equity Credits and
Categories 7 Classes Instruments other  Total
Investrtents held to maturity - 392 392
Loans-and ttenis receivable and other =y 755 75§
Avalsble-for-sale assets 895 -- 895
~ Total 895 1,147 2,042

Detail by maturity of the items included in “Long-term financial investments” was the
following (in thousand euros):

2023 and
2019 2026 202t 2022 subseguent ‘Total
‘ years _
Investments held to maturity 54 344 - - - 398
Loans and items receivable 422 - - 117 539
Total 476 M - 17 93
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8.2 Group companies, Joint Ventures and associates

8.2.1 Long-term investments in Group companies, Joint Ventures and associates

The movement in this caption on the balance sheet for 2017 and 2016 was the following
{(in thousand euros):

Balance at
31/12/2015
Investment 1 group
companies & 2,758 579
asspciates _
Investment in-group
companies & (1,014,078)
mssociates
Total Investinents
Net 1,744,501
companies & 103,537
Imparment Credisin .
group companies & (38,696)
assoclales — —
“Total Credits Net: 64841
Total investments
and Credi 1,809 342

Additions  Transfers
or {Note
allocations 3.2.2)

4204569 -
{216,002)  (358,474)
3988567 (358,474
13,113 2500
(9,350) (1,225)
Crdes 1215

399033  (357,199)

Rb .
miovals

(58.730)

61,114

2,364

(28,095) -

(28,095)

(25,731

BalamentAdd;E“m

311272016 Tocations
6,904,398

W50 (142.842)

5376958 -, (133,099)

89085 2041
@zry -
wmd  zea

5416742  (131,58)

9743 . .

Transfers Re-
(Note ®) movaly
(3,000)  (20,496)
339,532
(3,000) 319,036
- (56.160)
- 18024 -
- (38,136)
(3,000) 280,900

There are no significant differences between the carrying amount and the fair value of

financial assets.

a) Investments in Group companies, Joint Ventures and Associates:

Total investnents

m Group

compantes, Joint

Ventures and
Associates
Balance at
31/1272015
Balance at
3111272016
Balance at
311122017

2,758,579
6,904,398

6,896,140

Impairment

(1,014.078)
(1,527.440)

{1,333,245)

Tatal net

1,744,501
5,376,958

5,562,895

The main addition in 2017 corresponds to the purchase of an additional 50% in Autovia
de los Vifiedos, as detailed in section 4.17.

The removals are related to the non-cash contributions from the companies Sociedad
Concesionaria Novo Hospital de Vigo S.A., Acciopa Servicios Concesionales, S.L.,
Sociedad Concesionaria Hospital de Norte S.A., Nova Dérsena Esportiva de Bara S.A.,
Autovia de los Vifiedos S.A., Gran Hospital Can Misses S.A. and Sociedad
Conceionaria del Canal de Navarra S.A. to the group company Acciona Concesiones,

S.L.
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6,890,645

- (1,330,750)

5,559,895
34,936
(31,247)

5,563,584



The operation is part of a reorganisation process in the infrastructure division that began
in 2016, under which Acciona S.A. subscribed a capitat increase in Corporacién Acciona
Infraestructuras, S.L.U. for the amount of 761 million euros, as detailed in last year’s
financial statements.

With regards to the restructuring of the debt and equity of subsidiaries carried out by the
Group in 20186, the following operations were carried out:

Capital increase in Acciona Inmobiliaria S.L.U. for the amount of 1,311
million euros.

Capital increase in Corporacién Acciona Energias Renovables S.L.U. for
the amount of 1,143 million euros.

Capital increase in Acciona Financiacion de Filiales S.A.U. for the
amount of 412 million euros.

Capital increase in Acciona Logistica S.L.U. 275 million euros.
- Capital increase in Tictres S.A. for the amount of 13 million euros.
In addition, a relevant movement last year in this caption was the acquisition of 29.9%
of Nordex S.E., for 754 million euros, upon completion on 4 April 2016 of the
operations subscribed between the parties in October 2015. The sale of Mostostai to the
subsidiary Acciona Infraestructuras (now called Acciona Construccién) was another

significant operation in 2016.

Portfolio provisions

The forecasts for Corporacién Acciona Energias Renovables and Acciona Inmobilaria
have improved, resuiting in reversal in the provisions of 221 and 93 million,
respectively. The improved forecast in Corporacién Acciona Energias Renovables is
mainly driven by the new investments made at the end of 2016 in international projects
such as El Romero and San Gabriel in Chile, Bannur in India, El Cortijo in Mexico,
Mont Gellibrand in Australia, and Ripley in Canada. In Acciona Inmobiliaria, the
reversal has been caused by the improvements in the valuations of assets and the
expected growth that is being generated by the market.

Regarding the investments in Nordex, a company whose shares are traded on the
Frankfurt Stock Exchange, the decline in the share price experienced in recent months
has always been considered by the Group Management as an event that did not
necessarily constitute an impairment in the intrinsic value of the business nor of its
medium or long term financial rcturn, becavse the share in Nordex is a strategic
investment for the Acciona Group that aims to achieve synergies while maintaining a
relevant position in the wind generation value chain. On the other hand, there is no doubt
that the share price has been dragged by the markets’ disproportionate reactions to one-
off events that, on the other hand, have a broad impact on the sector.

However, the share price being at a level significantly below its carrying amount for a
prolonged period of time, along with a downward re-estimation of the forecasts recently
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announced by the company, has been regarded as a sign of impairment. Therefore, the
Acciona Group has carried out an impairment test to check whether the value of the
investment in use has dropped below its carrying amount. The result of the test is that
the value in use amounts to 623 million euros at 31 December 2017, and hence the
Group has an impairment of 145 million euros to align the investment value until it
reaches the 623 million euros indicated above.

The methodology for calculating the value in use is described in note 3.2.E), i.e., through
discounting the cash flows at a rate (WACC) which considers the risks inherent to the
company’s business as well as the different markets in which it operates. A cash flow
projection that covers a period of five years (2018-2022) has been calculated for this
discount operation along with a terminal value that represents the value of the future
cash flow from the sixth year which has been determined based on a standard cash flow
estimate. The cash flow projection has been based on the estimates that the Nordex’s
management team has made public, and on indicators obtained from external sources
specialised in the sector, producing results that are consistent with the historical
evolution of the entity.

With regard to the growth of sales used for the standard period, which serves as a basis
to calculate the terminal value (“g” parameter), a 1.5% growth has been estimated,
despite the existence of growth prospects in the sector in which Nordex operates that
support greater growth, among other reasons, due to the growing need for the
replacement of conventional energies. However, given the uncertainty associated with
projections for such large periods, it has been considered that 1.5% is a reasonable
growth rate.

For the discounted cash flows, an after-tax WACC rate of 7.2% has been considered.

Also, in order to strengthen the consistency and reasonableness of the test, sensitivity
analyses have been performed on changes reasonably expected to occur in the main
hypotheses. Thus, a variation of +/- 50 basic points in the WACC would produce an
additional impact on the impairment amount of +58 and -69 million euros, and a
variation of +- 50 basis points in the sales growth rate in the standard period (“g”)
would result in an additional impact on the impairment amount of -56 and +47 million
euros.

The main information about the Group companies, Joint Ventures and Associates at 31
December 2017 and 2016 is as contained in Annex I.

b) Long-term credits to Group companies, Joint Ventures and Associates

Long-term “Credits to Group companies, Joint Ventures and Associates” caption reflect
mainly the following subordinate or participative credits granted to investees, ail of them
granted on an arm’s length basis:

A participative loan to Sociedad Concesionaria Puente del Ebro, S.A. for
3 million euros, with due date on 30 December 2033.

- Subordinate loan to Infraestructuras y Radiales S.A for 26.5 million euros
and due date in October 2021.
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- A subordinate loan granted to the Mexican company Hospital de Leén
Bajio, S.A. de CV, for 85 million Mexican pesos (in euros: 4 million), as
part of the operation for financing given to this company for the
construction of the hospital of the same name. This loan is due on 10
October 2027.

- Subordinate loan to Sociedad Concesionaria A2 tramo 2 for 2 million
euros and due date in June 2025,

The main movement in 2016 was the cancellation of the loan with Acciona Inmobiliaria
for 25 million euros.

8.2.2 Short-term credits to Group companies, Joint Ventures and Associates, and other

short-term financial assets

The movement in this caption on the balance sheet for 2017 and 2016 was the following
(in thousand euros):

Credits te group
Cost companies and Total impairment Totat
Associates

Balance at 31/12/2015 3402339 d07,512) 2994827

Additions - = :

Transfers (Note $2.1) (2,500) 359.69% 357,199

Removals (3,388,148) 40,643 (3,347,505)

Balance at 31/12/2016 11,691 17.170) 4,521

Additions 814 - 814
Remoyals (624) - (624)

Balance at 31/12/2017 11,881 (7,170) 4,711

In 2017, balances receivable with Group companies have been reclassified due to
corporate tax. The amount comes 1o 34 million euros.

Significant movements took place in financial year 2016 related to the debt and capital
restructure described in section 8.2.1 above, as a result of which Acciona S.A. collected
certain credits with subsidiaries through the funds received via capital contribution. The
most relevant movements were:

- Collection of credits and interest with Corporacién Acciona Energias
Renovables, S.L. for 1,404 million euros.

- Collection of the loan and interest with Acciona Financiacién Filiales for
729 million euros for the cash & banks transferred through the cash pooling
system implemented by the Group in 2014,

Collection of the loan to Tictres S.A. for 13 million euros, as a result of the
capital increase in said company, as detailed in section 8.2.1.
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Collection of the loans and interest with Acciona Inmobiliaria S.L.U. for
680 million euros, as a result of the capital increase in said company, as
detailed in section 8.2.1.

- Collection of the loans granted to Acclona Logistica S.A. for the gross
amount of 414 million euros.

As regards the movement in impairment provisions, in financial year 2016 the
provisions related to the loans were transferred to portfolio provisions associated with
the capital increases.

This caption includes 33,751 thousand euros corresponding to debt items of Acciona,
S.A. with its subsidiaries, for belonging to the Tax Group as detailed in section 4.7.

8.2.3 Joint ventures

At 31 December 2017 and 2016, the Company had the following percentage shares in
Joint Ventures (JVs):

Name of Joint Venture Actiity ® Location
- Sta Cruz,
Ineuropa Handling, U.T E Airport services - 80% de
Tenerife
Ineuropa Handling e . . )
. Al_i_ca.ni:e, UTE | Airport services 80% Madrid
gti:rurgpa | Auport services  30% Madnd
Ineuropa Handling , .
Mallorea, UT.E, Alrport services 80% Madrid
Pasarela Bargjas, UTE Atrpert serviees 10% Madrid -

The Handling JVs are undergoing a liquidation process, after in financial year 2006 the
licences to operate in the airports of Madrid, Alicante and Tenerife were not renewed
and in financial year 2007 the activity of the other JVs whose concessions were held
(Mallorca, Menorca and Ibiza) was transferred to the Acciona Group company Airport
Services, S.A., 100% invested by Acciona, S.A. No materially adverse effect on the
Company is expected from the liquidation process.

The table below shows, in thousand euros, the attributable balances corresponding to the
JVs included in the financial statements of Acciona, S.A., at 31 December 2016. All the
Handling Vs are grouped together; their balances are of little significance as a result of
the liquidation process indicated in the paragraph above (in thousand euros):

ASSETS Amount LIABILITIES Amount
TOTAL NON-CURRENT ASSETS 74  Capita} and Teseives 15

' TOTAL NET EQUITY 15
Cash and cash equivalents 682 Ttade and otheraccounts payable 1
TOTAL CURRENT ASSETS 682 TOTAL CURRENT LIABILITIES 741
TOTAL. ASSETS 756 TOTAL LIABILITIES 756
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8.3 Information on the nature and risk level of financial instruments
Liguidity risk:

The Acciona Group manages the liquidity risk with prudence, keeping an adequate level
of cash and negotiable securities and with the arrangement of credit facilities undertaken
for a sufficient amount to support projected needs.

At 31 December 2017, the Group had a negative working capital for the amount of
1,494 million euros (1,094 million euros at 31 December 2016). As indicated in Note 1,
the Company is the parent company of a Group of companies that operate in different
business activity sectors. At 31 December 2017, the group showed gross operating
profit (allocations to amortisation/depreciation, changes in provisions, impairments and
results on disposal of assets and other gains and losses being discounted) of 1,275
million euros (1,192 million euros at 31 December 2016) and consolidated profit
attributable to Acciona S.A. as the Parent Company of 220 million euros (352 million
euros at 31 December 2016) (see Note 1). Additionally, in accordance with what is
indicated in Note 15 to the consolidated financial statements of the Acciona Group, at
31 December 2017 the Group companies had available cash & banks for 1,273 million
euros and also unused additional financing for 1,827 million euros (see Note 18 in the
consolidated financial statements).

Taking all these facts into consideration, the Directors of the Company consider that the
liquidity risk is quite reduced.

Ultimate responsibility for liquidity risk management lies with the General Economic
and Financiai Department, which prepares the appropriate framework to control the
Group’s liquidity requirements in the short, medium and long term. The Group
manages liquidity risk by holding adequate reserves, appropriate banking services,
having available loans and credit facilities, monitoring projected and actual cash flows
on an on-going basis and pairing them against financial asset and liability maturity
profiles.

Interest rate risk

Bank borrowings engaged by the Company means that the Company is exposed to
fluctuations in interest rates and this impact can be reduced on cenain occasions by
engaging derivative financial instruments for hedging (see Note 4.5.4). This risk is
managed by the Group’s Economic and Financial Department, with non-speculative
hedge criteria being applied.

in order to be able to analyse the effect that a possible fluctuation in interest rates might
have on the Company’s accounts, a simulation was performed which assumed a 50-
basis point increase and decrease in interest rates at 31 December 2017 over floating
rate debt.

This sensitivity analysis to upward or downward changes of 0.50% in floating Euribor /
Libor interest rates gave rise to a sensitivity in the Group’s income statement arising
from an increase or decrease in financial results due to interest payment, with the effect
of derivatives being considered, of 1,368 thousand euros at 31 December 2017.
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Credit risk

Credit risk is the risk that the counterparty to @ contract does not meet its obligations,
giving rise to a financial loss for the Company. The Company has adopted a policy of
only negotiating with group companies so this risk is practically remote.

9. Non-current assets held for sale

On 25 October 2017, Acciona, S.A. signed a purchase agreement with Anarafe, S.L.U.,
a company belonging to the Naviera Armas Group, for all the stakeholdings that the
Group holds in the Compafifa Trasmediterranea subgroup, which amounts to 92.71% of
its share capital. This agreement involves recognising an enterprise value for 100% of
the Compafifa Trasmediterranea subgroup of between 419 and 436 million euros, based
on the level of achievement of an earn out agreed with the purchaser which is linked to
the achievement of the EBITDA objectives. This operation is subject to a single
condition precedent regarding achieving authorisation from Spanish competition
authorities. The Group hopes to achieve this authorisation in the short term. Therefore,
the Company's share in Compafiia Trasmediterranea of 3,000 thousand euros at 31
December 2017 has been classified as held for sale.

10. Cash & Banks and other cash equivalents

Detail of the accounts in “Cash & Banks and other cash equivalents” at the close of 2017
and 2016 was as follows (in thousand euros):

31/12/2017 * 31/12/2016
Cash and banks ; 1,280 3814
Total ] 1,280 3814

The Company invests its liquidity excess in remunerated accounts so as to obtain a
market return. There are no restrictions as to the availability of those amounts.

11. Net equity

11.1. Capital

At 31 December 2017 and 2016, the share capital of the Company amounted to 57,260
thousand euros, represented by 57,259,550 shares with a face value of 1 euro each, all of
the same class, fully subscribed and paid up.

The table below shows, following the notifications received by the Company, the
holders of significant direct and indirect interests in the share capital at 31 December
2017 and 2016:
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31A22017 317122016

Tussen de Grachiten, BV 27.80% 27.80%
Wit Exropesse Investermg, BV(%) 2839% 28.23%
Capital Research and — 4:07%
Management Company. (**)

(*) On 26 January 2018, the family Group of Mr. José Maria Entrecanales de Azcérate
informed of the internal reorganisation carried out in the investment company that
centralises Acciona, S.A. shares, under which La Verdosa S.L has become a direct
holder of 5.31 % of Acciona. After this reorganisation, the investment company Wit
Europesse Investering, B.V. Holds 25.01% of Acciona, S.A.

(**) Indirect holder of the ownership interest. The decrease in indirect ownership of this
sharchelder brought about the communication received on 213 March 2017 informing
that its share in Acciona S.A. fell below 3%, and which previously amounted to 4.07%
of the share capital.

112, Legal reserve

In accordance with the consolidated text of the Capital Companies Act, an amount
equivalent to 10% of the year’s profit must be applied to legal reserve until this reserve
reaches at least 20% of the share capital. The legal reserve can be used to increase
capital provided that the remaining reserve balance does not fall below 10% of the
capital already increased. Otherwise, until the legal reserve exceeds 20% of share
capital, it can only be used to offset losses, provided that sufficient other reserves are not
available for this purpose.

At the close of financial years 2017 and 2016, this reserve was fully set up.

11.3. Issue premium

The balance in the “Issue Premium” account was due to the capital increases with issue
premium on different dates. The consolidated text of the Capital Companies Act
expressly permits the use of the share premium account balance to increase capital and
does not establish any specific restrictions as to the use of said balance.

11.4. Other reserves
The main variation in “Other reserves” was due to the impact of non-cash contributions
made in the course of the year on account of the capital increase of Corporacién Acciona
Infraestructuras S.L.U. discussed in section 8.2.1, as well as what is described in Note

13.2 “Debentures bonds and negotiable securities” in relation to the repurchase of
convertible bonds.

11.5. Treasury stock

The movement in treasury stock in 2017 and 2016 was the following, in thousand euros:
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Number shares Cost
Balance at 31/12/2615 302460- 19,527
Additions Licquidity Contract - 4992255 . 338284
Removals Liquidity Contract (49871.221) (338300)
Movements liquidity contract 5,034 (16}
. ‘Other addifiors = =
Other removals (91,596) (5.819)
Other movements 0159) (5819)
Balance at 31/12/2016 215898 13,692
Additions Liguidity Contract 3395430 253,160
Removals Ligmdity Contract (3.392,916) (253,024)
‘Movements liquidity contract 2514 136
Additions 03/05/2017 (*) 221,357 - 16,569
Other additions 96,001 - 6,370
* Other removals (484,068) (33,622)
Other movements (A72,710) 10,683)
Balance at 31/12/2017 . 45702 3,145
™ Specific acquisition to meet the convertible bond conversion
requirements

At 31 December 2017 and 2016, the Company had treasury stock in its power according
to the following detail:

Average Acquisition

No. of Face value acquisition total cost

shares (enros) price {thousand

o euros) ewros) -
Treasury stock at 31/122016 215898 ©  215898°° 6342 13,692
Treasury stock at 31/12/2017 45,702 45,702 68 84 3146

On 3 July 2015 Acciona, S.A. reported subscription of a liquidity contract with
Bestinver Sociedad de Valores, S.A. for the management of its treasury stock. The
company’s stock operations carried out by Bestinver within the framework of this
contract take place on the Spanish stock exchanges and the purpose is to increase the
liquidity of transactions and the stability of the trading price. On 10 July 2017, Acciona,
S.A. cancelled said liquidity contract and on the same date, the Company signed a new
liquidity contract with the terms detailed in Circular 1/2017 of the Spanish National
Securities Market Commission (CNMV) for the purposes of their acceptance as a market
practice. The cash accounts and securities accounts that were associated with the
cancelled liquidity contract and amounted to 44,328 shares and 3,539,114.85 euros have
been used to allocate cash and securities to the new liquidity contract, adjusting the
amount in cash to the trading value of the shares assigned to the new contract, in
accordance with the limits established in the new CNMV circular, which have been set
at 44,328 shares and 3,340,000 euros.

At 31 December 2017 the shares under the liquidity contract lost 61 thousand euros,
which was recognised in reserves caption,
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As regards other movements, 484,068 shares were retired in 2017. The main movement
in the period corresponds to the conversions associated with the early amortisation of the
Convertible Bond, which has resulted in a reduction of 279,965 shares with a loss
reflected in the reserves caption amounting to 2,484 thousand euros. To carry out this
operation, the liquidity contract was temporarily suspended on 3 May 2017 and 221,357
shares at 74.85 euros each were acquired on the market.

Two block purchases were carried out on 18 December 2017 comprising a total package
of 90,000 Acciona, S.A. treasury shares, representing 0.157% of the share capital at a
price of 70.78 euros per share. These acquisitions came with an operation to deliver
104,096 shares to Executive Directors under the Performance Shares Plan (see Note
17.3).

The remaining shares retired, 100,006 shares, relate to the shares delivered to the
Group’s management. This delivery took place under the Share Delivery Plan and the
variable remuneration Replacement Plan (see Note 17.3).

The profit reflected in reserves caption for these operations amounted to 1,154 thousand
euros.

12. Provisions and contingencies

Detail of provisions on the balance sheet at 31 December 2017 and 2016, and the main
movements in the financial year were as follows (in thousand euros):

Long-term provisions Amount
Balance at31/12/2015 255,446
Allocations 21,437
Applications & reversions (103,295)
Transfer to $/T (7,295)
Balunce at 31/12/2016 166,293
Allocations 11.926
Applications & reversions GBZHD
Balance at 31/12/2017 125,502

This caption includes provisions covering liabilities that could arise from various legal
disputes, appeals, contested cases and obligations still unresolved at the close of the
year.

13. Financial liabilities
13.1.  Bank borrowings

The balance of short- and long-term bank borrowings at the close of financial years 2017
and 2016 was as follows (in thousand euros):
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2017 2016
LT S/T LT S/T

Bank borrowmes 316,527 213041 431,170 92,192

Detail at 31 December 2017 by due date of the items in “Long-term bank borrowings”
was as follows (in thousand euros}:

Bank
borrowings

1/T bank
borrowings
borrowihgs
Total Bank

2023 and
snbsequent
2019 2020 2021 2022 years Total
171,736 54,077 90,714 = 316,527

The table below shows the mavements in bank borrowings in 2017 and 2016:

Balance at

Balance at . ™
31/12/2015 Additions Removals Tramsfers 3, ..001¢ Additions Removals Transfers

209,666
57,252

266,918

260,092 - (38,588) 431,170 67000  (50.143)  (131,500)
49,580 (53.228) 38,588 92,192 46114 (56,765) 131,500

309672 (53,228 = 523362 113,114  (106908)

The main movements in financial year 2017 related to:

D

i)

Signature of two financing contracts with the purpose of financing green
projects, for a total amount of 67 million euros and accruing market interest
rates.

Several short-term loans to finance tax payments.

The main movements in financial year 2016 related to:

i)

i)

Signature of a financing contract under the “Schuldschein” loan model, for
the amount of 150 million euros and with the purpose of financing Green
projects; it is structured in tiers with due date to 3 and 5 years and accruing
market interest rates.

Three loans with different entities for the amounts of 70, 50 and 40 million
euros on an arm’s length basis.
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The Company has loans granted by the European Investment Bank for the amount of
150 million euros, 50 million of which are to be repaid in 2018. The due date of the
loans is between 2020 and 2021.

The Company is under an obligation to meet certain economic and equity ratios related
to the Group’s consolidated accounts, these ratios were met at 31 December 2017 and
2016. Similarly, no default is expected for 2018.

Acciona S.A. did not have any corporate credit policies at the close of financial years
2017 and 2016.

The finance costs associated with financing this kind of products were 12,471 thousand
euros in 2017 (9,938 thousand euros in 2016).

At 31 December 2017 and 2016 none of the subsidiaries the financing of which Acciona,
S.A. guarantees was in default of its financial obligations or any other obligation that
could lead to early termination of its financial commitments.

In addition, in financial years 2017 and 2016, there were no defaults or any other non-
payments of principal, interest or repayments in respect of interest bearing borrowings.

132,  Debentures, bonds and negotiable securities

The balance of the accounts for short- and long-term debentures, bonds and negotiable
securitics at the close of 2017 and 2016 was as follows (in thousand euros):

2017 2016
LT ST R ST

penereitcy buldaind 194,609 18226 308342 39667

negotiable securities

Detail at 31 December 2017 and 2016 by due date was as follows (in thousand euros):

2023 and
subsequent
2019 2020 2621 2022 years Total
132,696  (150) (150) (150) 62,363 194,609

At 31 December 2017 and 2016, details of the issues making up the balance for this
heading were as follows:

- On 16 January 2017, the company reported its intention to repurchase up to 108.4
million euros of the total face value of its bonds convertible to shares issued by Acciona,
S.A. in 2014, and which accounted for the total of bonds outstanding that the Company
did not have as part of its treasury stock afier the repurchases made in the previous vear.
After this operation, Acciona holds 95.26% of the convertible bonds issued, equivalent
to 409 miliion euros.
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In addition, during February and May 2017, 39,050 shares have been delivered to the
bondholders who have exercised their right to convert them according to the terms and
conditions of the issuance, assuming the cancellation of 0.68 % of the convertible bond.
(See Note 16.c).

On 20 June of 2017, the partial cancellation of 95.26% of the convertible bond is
reached and the total amount of convertible financial debt debentures is proceeded to be
cancelled as presented by the Acciona Group according to IAS 32, recording an impact
of 36 million on reserves and of 4.3 million euros on the income statement for the
period.

On 1 August 2017, the “Clean Up Call” clause was exercised, which was contained in
the contract to effectively convert an additional 4.01% of the bond by delivering 240,915
shares, the remaining 0.06% of the bond was cancelled by bank transfer according to the
terms contained in the contract.

- Issue by Acciona, S.A. in April 2014 of simple bearer debentures through a private
placement, in the amount of 62.7 million euros and maturing in 2024. The face value of
each debenture is 100,000 euros and they accrue a coupon at 5.55% annual interest
payable on an annual basis . At 31 December 2017, the balances recorded for these
simple debentures on the accounts for non-current and current bonds and debentures, net
of the transaction costs and considering the interest accrued, amounted to 61.8 and 2.5
million euros, respectively.

- Fixed-interest securities issue programme - Euro Medium Term Note Programme
(EMTN) for a maximum amount of up to 1,000 million euros, which was renewed in
2015 by Acciona Financiacién de Filiales, S.A., where Acciona S.A. is now the
guarantor. In relation to this programme, the Group prepared a base leaflet that was
approved by the Central Bank of Ireland. The securities issued under this programme
may: accrue fixed or variable interest, be issued in euros or in another currency and at
par, below par and premium and have different maturity dates. At 31 December 2017 the
balances registered in Accions, S.A. against this EMTN programme in the non-current
and current debentures and bonds accounts, net of transactions costs and considering
interest accrued, amounted to 132.8 and 15.7 million euros, respectively. These issues
accrue annual interest ranging from 3.6% to 4.625%, payable on an annual basis.

At the close of the financial year there were no issues convertible into shares other than
the issue discussed in the paragraphs above, or issues granting rights or privileges that
might, in the event of a contingency, make them convertible into shares of Acciona, S.A.

The finance costs associated with this kind of products were 18,214 thousand euros
(34,051 thousand euros in 2016).

13.3. Average period for payment to suppliers

The table below details the information required by Final Provision Two of Act 31/2014,
of 3 December, as prepared following application of Resolution dated 29 January 2016
by the Spanish Accounting and Audit Institute. This information refers only to Spain,
where this regulation is applicable,
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Average payment period and payments miade and 2017 2016
outstanding at the closing date of the balance sheet

. Days Days
Average period of paymentto supplicrs 59.29 43.99
Patd operations ratio 55.08 41.09
Unpaid operations ratio. 91:84 63.32
Amount (in Amount {in
thousand euros)  thousand euros)
Toial payments made 74752 60,671
Total payments outstanding 9.743 9678

“Average period of payment to suppliers” reters to the time that elapses from delivery of
goods or provision of services by a supplier to payment of the operation.

The “Average period of payment to suppliers™ is calculated as the quotient whose
numerator is the result of adding the paid operations ratio by the total amount of
payments made to suppliers plus the operations outstanding ratio by the total amount of
payments outstanding and whose denominator is the total amount of payments made and
payments outstanding.

The “Paid operations ratio” is calculated as the quotient whose numerator is the sum of
the products related to the amounts paid, by the number of payment days (calendar days
elapsed as from the time when the period begins to run up to actual payment of the
operation) and whose denominator is the total amount of payments made.

And the “Unpaid operations ratio” refers to the quotient whose numerator is the sum of
the products related to the amounts outstanding, by the number of payment outstanding
days (calendar days elapsed as from the time when the period begins to run up to the

closing of annual accounts) and whose denominator is the total amount of payments
outstanding.

14. Public Entities and Tax matters
14.1. Current balances with Public Entities

Current balances with Public Entities at 31 December 2017 and 2016 were as follows (in
thousand euros):

Balances receivable

Item 2017 2016
Current tax assets 95,193 56,577
Inland Revenue — recetvable for VAT 378 13
' Total ' 95511 56,590

Current tax assets show the projected amount to be returned for the 2017 tax form.
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Balances payable

Item 2017 - 2016
Withholdings ' . 4462 ¢ 768
Social security bodies - payable . 409 . 35%
Iniand revenue — Paysble for VAT 133260 2,995

Total 18,197 - 4,118

142, Reconciliation of the accounting resuit and the taxable base

Reconciliation between the accounting result and the separate tax base for Corporate Tax
at 31 December 2017 and 2016 was as follows:

FY 2017 } Thousand euros
Increases Decreases ~ Total
Accounting result before tax 169,694
Permanent adjustmients o tax-base 159.818.°  (501316) . (341498)
Temporary adjustments to tax base: 76,114 (23,188) 52926
 Origmated inthe year* 67,625 S 67,625
Originated in previcus years 8489 (23,188) (14,699)
Taxable base ' (118,878)

The positive permanent adjustments to the tax base in 2017 mainly related to the
impairment of the share in Nordex-AWP (see Note 8.2.1) and to other non-deductible
provisions. As negative effect, it is noticed the reversal of non-deductible provisions and
portfolio impairments, as well as the exemption of dividends received to avoid double
taxation.

The positive temporary adjustments correspond to the reversal of portfolio provisions
according to Royal Decree Law 3/2016 and the charges to provisions for risk and long-
term remuneration of staff. Negative adjustments are associated with the application of
net excess non-deductible finance costs from 2016 and other non-deductible provisions.

- FY 2018 - - - ‘Thousand euros

Increasés  Decréases Total |
Accoonting resnlt before tax _ 390,327
Permanent adjustments to tax base 202440 (680,388) (387,948)
Temporary adjustments to tax base: 33.423 (101,948) (68,525)
Originated i the year: ' 32,226 = 32226
. Onginated i previows years 1,197 (101,948} (100,751
Taxablebase S (66,146)

The negative permanent adjustments to the tax base in 2017 mainly related to the tax-
free gains obtained from the Nordex-AWP operation (see Note 9), tax exemption for the
dividends received in order to avoid double taxation and, on the positive side, the
allocations for portfolio impairment and other non-deductible provisions.

And temporary adjustments to the tax base mainly related to the reversion of provisions
for obligations allocated in previous years and, on the positive side, to the limitation to
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deductibility of finance costs and the allocation of provisions for personnel
remuneration.

14.3. Taxes recognised in Equity

Detail of taxes recognised directly in equity at 31 December 2017 and 2016 was as
follows (in thousand euros):

Balance at Balance at
01/01/2017 31/12/2017
For carrent tax: - = _
For deferred tax: ’ .
Hedge financial instruments
Total deferred tax = = =
Fotal tax directly recognised in
Equity

FY 2017 Encreases Decreases

Ralance at _ Balance at
oL0l201e ereases  Decreases g0 n00c

For current tax; - - - -
For deferred tax:
Hedge financial instruments
Total deferred tax - - - -
Totil tax directly recognised in
Equity iy

FY 2016

144. Reconciliation between the accounting result and the expense for
corporate tax

Reconciliation between the accounting result and the expense for Corporate Tax at 31
December 2017 and 2016 was as follows (in thousand euros):

2017 2016
Accounting result before tax 169,694 390,327
Tax charge at 25% 42,424 97,582
Impact permanent differences (60,630 (96.989)
Adjustments consolidated tanation (%) 24.744) -
Deductions. . (643) (496)
Fxpense CT abroad 88 --
Adjusted expenses for final tax and effect of 3,997 3.628
 fiscal reform (**) _
Total recognised expenses for tax (39,508) 3,725

(*) Includes the tax effect of the reversal of portfolio provisions in companies of the
previous Tax Group at 2013 and adjusted as non-deductible on consolidation.

(**) This concept includes the differences between the final Corporate Tax for 2016 and
the movement of the provision for long term taxes.
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14.5. Breakdown of expense for corporate tax

Breakdown of expense/income for corporate tax in financial years 2017 and 2016 was as
follows (in thousand euros):

_ 2017 2016
Current tax (30.363). 1 (18466)
Deferred tax © _ . (9.145) " 22,191
Total expense/(inicome) for tax (@9,508) 3,725

14.6. Recognised deferred tax assets

Detail of the balance in this account at the close of 2017 and 2016 was the foltowing (in
thousand euros):

. .wta;";’;)fmmm Bady o517 2018
Provisions for liabilities dnd other adjustments 15079 16571
Hedge derivative ipsfruments = P e
Tax credits peding and other 145008 174,105
Tax credit for tax loss carryforwards 59,018 51,366

- Total deferred tax assets 219005 242,042

Movements in financial year 2017 in relation to tax credits pending application, broken
down by item and deadline for application, in thousand euros, were as follows:

Balance 0T e Balance  Applic.

L 2016 “(‘3)“' Additions Removels 017" geaatines
Fofe__i'gn:mx credits pending 1,030 - 1,528 2558 Indefinite
application .
Other credits Corp. Tax 173,075
Credit for reinvestment 55,685 (30,383) 25302 +15 years
Credit for RED&I 88625  (5,508) 2,526 85643  + 18 years
Credit for assets export. =~ - ' + 15 years
ci‘g't‘smmf‘f‘ft"elat“d 1435 1366 ) 1572 +15 yours
Other tax credits A09 . (479 1553 15783 +15yeas
TOTAL 174,105 (34,7048 . 5,607 145,008

(*) Removal of various companies from the tax group and adjustments on final tax form
and inspection for 2010-2012.

The deferred tax assets indicated above were recognised on the balance sheet as the

Directors of the Company considered that, according to the best estimate about the
Company’s future results, the assets in question were likely to be recovered.
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Corporate Tax Act 27/2014, of 27 November, eliminated, effective 1 January 2015, the
deadline to offset tax loss carryforwards, which was set at 18 years, so this period is now
unlimited.

This Act also eliminated the dcadline for offsetting double taxation credits pending
application from previous years, so now the period is unlimited, as provided for in article
39 of Act 27/2014, which extended the general period to offset other deductions to 15
vears, except for R&D+I which was extended to 18 years.

14.7. Deferred tax liabilities

Detail of the balance in this account at the close of 2017 and 2016 was the following (in
thousand euros):

Deductible temporary differences .
 (Deferred taxes): 2017 2016
Portfolio impairments -~ 9,975
Tetal deferred tax liabilities - 9975

This balance includes the total amount of deferred tax liability related to portfolio
impairment pending reversion that, at the very least must be done in the next five years,
including 2016, as established in Royal Decree-Law 3/2016. For quantification of this
tax liability, the specific situations of each impairment of the securities representing the
sharcholding in capital or in capital and reserves of the investees that were fiscally
deductible were considered, as well as potential legal or contractual restrictions or
otherwise in connection to possible transferability of such shareholdings.

4.3. Years open to review by the tax authorities

As indicated in Note 4.7, Acciona, S.A. is allowed to apply the special tax system under
the Corporate Tax regulations for tax groups, acting as the Parent Company. Fiscal
group 30/96 includes the subsidiaries that meet the requirements set by the regulations in
force.

Effective 1 January 2008, the Company decided to apply the special system for VAT
Company Groups, as set forth in Chapter IX under Title IX of Act 37/1992, of 28
December, on Value Added Tax, for which the parent company is Acciona, S.A.

Years subject to tax review:

On 10 March 2012, tax audits were initiated in relation to Corporate Tax for 2007-2009
by the inspection services from the Central Office for High-Income Taxpayers, against
both the parent company, Acciona, S.A., and other subsidiaries. In addition to the review
of the Tax Group’s corporate tax for those years, the Company Group for Value Added
Tax (VAT Group) was under review for 2008 and 2009 and for other taxes for 2008 and
2009 of the Group companies subject to the tax review.

During these actions and on the occasion of the review of the withholdings effected on

payment of dividends, this partial review was extended to financial years 2010, 2011 and
2012 and also included the reverse merger operation involving Grupo Entrecanales, S.A.
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and its subsidiaries taken over by Acciona, S.A. on 11 July 2011. The tax inspectors
accepted the existence of valid economic grounds for the merger operation and its
inclusion within the special tax system for mergers, spin-offs, contributions of assets and
securities swaps.

The inspectors, for their part, queried the fulfilment of the requirements for application
of the exemption in the payment of dividends for one of the non-resident shareholders,
in particular, the requirements of holding the status of effective beneficiary, and this led
to the signing of the contested tax assessments. On 3 and 17 July 2014, the Company
lodged economic and administrative appeals at the Central Economic Administrative
Court. On 29 May 2015 the Company reached an agreement with the shareholder that
received the dividends so as to proceed to pay said amount, with settlement of the tax
debt upon the shareholder’s payment.

The other inspection actions concluded on 12 June 2014 with the signing of uncontested
assessments for Corporate Tax for 2007-2009 and without any tax due, uncontested
conclusions for VAT with the regularisation of Acciona’s differentiated activity sectors
as a “mixed holding” (without fine), with application of part of the provisions allocated
in Acciona, S.A., as well as contested assessments for Personal Income Tax
withholdings relating to compensation for dismissal. The Group companies lodged
economic and administrative appeals at the Central Economic Administrative Court. On
19 October 2015 this Court notified dismissal of the claims filed by Acciona
Construccion, confirming settlement of the assessments for withholdings for the 2008 to
2011 periods, as well as the relevant fine proceedings. On 3 December 2015, an appeal
was filed for judicial review at the National Appellate Court; this matter is still pending
a vote and decision. It is estimated that the risk that the proposed fines will be approved
is possible.

With regards to Value Added Tax, the company heading the VAT company group
(Acciona, S.A.) agreed to and signed the tax assessment dated 29 April 2014 for
financial years-periods 2008 to January 2010, regularising the input VAT deductible due
to the “mixed holding” condition of the company.

On 21 May 2015 the Central Office of High-Income Taxpayers notified the start of
inspection actions in relation to Corporate Tax for financial years 2010-2012, targeting
Acciona, S.A., as the parent company of the Group, and several subsidiaries. In addition
to review of Corporate Tax of the Tax Group for said years, it has included the VAT
Company Group, years 2011, 2012 and 2013, and any other taxes for the years/periods
from 04/2011 to 12/2012 of the Group companies under tax review. These inspections
were concluded on 16 May 2017 with the signing of uncontested conclusions for VAT
and uncontested assessments for Corporate Tax without any fines. No fees had to be
paid for these activities, but rather the regularisation imposes a reduction in the tax
credits related to deductions pending application.

As a result of the development of all these tax review procedures, the group applied in
2017 part of the provisions earmarked in previous years for this purpose (see Note 12).

At 31 December 2016, the years that had not lapsed and that had not been reviewed were

subject to review by the tax authorities, both for Corporate Tax and for the other main
taxes applicable to the companies in the consolidated tax group. In general, the other
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Spanish consolidated companies have the last four years open for review by the tax
authorities for the main taxes applicable thereto.

As tax legislation can be interpreted in different ways, the outcome of the tax audits that
could be conducted by the tax authorities in the future for the years subjeci to
verification might give rise to tax liabilities which cannot be objectively quantified at the
present time. However, the possibility of material liabilities arising in this connection
additional to those already recognised is remote, and the directors of Acciona S.A.
Consider that the liabilities that might arise would not have a material effect on the
equity of the Acciona Group.

14.9. Information to include in the Notes under application of sect. 42 of the
consolidated text of the Corporate Tax Act, related to tax credits for
reinvestment of extraordinary profit

The Corporate Tax legislation for the time being in force establishes various fiscal
incentives with the purpose of promoting certain investments. The company applied the
fiscal incentives provided for in said legisiation.

In financial years 2008, 2011 and 2014, Acciona, S.A., as the Parent Company, together
with other subsidiaries in the Tax Group availed themselves of the tax credit for
reinvestment of extraordinary income provided for by Article 42 of Royal Legislative
Decree 4/2004 on the consolidated text of the Corporate Tax Act, regulated since 1
January 2015 by the Twenty-Fourth Temporary Provision of Act 27/2014. The
Company’s income qualifying for this tax credit amounted to 139,075, 71,341 and 3,726
thousand euros, respectively. The reinvestment took place in the same years in which
capital gains were generated. The equity elements reinvested were as listed in the
Corporate Tax regulations, that is, property, plant and equipment, intangible assets,
investment property and securities representing sharcholdings of no less than 5% in the
share capital or capital and reserves of all types of companies. The extraordinary income
was reinvested by the companies belonging to Tax Group 30/96.

Pursuant to sub-section 10 in section 42 of the consolidated text of the Corporate Tax
Act, regulated by the Twenty-Fourth Temporary Provision of Act 27/2014, this
information must be disclosed in the notes to the financial statements as long as the
period for which the assets must be held, as established in sub-section 8 of section 42, is
not fulfilled.

14.10. Information to include in the Notes to annual financial statements
under application of section 86 of Corporate Tax Ac 27/2014 on operations
with preferential tax treatment.

In accordance with the provisions contained in section 86 of Corporate Tax Act 27/2014,
certain Group companies applied the Special System for mergers, spin-offs, contribution
of assets and securities swaps, for the operations detailed below, in which Acciona, S.A.
took part as contributing company and as legal person and member.
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- Merger with backdated effects 1 January 2008 of the companies Edlica de
Belorado, S.L. and Energias del Cantabrico, S.L. (merged companies) and
Eolica de Sanabria, S.L. (merging company).

- Merger with backdated effects 1 January 2008 of the company Explotaciones
Eélicas Monte Endino, S.L. (merged company) and Corporacién Eélica de
Zamora, S.L. (merging company).

- Merger with backdated effects 1 January 2008 of the company Ensenada de
Renovables, S.L. (inerged company) and Corporacién E6lica Manzanedo, S.L.

{merging company).

- Merger with backdated effects 1 January 2008 of the company Corporacién
Eélica Palentina, S.L. (merged company) and Corporacion Eélica de Barruelo,
S.L. (merging company).

- Merger with backdated effects 1 January 2008 of the company Corporacion
Eélica del Duero, S.L. (merged company) and Sistemas Energéticos Valle del
Sedano, S.A. (merging company).

- Merger with backdated effects 1 January 2008 of the companies Energea
Cogeneracién y Térmico, S.L., Argoras Energia, S.L. and Asturalter, S.L.
(merged companies) and Terranova Energy Corporation, S.A. (merging
company).

- Merger with backdated effects 1 January 2008 of the companies Yagonova,
S.L., Parque Eélico de Fonteavia, S.L., Parque Edlica de Goa, 5.L., Parque
Eélico Celada IILS.L., Parque Eélico Celada V, S.L., Parque Eélico Encinedo,
S.L., Parque Eélico El Cuadrén, S.L., Ef Endino Eélica, S.L., Parque Eélico de
Angostillos, S.L., Eélicas de Montellano, S.L., Renovables de Valdeoléa, S.L.,
Corporacién Eélica Los Alcafiices, S.L., Ingenierfa de Energia Renovable,
S.A.U and Eélica de Pisuerga, S.L. (merged companies) and Ce6lica Hispania,
S.L. (merging company).

- Merger with backdated effects 1 January 2008 of the company Sistemas
Energéticos de Roa, S.L.U (merged company) and Parque Eélico Cinseiro,
S.L. (merging company).

- Special non-cash contribution of assets effective 2 October 2008, by the
company Acciona, S.A (contributing company) to the company Acciona
Aparcamientos, S.L (acquiring company).

- Non-cash contribution of branch of activity with backdated effect 31 March
2008 by the company Acciona Biocombustibles, S.A. (contributing company)
to the company Estacién de Servicio Legarda, S.L (acquiring company).

- Special non-cash contribution of assets effective 1 October 2008, by the
company Acciona Inmobiliaria, S.L (contributing company) to the company
Valgrand 6, S.A.U. (acquiring company).




Partial tinancial split of the shareholding in Acciona Windpower, S.A., with
backdated effect 1 January 2008, by the company Acciona Energia, S.A.
{transferor) to Corporacién Acciona Windpower, S.L. (acquiring company).

- Partial financial split of the shareholding in Acciona Eélica de Galicia. S.A.,

with backdated effect 1 September 2008, by the company Ineuropa de
Cogeneracion, S.A.U. (transferor) to Corporacién Acciona Energias
Renovables, S.L.U. (acquiring company), documented in deed dated 16
January 2009.

- Non-cash contribution of shareholdings in Ceatesalas, S.L.U, Acciona Energia,

S.A.U.,, KW Tarifa, S.A.U. Alabe Sociedad de Cogeneracioén, S.A.U. and
Ineuropa de Cogeneracion, S.A.U., by the company Acciona, S.A. (transferor)
to Corporacién Acciona Energias Renovables, S.L.U. (acquiring company),
documented in deed dated 7 April 2009, and effective 1 January 2009 for
accounting purposes.

Merger effective 1 January 2009 of the companies Altai Hoteles Condal,
S.L.U., Barcelona 2 Residencial, S.A.U., Construcciones Gumi, S.L., Gestion
de Servicios y Conservacién de Infraestructuras, S.L.U., Grupo Lar Gran
Sarrid, S.L.U., Montafia Residencial, S.A.U. and Necsohenar, $.A.U. (merged
companies) and the company Acciona Inmobiliaria, S.L.U. (merging
company), documented in deed dated 7 August 2009.

Merger of the company Caserio de Duefias, S.A. and Hijos de Antonio
Barcel6, S.A. (merging company), documented in deed dated 17 September
2010 and with backdated effects 1 January 2010.

Merger of the company AEPO, S.A.U. and Acciona Ingenieria, S.A. (formerly
Ibérica de Estudios ¢ Ingenieria) (merging company), documented in deed
dated 24 September 2010 and with backdated effect 1 January 2010.

Merger of the companies Grupo Entrecanales, S.A, Servicios Urbanos
Integrales, S.A., Tivafen, S.A.U. and Osmosis Internacional, S.A.U. (merged
companies) and Acciona, S.A. (merging company), documented in deed dated
11 July 2011 and backdated effect 1 January 2011.

Non-cash contribution of the shareholdings in Acciona Servicios Urbanos, S.L.
and Corporacién de Explotaciones y Servicios, S.A. by Acciona, S.A. to
Acciona Service, S.L., documented in deed dated 31 March 2014 and
backdated effect 1 January 2014,

Partial split due to segregation of assets and liabilities of Acciona Agua, S.A.
to Acciona Agua Servicios, S.L.U., documented in deed dated 30 June 2014
and backdated effect 1 January 2014,

Merger of the company P.E. Topacios, S.A. and Alabe Sociedad de
Cogeneracién, S.A. (merging company), documented in deed dated 18
September 2014 and backdated effect 1 January 2014,
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Merger of tl’le company C.E. de Puerto Llano, S.L. and Global de Energias
Eélicas Al Andalus, S.A. (merging company), documented in deed dated 18
September 2014 and backdated effect 1 January 2014.

Merger of the company Eélica Gallega del Atléntico, S.L. and Eélica Breogén,
S.L. (merging company), documented in deed dated 18 September 2014 and
backdated effect 1 January 2014,

Merger of the companies C.E. de Barruelo, S.L. and C.E. de Manzanedo, S.L.
Puerto Llano, S.L. (merged companies) and Sistemas Energéticos Valle de
Sedano, S.A. (merging company), documented in deed dated 18 September
2014 and backdated effect 1 January 2014.

Merger of the company Toyonova, S.L. and Eurovento, S.L., documented in
deed dated 19 December 2014 and backdated effect 1 January 2014.

- Spin-off of the company Acciona Inmobiliaria, S.L. through segregation of the

part of its corporate equity that comprises a branch of activity, under the terms
set forth in section 71 of Act 3/2009, of 3 April, on Structural Modifications to
Mercantile Businesses, with the economic unit being transferred to the
beneficiary company Acciona Real Estate, $.A.U., documented in deed dated
30 September 2015.

- Merger of the company Global de Energfas Edlicas Al Andalus, S.A. and

Ceblica Hispania, S.L. (merging company), documented in deed dated 11
September 2015 and backdated effect 1 January 2015.

Special non-cash contribution by Acciona, S.A. to Acciona Service, S.L., of
the shareholdings in the companies Acciona Producciones y Disefio, S.A.,
Inetime, S.A., Acciona Airtport Services, S.A., Interurbano de Prensa, S.A.,
Acciona Forwarding, S.A. Transurme, S.A. and Paktivity, S.A., documented in
public deed dated 14 July 2016.

Merger of the companies Edlica de Sanabria, S.L., E6lica de Moncayo, S.L.,
Parque Eélico de Tortosa, S.L., Sistemas Energéticos El Granado, S.L. and
Corporacién Eolica Zamora, S.L. (merged companies) and the company
Sistemas Energéticos Valle de Sedano, S.A. (merging company), documented
in deed dated 8 September 2016 and with backdated effect 1 January 2016.

Special non-cash contribution by Acciona, S.A. to Corporacién Acciona
Infraestructuras, S.A., of the shareholdings in in Acciona Infraestructuras,
S.A., Acciona Service, S.L and Acciona Agua, S.A., documented in public
deed dated 2 December 2016.

- Merger of the companies Acciona Energia Solar, S.L. and Acciona Solar
Canarias, S.A. and by the company Acciona Solar, S.A. documented in deed
dated 27 July 2017 and with backdated effect of 1 January 2017.




Special non-cash contribution by Acciona Service, S.I.. to Acciona
Aeropuerios, S.L. of the stakeholding in the company Acciona Airport
Services, S.A,, documented in public deed dated 28 July 2017.

- Special non-cash contribution by Acciona, S.A. to Acciona Concesiones, S.L.
of the stakeholdings in the companies Sociedad Concesionaria Novo Hospital
de Vigo, S.A., Acciona Servicios Concesionales, S.L., Sociedad Concesionaria
Hospital del Norte, S.A., Nova Darsena Esportiva de Bara, S.A., Autovia de
los Vifiedos, S.A., Sociedad Anénima Concesionaria de la Junta de
Comunidades de Castilla La Mancha, Gran Hospital Can Misses, S.A. and
Sociedad Concesionaria de la Zona Regable del Canal de Navarra, S.A.,
documented in public deed dated 21 December 2017.

Pursuant to sub-section 3 of section 86 of Act 27/2014 on the consolidated text of the
Corporate Tax Act, the information required for operations carried out in previous years
appears in the relevant separate notes to financial statements as approved.

14.11.  Information to include in the notes to Sfinancial statements under
application of sect. 12.3 of the consolidated text aof the Corporate Tax Act in
relation to deduction for impairment losses on securities representing
shareholdings in the capital of companies and 16th Temporary Provision of
Act 27/2014, amended by Royal Legislative Decree 3/201 6, of 2 December.

Royal Legislative Decree 3/2016, of 2 December, amended the 16th Temporary
Provision of Corporate Tax Act 27/2016, which regulated the system to include in the
taxable base impairment losses in investments in group companies, joint and associates
(sect. 12.3 of the consolidated text of the Corporate Tax Act) deducted in tax periods
commencing before 1 January 2013. This amendment established 2 minimum annual
amount for reversion in five years (that is, 20% per year) of the balance at 31 December
2015, unless reversion on the recovery of capital and reserves of investees and/or
collected dividends is higher than that amount.

The information required under the tax regulations in relation to amounts deducted,
difference in the year of capital and reserves of investees, as well as amounts included in
the taxable base and amounts pending inclusion is indicated below.

1. - Amounts that reversed in financial year 2016:

Investee Reversion it
MBDBC:-Airport Consult 190 759.
Mostotal Warszawa 3914 13,172
Infraestructuras y Radiales S.A 4,086 16.345-
Nova Darsena Sportiva de Barg, S.A4 251 £,604
Sociedad Conc.Puente del Ebro, S.A. 532 2129
'Ecologia del Apus, S A 4 15
“Cia Tratamiento y Gestion Residuos Murcia 3 12
Parque Isla Mégiea, 5 A 139 519
Union Deportiva Las Palmas 1 2
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2. - Amounts that reversed in financial year 2017;

Investee Reversion g:ﬁ%;;
‘MDC Airport Consult 190 569-
Mostotal Warszawa 3,203 5879
.Infraestructuras y Radiales 5.A. 4;086 12,259
Nova Darsena Sportiva de Bara, S A 251 753
Sociedad Conc.Puenie-def Ebre, 5.A. 532 1,596
Ecologia del Agua, SA c 4 11
“Cfa:Tratamiento.y Gestién Residuos Murcia 3 9
Parque Isla Mégica, SA 130 389
Unién Deportiva Las Palmas 1 2

3.- Year’s difference in capital and reserves of the investee:

Cap.& reserves  Cap.& reserves Difference

[[ayestee at 31/122016=  at3U1X/2017* Cap.& reserves
MDC Airport Consult 4:262 4,262 0
Mostotal Warszawa - 20,873 11,605 (9,268)
Infracstructuras y Radiales S.A. (41:613) (41,613) 0
Nova Darsena Sportiva de Bara S A, (1,542) (1,634} (92}
Sociedad Conc.Puente del Ebro, 5.A. 363 363 i

% Capital and reserves adjusted at investment

15. Foreign currency

Detail of the main balances and transactions in foreign currency in financial years 2017
and 2016, measured at the closing exchange rate and average exchange rate,
respectively, were the following:

2017 2016
Loans granted 3,689 3,955
Accounts pavable . 160 3.068
Services received 1,962 1,550

16. Income and expenses

16.1. Net turnover
The Company, which heads its consolidated group, basically developed activities typical
of a holding company in 2017 and 2016, and, as such, it did not engage in any

significant commercial activity of its own, and, therefore, it does not have activity
segments, so the figure for turnover on the income statement mainly related to the
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services rendered to Group companies and income from dividends received from the
subsidiaries and financial income associated with the financing of the subsidiaries.

162, Personnel costs

Detail of personnel costs at 31 December 2017 and 2016 was as follows (in thousand
€uros):

2017 2016
Wages, salaries and similar 42290 42,346
Weltare charges 11,170 9.973
. Total 53,460 52,319

In financial years 2017 and 2016 “Wages, salaries and similar” included compensation
for the amount of 707 and 2,042 thousand euros, respectively.

Breakdown of the balance in the account “Welfare charges” in 2017 and 2016 was as
follows (in thousand euros):

2617 2016
Social security paid by itic company 3746 3,069
Orher welfare charges 7,424 6,904
' Total _ 1,170 9,973

17. Operations and balances with group companies and associates
I17.1. Operations with group companies and associates

Detail of operations with related parties in 2017 and 2016 was as follows (in thousand

euros):

2017

Provision of services
Services received
Income from interest
Expenses for interést
Dividends

2016

Provision of services
Services received
Income from interest
Expenses for interest
Dhvidends

‘Group
_companies
60.029

5438

510
24940
51,942
Group
companies.
45.892

4320

25,288
45.869
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882

61

1,910

Associdtes

1044

2,187

Total
60911
5899
2,420
24,940
51942

Fotal

50,932
- 4320
27475
12377
45869



172 Balances with group companies and associates

Balances with group companies and associates on the balance sheet at 31 December
2017 were as follows (in thousand euros):

2017 eom Associates Total
Long-terim investments: 4928901 . 634683 . 5563584
Equity instrurents {Note 8.2) T 4925212 1. . 634,683 5,559,895
Cost = ‘ 6092:007  798,638°  6.890,645
Provisions m—— (1,166,795) . = {163,955 _ {(1.330,750)
Credits (Note 8:2) _ 3.680° - 3,689
Credits t0 companies 5409 - . 29,528 . 34,937
Provisions (I720) - (29,528) (31,248)
Non-current assets held for sale 3000 - - 3,000
_Accounts receivable ' 54,339 1,100 55439
Short-term investments: 38462 . 38462
Credits to companies anid other 45,632 — 45,632
Provisions (7.170) - (7.170)
“'Short-term debt 1,379,688 - 1,379,688
Trade payables: 3882 735 . 4617
2016 Groop - s concintes Total

) ) compames .. -
Long-térm investments: 4597790 818952 5A16,742
Equity instraments (Note 8.2) . 4,569.905 807,053 5,376,958
Cost ' ' 6,049,978 854,420 6,904,398
Provisions {1,480,073) (47.367) (1.527,440)
Credits (Note 8.2) 27,885 . 1,899 39,784
Credits to compames 31,625 57,430 89,055
~ Provisions | (3,740) | (45531 (49.271)
Non-current assets held for sale -- - - 3 -
_ Acconnts receivable " 49,501 1,758 51259
Short-term investments: 4,521 T 4,521
Credits to companics 11,691 - 11,691
Provisions (7,170) = (7,170)
Short-term debt 998338 - 998,338
Trade payables: 4,867 - 4,867

Trade receivables related to invoices to group companies and associates. Short-term
debts with group companies related mainly to balances from settlement of corporate tax
of the companies the Parent Company of which is Acciona, S.A., in tax group 30/96 (see
Note 4.7).




17.3. Remuneration for the Board of Directors and Senior Management

ACCIONA, S.A. is the group’s parent company and its activity is limited to the
management of shareholdings and to services to support its investees. Therefore, the
remuneration of the Board of Directors and Senior Management must be interpreted
from the Parent Company and subsidiaries perspective.

Operations with shareholders

In 2017 there were no significant transactions involving a transfer of resources or
obligations between the Parent Company or its Group companies and the Company’s
main shareholders.

Transactions with directors ot executives

The Group’s “related parties” are deemed to be, in addition to the subsidiaries,
associates and jointly-controlled entities, the Company Management’s “key personnel”
{(members of its Board of Directors and of senior management, and their close relatives)
and the entities over which key management personnel may exercise control or
significant influence. The transactions performed by the Group in 2017 and 2016 with its
related parties are listed below, differentiating between the Company’s significant
shareholders, members of the Board of Directors and Managers, and other related
parties. Related party transactions are made on terms equivalent to those in arm’s length
transactions that usually take place in a normal business relationship with Acciona, S.A.
or the Group companies within the scope of the ordinary course of trade of these entities
and under market conditions. These transactions basically consisted of:

31220407

. Group
. Directors Other

Expenses and income Swam amd L N related Total
shareholdes o eutives c::_mpames = parties

Expensci:
" Finginge:costs = - = - -

Management or conperatton agieements - = - -

R&D transfers and licensing agreéments = = - - =

Leases = i ¥ = =

Servicés received _ - - 105 108

Purchase of goods (fnished geods and work m = = = -
progress) e _

Vaiue adjustments dus 10-uncolbéciable or doubrful - = - -
debts

Losses on de-recognition or chspesal of assets - = = I

Other expienses B - = -

Incorme: - =
Tinanc1al mcome i = = =
* Managoéat of coopersion agroctcs s - - =
R&D tasfns dand hieensing agreements = - - =
" Dividends received = = = = -
Leages - - = -
Provision of services - - =k 228 228
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Sale of goods (fimshed goods o work 1n progress)
Gains'on de-reoognmon or dlspma] ufm
Other muoine

Ptuuhm of property, plant and eqmpment mtangxhlc
assets or other assets

Finaricing agreements: loans’ andcapml cmm'bunons
(lender)
Finance leases (lessor)

Repayment or cancellation of loafis and leases (lessor)

Sales of property, plant and egqmpment. mhnglble
- assefs orothe asyets

Financing agrecments' loans and capital contn‘buuons
(borrower)

Finance leases (lessee)

R.epaymmt or canoellation of lnanssnd leam(lessee)
Guarantess provided

Obligations acquired

Oblig'gﬁon:.’gua_mnt_ees dtschalged

Dividends and other profits dustribated

Other transactions

Expenses and income

Expenses:

Fitiance costs
Management or cooperation agreaments
R&D transfers a_ndliom'sing'agmanelm: reement;
Leases 7 -
Semces received

Parchase of goods (ﬁmshedgnodsandwoka i -
progi2ss)

Valyg adjustmerits due to uncollectable or doubtfiil
debts

Losse.s on de-re(.ogmuon or chsposal crf asgets

Teomet

Fmanmai moome

R&D tansfers and heensing agreements
Dividends received

1 eases .

Provision of servwes

Sale of goods (fimshed goods ar work m progress}
Gains on de-récognition-or disposal of mets

Siguificant
Hwﬂ 1

Significant

shareholders
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31.12.2016

Group
employees,

or entities

related

87

Total

Total



Other meomc o = = 3

31122016
Group
i Directors Other
Other transactions Siguifia ey and ?‘“’T‘?"i‘ reiated Total
exerutives o ent:]'tms parties
Purchasés of roperty, plast and equipment, mtangble - = - =
assets i othes assets i -
Financing agreements. Touns and capiial contribitions = o 8 o =
. flender) )
Finance leases (Tessm ) = o - =
Repayment o cancelation of loans anit leascs (lessor) - - = 3
Sales of property, plant and equipment. intangible . = — -
agsaty or other assets
Financing agrécments loans and capital contributions - - = =
bdrrower)

Finance leases (les‘%éJ - - . - &
Repayment ot eancellstion of loans and leases (lessee) = - -

Guaiantees provided = = = - =
Guazantees recaived = - : -
Obliganons acguered = = = =
Obligstions/guarantees discharged - - - = -
Dividends and othe profits distubured = = |

Other transactions. - - -

Remuneration and other benefits

A. Board of Directors

In 2017 the remuneration accrued by the members of the Company’s Board of Directors,
and taking into account that this remuneration is taken from the perspective of the Parent
Company and its subsidiaries, totalled, in euros, the sum indicated in this Note.

According to article 31 of Articles of Association, the remuneration for Directors will
consist in a fixed annual allocation determined for their membership of the Board of
Directors and any Commitiees on which each Director may sit. The amount of the
remuneration to be paid by the Company to the Directors as a whole for belonging to the
Board of Directors and its Committees will be that determined for this purpose by the
General Meeting of Shareholders. Once established, this amount shall remain in force
until such time as it may be amended, and the Board of Directors may reduce the amount
in the financial years where this is considered convenient.

The Board of Directors determines the exact amount to be paid within that limit and its
distribution among the different Directors, with consideration being given to the
functions and responsibilities of each member, sitting on the Board’s committees and
any other unbiased circumstances considered relevant by the Board.

Regardless of the provisions contained in section above, the remuneration deriving from

membership of the Board of Directors shall be compatible with any other remuneration
(fixed salary; variable bonuses depending on the attainment of business, corporate and/or
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performance goals; compensation for removal of the Director for reasons other than the
failure to perform his or her duties; welfare systems; deferred remuneration items) that,
following a proposal by the Appointments and Remuneration Committee and by
resolution passed by the Board of Directors, could correspond to the Director for the
performance of other functions in the Company, be they senior management executive
functions or otherwise, apart from those of joint supervision and decision-taking carried
out as mere members of the Board.

Following a resolution adopted by the General Shareholders’ Meeting with the legally
required scope, Executive Directors may aiso be remunerated through the delivery of
shares or share option rights, or by means of any other remuneration referenced to the
value of the shares.

Furthermore, art. 55 of the Regulations for the Board of Directors establishes that the
Board determines the system for distributing the remuneration for Directors within the
framework established in the Articles of Association.

The decision must take into account the report issued for the purpose by the
Appointments and Remuneration Committee.

The Board of Directors shall strive to ensure that the Directors’ remuneration is
moderate and in line with that paid on the market in companies of a similar size and
business activity, with preference for those formats relating a significant portion of the
remuneration to their dedication to Acciona.

The system for remuneration of independent directors will strive to serve as a sufficient
incentive for their dedication without compromising their independence.

The remuneration of external directors representing substantial shareholders for their
performance as Directors must be proportional to that of other Directors and shall not
represent any favoured treatment in the form of remuneration of the shareholder(s)
designating them. The remuneration system will establish similar remuneration for
comparable functions and dedication.

As regards remuneration of executive directors, article 35 bis of the Regulations
establishes that the Board of Directors must try and ensure that the remuneration policies
in force at each time include for variable remuneration necessary technical safeguards to
make sure that such remuneration is in line with the professional performance of its
beneficiaries and does not arise simply from the general trend of markets or of the
company’s business sector or from other similar circumstances. The remuneration of
directors must be transparent.

On 18 May 2017, the General Sharcholders’ Meeting approved the Directors
Remuneration Policy for the years 2018-2020, without prejudice to the fact that
amendments introduced by the Policy shall apply to remuneration accrued from the date
the Policy was approved.

At its meeting on 28 February 2013, the Board of Directors resolved, at the proposal of
the Appointments and Remuneration Committee, to reduce the amounts for membership
of the Board of Directors and its Committees by 10%, and these were therefore set as
follows:
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a} For each director belonging to the Board of Directors 67,500 euros.

b) For each director belonging to the Executive Committee 45,000 euros.

¢) For each director belonging to the Audit Committee 45,000 euros.

d) For each director belonging to the Appointments Committee 36,000 euros.
¢) For each director belonging to the Sustainability Commitiee 36,000 euros.

At the meeting held by the Board of Directors on 11 June 2015 additional remuneration
was established: 10,000 euros for the directors holding the chair on the Committees,
except in the case of the executive committee.,

Executive directors who are members of the Executive Committee do not receive any
remuneration specifically for belonging to that committee.

After a detailed analysis of the remuneration received at international companies and
those included on the IBEX 35 index, the Appointments and Remuneration Committee
considered the remuneration to be in line with what was paid on the market in
companies of a similar size in the same business area, that similar remuneration was paid
for comparable functions and dedication and, without compromising independence,
remuneration is an adequate incentive to achieve, if possible, a greater engagement by
directors in the different committees.

Furthermore, the General Sharcholders’ Meeting held on 6 June 2013 resolved to set, for
the purposes established in new section 2 of article 31 of the Articles of Association, the
amount of remuneration that may be paid by the Company to its Directors as a whole.
for their membership of the Board of Directors and its Committees, at a maximum of
1,503,000 euros. This amount shall remain in force until such time as the General
Shareholders’ Meeting decides to change it, but it may be reduced by the Board of
Directors on the terms contained in the aforesaid section. This amount has been set at
1,700,000 euros by the Remuneration Policy 2018-2020.

The total remuneration paid to the members of the Board for discharging their duties as
Company directors in 2017 amounted to 1,308,247 euros. This amount is broken down
in thousand euros, by member of the Board of Directors, in the following way:

Remnneration
e t"’om o Total 2047 Total 2616
Committees

“Mr. Daniel Entrecanales Bomizeq 675 8 149.5° 495
e Jm6111moihxcus (’.rerard wam 07 5 ;— 67 5 6;? 5
Mr.-Iaime Castéllanos Borrego 675 136 2035 2035
Mr. Femando Rodés Vida 675 7 1395 1395
Mr Jos Manuel Etrecasialés Doniecq 67:5. = 675 675
M Juan ignacto Entresanales Franco 675 615 675
M. Juari Cartos Garay Tbargaray 875 136~ 3035 2035
‘Ms Bekn Villalongs Marenes 675 - 575 675
M Tavier Entrecariales Frarico 675 81 1485 148:5
(") Ms. Mania ded Carmen Begean] Martigez 258 137 s 1035
Ms. Ana Saitiz de Vicufia Bembeig 675 45 nas- 1125

(*+)Ms Karen Christiana Figueres Olsen 417 a7

- Page 58-



TOTAL 7425 565.7 1,3082 1,335

(*} Directors leaving the Board in2017
{(**) Directors joining the Board in 2017

The remuneration paid to Directors for the performance of senior management executive
functions and for being members of the Board was 16,027 and 3,277 thousand euros in
2017 and 2016, respectively.

With regards to long term variable remuneration linked to Company shares following
what was established in the Plan 2014 regulations and based on an evaluation of the
results obtained during the three year period from 2014 to 2016, following a proposal by
the Appointments and Remuneration Committee the Board of Directors approved to
deliver a total of 104,096 shares to Executive Directors in 2017, with a fair value of
7,277 thousand euros.

In addition, a non-executive director that left her position on 18 May 2017 had a
professional services contract signed with the Acciona Group for which she received 63
thousand euros in 2017.

In 2014, the Company implemented a savings plan related to a term life assurance,
permanent disability in the degrees of total, absolute and grand invalidity, and death
(“Savings Plan”) aimed solely and exclusively at the Company’s Executive Directors.
The basic characteristics of the plan are as follows:

a) Itis asocial welfare system based on a defined contribution.

b) It is a system endowed externally through the payment by the Company of annual
premiums to an insurance compary with the Participant as the beneficiary, for the
coverage of survival and the risk contingencies, i.e.: (i) death and (ii) permanent
disability in the degrees established in the Regulations.

¢) Should the Participants cease to occupy positions as Executive Directors of
Acciona for any reason, the Company shall cease to pay the premiums to the
Savings Plan on the date on which they indisputably cease to hold their position,
without prejudice to any economic rights recognised to Participants.

d) The payment of the Benefit arising out of the Savings Plan will be made directly
by the insurance entity to the Participants, net of any corresponding withholdings
or payments on account of personal Income Tax that may be applicable in each
case and payable by the beneficiary of the Benefit. For the rest of the
contingencies, the payment of the Benefit will also be made directly by the
insurance entity to any entitled parties.

e) The status of Participant in the Savings Plan will be lost should any of the
following circumstances arise: i) occurrence of any of the risk contingencies
covered and collection of the Benefit; ii) attainment of the age of 65 years;
iiii) removal from the position of Executive Director of Acciona for any reason
other than those indicated above.

The contributions to the Savings Plan in 2017 in favour of the Executive Directors came
to 5,125 thousand euros. These contributions included 75% of the fixed annual salary
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and an additional amount arising from extraordinary contributions to the Savings Plan
related to part of the variable remuneration in 2017.

The global remuneration related to tights accumulated by the Directors in this respect
amounts to 12,768 thousand euros.

No obligations have been entered into in connection with pensions with respect to
former and current members of the Board of Directors. Nor have any advances, credits
or guarantees been given in favour of the members of the Board of Directors, except as
indicated in this note.

In financial years 2017 and 2016 the directors of the Parent Company did not receive
any remuneration for being members of other boards and/or senior management of
Group Companies.

The remuneration of members of the board of directors of Acciona, S.A. was, in
thousand euros, 17,263 and 4,623 in financial vears 2017 and 2016, respectively.

The Board of Directors of Acciona, S.A. approved on 26 February 2015, upon proposal
by the Appointments and Remuneration Committee, amendment to the “Plan for
Delivery of Shares and options to Senior Management of Acciona and its group”
Regulations, preparing new regulations that affect the executive directors and the
Group’s executives. The main characteristics are described below.

B. Senior Management

Senior Management includes those people forming the top two levels of the Acciona
group’s management and the Corporate Internal Audit Director. This classification is for
information purposes only and without prejudice to their specific employment
relationship.

The remuneration of the Company’s General Managers and people discharging similar
duties, excluding those who are simultaneously members of the Board of Directors
{(whose remuneration is disclosed above), and bearing in mind that this remuneration is
taken from the perspective of Parent Company and subsidiaries, in 2017 and 2016 is
summarised as follows:

"Type of remnmmeration 2017 2016
Nurnber o people 35 30
Remumeration {thousand euros) 21551 2467

The figures for 2016 appearing as remuneration (thousand euros) included the amounts
related to compensation paid to the executives that left the company every year, for
termination of their employment relationship, as well as the money settlement for
differences in the options exercised during the year. In 2017 no settlements were paid to
Senior Management.

The civil liability premium for directors and executives as paid in 2017 amounted to
1,211 thousand euros.
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Plan for delivery of shares and performance shares

The General Shareholders’ Meeting heid on 24 June 2014 approved the following
agreement:

A) To extend the term of validity of the Shares and Options Delivery Plan to Acciona
group’s management, including Executive Directors, as was approved by the General
Shareholders’ Meeting of Acciona, S.A. on 4 June 2009, for application in financial
years 2014 to 2020, and to increase the maximum number of shares available by
200,000 shares.

B) To authorise the Board of Directors of the Company so that it may, to all the extend
required by law and upon proposal by the Appointments and Remuneration Committee,
amend the Plan Regulations under the terms and conditions that the Board considers
convenient, establishing delivery conditions and times, accrual periods, allocation
criteria and limits and any other aspect that the Board considers relevant, in order to
align further the long-term interests of the Company’s Executive Directors and other
executives of the Acciona Group with those of the shareholders of Acciona, S.A., and
thus boost their motivation in the attainment of higher value and long-term stability for
the group, and consolidate their loyalty and permanence in the Group.

Pursuant to that authority, on 26 February 2015 the Board of Directors approved, upon
proposal by the Appointments and Remuneration Committee, to amend the Plan
Regulations, drawing up a new one whose term of validity covers the six-year period
from 2014 to 2019, both inclusive. In addition, and making use of the approval of the
General Shareholders’ Meeting on 18 May 2017, following a proposal from the
Appointments and Remuneration Committee, the Board of Directors approved an
additional amendment to the Plan Regulations at their meeting held on 14 December
2017 with the aim of adapting it to corporate governance best practices regarding
deferral, malus and clawback on the variable remuneration of executive directors, and to
the principles and guidelines contained in the Directors Remuneration Policy approved
by the General Shareholders’ Meeting.

The main characteristics are as follows:

A) Purpose of the Plan:

The purpose of the 2014 Plan for Delivery of Shares and “Performance Shares” is to
remunerate management, including the Executive Directors of Acciona in such a manner
as to boost the attainment of strategic business objectives to the benefit of the
Company’s shareholders, and the loyalty and permanence of executives.

B) Strategic indicators and objectives to achieve

Achievement of objectives will be based on business strategic indicators, which have
been defined by the Board of Directors for financial years ranging from 2014 to 2019.

C) Plan beneficiaries

C.1. — Executive Directors
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For Executive Directors, it is contemplated for the first time that they may have
“performance shares™ annually allocated by the Board of Directors. This does not give
them the right to acquire the related shares (except where so provided by the
Regulations) but it is an indication by the Board of Directors of the number of shares
that the Board forecasts that can be allocated to these Executive Directors at a later date
if two conditions are fulfilled: their permanence and the attainment of Acciona Group’s
long-term strategic goals as established by the Board as a requisite for the Executive
Directors to receive shares.

Reference period: The reference period of the business strategic indicators will be the
2014-2019 six-year period, although, for allocation of “performance shares™, the whole
period from the start of the 2014 Plan application period to the end of the previous
financial year will be considered.

“Performance shares™ allocation: Upon completion of each financial year, the Board of
Directors may assess the extent to which the long-term strategic objectives have been
achieved up to that point.

The final allocation of treasury shares to Executive Directors will take place (a) at the
end of the whole 2014 Plan period (in 2020) upon consideration of the assessment made
for the whole 2014-2019 period and (b} at a midpoint milestone, in 2017, upon
completion of the first three 2014-2016 financial years, upon consideration of the
assessment made on the first 2014-2016 three-year period.

Based on the interest of the company and if circumstances so advise for Acciona and its
group in the opinion of the Board of Directors, upon consideration of the
recommendation from the Appointments and Remuneration Committee, the Board of
Directors may put off to 2020 the delivery to the Executive Directors of the final shares
allocated in 2017 (in relation to financial years 2014, 2015 and 2016), making the
delivery of these shares coincide with the delivery of the shares that, if appropriate,
should be delivered to the executive Directors at the end of the whole 2014 Plan period
(in 2020).

Permanence condition: Delivery of the shares finally allocated 1o Executive Directors is
dependent on the fact that, up to 31 March of the year when the shares are to be
delivered, the Executive Director has not ceased to perform his/her senior management
duties in Acciona or its Group for reasons attributable to the Director in question.

in no event may the number of allocated shares thus quantified exceed, together with
those allocated under the 2014 Plan, the maximum number available approved by the
GM.

The actual share delivery date in accordance with the provisions in the preceding
sections shall be determined by the Board of Directors or their delegates, and in any
case, it shall be done after the General Shareholders’ Meeting of the year in which the
shares are to be delivered has taken place. Delivery of 20% of the shares that the
Executive Directors have a right to receive shall be subjected to a minimum deferral
period of one (1) year, and its accrual shall be subject to their permanence as an
Executive Director as detailed in the Regulations, and on there not being any causes that
in the opinion of the external auditors could lead to a material restatement of the
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Acciona Group’s consolidated financial statements, as determined by the Board of
Directors following a proposal by the Appointments and Remuneration Committee,
except when this arising from an amendment to accounting standards.

Shares delivered in 2017 are subject to an option for Accicna to buy them back:
Treasury shares transferred to Executive Directors in 2017 (in relation to financial years
2014, 2015 and 2016) have been subjected to Acciona’s right to buy them back, a right
that can be exercised if the Executive Director acquiring the shares ceases to perform
his/her senior management duties in Acciona or its group before 31 March 2020 for
breach of his/her contractual obligations or resignation of hisfher own free will.

C.2. — Group’s Executives

For the other beneficiaries that are not executive directors, the Board of Directors will
approve, upon considering proposal by the Appointments and Remuneration Committee,
the amount for separate variable remuneration to be paid through delivery of the
Acciona’s treasury shares allocated for each financial year to each executive that
benefits from the 2014 Plan other than Executive Directors.

The allocation may be implemented through a number of treasury shares or in a cash
amount. In the latter case, the equivalent number of shares will be based on the closing
price on the last day of trading of March of the year when the Board of Directors
determines the allocation. In no event will the number of allocated shares thus quantified
exceed, together with the other shares allocated under the 2014 Plan, the maximum
number approved by the GM.

Treasury shares transferred to these Beneficiaries are subject to Acciona’s right to buy
them back, a right that can be exercised if the beneficiary acquiring the shares ceases
his/her professional engagement with Acciona or its Group before 31 March of the third
year following the year when delivery takes place, for reasons attributable to the
Beneficiary. The Board of Directors may extend to a reduced group of executives the
“performance share” and/or shares allocation system established for executive directors,
with the changes as can be proposed by the Appointments and Remuneration Committee
regarding interim allocation, tax system, objectives, midpoint milestones and delivery
times, with the purpose of increasing their motivation in the attainment of higher value
and long-term stability for the group, as well as consolidating their loyalty and
permanence in the Group.

The 2014 Plan does not provide for the possible sale of shares delivered in order to pay
the tax incurred by the Beneficiary as a result of such delivery. The cost of the payment
on account of the 2014 Plan performance shalt not be passed on to the beneficiaries, and
the Company shall assume the tax cost that this payment may have on the personal
income tax of the beneficiaries with the established limits.

D) Number of shares available for the Plan
Initially, the maximum number of shares that could be aliocated to the Beneficiaries in

application of the 2014 Plan was fixed at 258,035, although it could be increased by
resolution of the General Shareholders’ Meeting.




In this respect, the General Shareholders’ Meeting held on 11 June 2015, 10 May 2016
and 18 May 2017 agreed to increase the maximum number of shares available for the
“2014-2019 Plan for Delivery of Shares and Performance Shares” by 100,000 for each
year, without affecting later increases if so proposed by the Board of Directors and
approved by the General Shareholders’ Meeting,

At the close of 2017 the maximum number of shares that could be delivered to
implement the Plan, was 353,240, after 35,917 were used in 2017 for delivery to
executives other than Executive Directors, and 104,096 shares were used for delivery to
Executive Directors. Without prejudice to the foregoing, in 2017, 26,025 shares have
been assigned to have a delivery deferred for a period of three years on a straight-line
basis in implementation of the Plan.

E) Recipients
The annual number of Recipients shall not exceed 100.

Plan to replace variable remuneration for shares

Upon proposal by the Appointments and Remuneration Committee, given the limited
number of Beneficiarics of the former Plan, with the purpose of furthering and extending
the objectives for building loyalty and retaining executives to the Group’s executives, on
26 March 2015 the Board of Directors approved the “Plan to Replace Variable
Remuneration for Acciona shares, aimed to Acciona and its group’s management” (the
Replacement Plan), excluding executive directors; the main characteristics of the plan
are the following:

Aim: To retain and motivate the management team effectively and achieve higher
alignment of their interests with those of the Company and its Group.

Initial duration: Six years (2014 to 2019).

Purpose: To offer discretionally the option of replacing or swapping, in whole or in part,
variable remuneration in cash for Company shares to certain Acciona and its group’s
executives, according to a swap equation to be determined each year. . In 2015, 2018,
and 2017, the swap equation approved carried an incentive of 25% over the variable
remuneration replaced.

Beneficiaries: The executives that the Board of Directors determines of its own free
will. Executive Directors are excluded from this Plan.

Restrictions on the shares delivered: In general terms, the shares delivered cannot be
(a) disposed of, encumbered or used under any title {except for mortis causa), and (b) no
option right can be set up over them, or any other right limiting ownership or as security,
until after 31 March of the third year following the year in which the shares in question
were delivered to the Beneficiary.

Treasury shares transferred to these Beneficiaries, corresponding to the incentive and not
to the portion of the shares related to the replaced remuneration as per the amendment
approved on 29 February 2016 by the Board of Directors, are subject to Acciona’s right
to buy them back, a right that can be exercised if the Beneficiary acquiring the shares
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ceases hisfher professional engagement with Acciona or its Group before 31 March of
the third year following the year when delivery takes place, for reasons attributable to
the Beneficiary.

The Acciona share price to be taken as benchmark to determine the swap equation will
be the closing price on the last day of trading of March of the year when the Board of
Directors determines the allocation of the replacement option.

SHAREHOLDERS’ PLAN

The Board of Directors, following proposal by the Appoiniments and Remuneration
Committee, with the purpose of facilitating participation in the company’s
shareholdings, approved on 28 February 2017 a new Plan that makes it possible to
redistribute part of the variable and/or fixed money remuneration with the limit of
12,000 euros per year through delivery of shares in the Company in accordance with the
current regulatory framework, which is favourable in terms of the fiscal treatment of this
type of plan.

The plan is voluntary and it offers all employees with fiscal residence in Spain the
opportunity of participating in the company’s results by becoming shareholders. This
Plan does not affect executive directors as their relationship is mercantile and not based
on an employment contract. The shares were measured at the closing quotation price on
13 April 2017.

Finally, the number of shares delivered to Beneficiaries other than executive directors
(47 Beneficiaries), under the Plan for Delivery of Shares /Performance Shares, in
consideration of their dedication and performance in financial year 2017, was 35,917
shares at the fair value of 2,678 thousand euros.

Given that this plan accrues on a three-year basis, one third of the fair values mentioned
above is reflected in “Personnel costs” on the accompanying income statement at 31
December. The other two thirds will be recognised on the income statements for
financial years 2018 and 2019.

As regards Executive Directors, one aliocation and delivery of shares took place in 2017.
A total of 104,096 shares were delivered to Executive Directors and 26,025 shares have
been assigned with a deferred delivery on a straight-line basis over a three-year period.

Finally, in application of the Replacement Plan, 22,086 shares in the Company were
delivered in 2017, at the fair value of 1,651 thousand euros, to 37 executives of Acciona
and its Group, in payment of part of their variable remuneration in cash in 2016.

The Company determined the fair value of the goods and services received by reference
to the fair value of the equity instruments assigned.

The “Plan for delivery to Senior Management” replaced by the plan described in the
paragraphs above established the replacement of shares with stock option rights for
Acciona, S.A. ordinary shares. The options granted one year as part of the Plan could be
exercised, in whole or in part, in one go or more, within the three-year period from (a)
31 March of the third calendar year following the year when they were allocated and {b)
31 March of the third year following the start of the period (the “Exercising Period™).
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The movement in 2017 in the number of options and weighted average of the prices to
exercise the stock options was the following:

Neof - Weighted

201 optians Average
(in euros)

Existing at the stact of the financial yoar 8872 603
Gianted durng the penad - L=
Conceiled during the period = =
Exercised durmg the penod (45,1509 40 18
Lpsed during the perod - -
Existing at fhe end of the period 23,721 63.25
Susceptible.of being éxércised at thié etid 6 this 21731 6325
penod . )

As regards the options existing at the end of the financial year, it should be indicated that
the strike price ranged between 36.21 and 66.73 euros and that the weighted average of
the remaining life of the contract was 0.8 years.

The valuation methodology applied is based on the Enhanced FASB 123 method
(Accounting for Stock Based Compensation), which is in turn based on standard “fair
value” methods of the CRR binomial type with certain modifications. The model
consists in estimating the value of the option by trinomial tree methods and then
adjusting this value by considering that the executive in question may leave the company
during the maturity period, or may exercise the option when the share reaches a multiple
of the strike value. The market inputs applied for valuation purposes are the closing
price of the reference share on the date of issue of the plan and the strike price
established for the exercise of the option, the track record of the reference share in terms
of volatility calculated as the standard deviation from the quotation yields for a period
equal to the duration of the plan and the risk-free interest rate.

Detail of the individuals who held Senior Management positions in the Group (taking
the Parent and subsidiaries into account as Senior Management) in 2017 was as follows:

Fhﬂ_thﬁié’bf-éorpoiﬁte namie - Position(s) held
Alcazar Vigla, Jesis Gerieral Manager — Acciona Infrastructure - Latin Amenca
Ancin Vigurristi, Joaquin - General Manager — Acciona Energy ~ Engincering & Consttiction
Antinez Cid, Isabel Gencral Manage: — Acciona Property '
Arillada Tuana. Carlos Marfa GenemiManﬂgel - Ecqnc_nﬁic and Financial Area
Beltidn Nuflez, Raul laternal Audrt Manager
Callejo Martinez, Alfonso General Manager - Corporate Resources
Carion Lépez de Ja Gavma, Macarena Generat Manager - Office of the Charman
Castilla Carmara, Luis CEO - Acciona Infrastructure _
Castifte Carc1a_ Joaquin Area Ceneral Mamnger - Aeciona Energy Development
Clandio Vizquez, Adalberto’ Arca General Manager - Acciona Infrastructure Contract Mansgement and Studies
Coelia Hurtado, Olga General Manage: - Actiona Infrastruchire - Esonome Contiol Area
[ C_n;z _P;ﬂacms’ Fuan Mm = ‘ gmmmmgager 3 Aécioﬁa_mﬁm = ;abow Relatioas, OHS and
Diaz-Canesn Rodriguez, José Fws Asey Geneial Manager - Acciona Water
Ezpeleta Purus, Araniza Getieral Manager - Technology & Innovation
Farardo Getez, Fernando Area eneral Manager - Acciona Infrastiucture - Australia and South-Fast Asa,
Farto Piz, José Maria Area General Manager~ Acciona Infrastructure — Galicia
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Full name or corporate mime’

Femandez Lopez, Roberto

Figuéroa Gomezde Salazar, José Julio

Gurieirez Abarquero, David
_ Jménez Serrano Ramén
Mateo Alcald, Rafael
 Moltinedo Chocano, José Joagin
Moreno Lorente, Hubato losé
" Muro-Lara Girod, Jusn
Otz Aguerrt, Juan
Guero: G11 Mano
Rego Preto, Oscar Lans
Rodriguez Hemandez, José Luis
Santamarfa-Paredes Castillo, Vicente
* SilvaFerrada, Jumn Ramdn
Soto Conde, Antonio
Tejero Santos, José ngel
Terceiro Mateos, José Manuel
 Vega-Penichet Lapez, Joras
Vicente Pelegnm, Justo

Position(s) held
Area General Manager - Acgrona Infrastrucinre - Corporate Resources
Area Gmeml Mzmagu Fmal

. Area General Manager~ Acmona Industnal and Acciona Semce
. CEO - Avcione Energy - ;
i General Mansager - hlmmnonafRelanons, Sustamablhty audBrxmd

General Manage: - - Acciona Infrastracture - Constiuction Area

_,GemzalManager CmpmmDevehpmmﬂdeelauonsmthlnvmon
* Pragluction Avea Genetal Manager - Acciona Energy

AreaGenmlemger Tmsmednerranea ]
PmnmmentArea(mﬁalManager ~ Acciona Infrestmcture

"AreaGenem]Manager 0‘11erBustms¢sandInvestew )
_ Area General Manager —Compliance
;A.rmGenﬂalMana.ger—Suﬂmnabiﬁly '

Arca (ieneral manager - Grupo Bodegas Paiacio 1894

. Arca General Mana.genEmnonueOvemght and Flnan_c_e'

Ares General Manager ~ Acczons Iefragtructurs - Economics and Finance

. General Sotrotary

AmaGmemlMamgn‘-Am(maOmﬂrmﬂm-S.pmn,Poﬂusalmm

Detail of the individuals who held Senior Management positions in the Group (taking
the Parent and subsidiaries into account as Senior Management) in 2016 was as follows:

Full'name or corporate name
Alcézar Viela, Jesiis
Ancin Viguiristi, joaguin
Antinez Cid, fsabel

| Anlla de: Juzna, Ca:los Maria
Beltrin Nufiez, Ratl

- Blaneg' Dléguez, José Luis
Cabanillas Alonso, Pln

‘_ Cillejo Martinez, Alforiso
Carmion Lopez de la Garma, Macarena

st Camar, Luis
CasttHo Garcfa. Joaquin
Claudio Vazquez, Adalberto
Corella Hurtado, Olga
Cruz Palacios; Juan Manuel.

Diaz-Canera Rodriguez, Tosé Lins
Fajardo Grerez, Fernando

Farto Paz. Iosé Maria -
Fernéndez Lopez, Ra‘lnrto
Figuerna Gomés do Salazar, José Julio
Guhierrez Abaquero, David
Jiménez Serano, Ramén
Luna Butz, Walter

Mateo Ali:a:_la, Rafael

Mollinedo Chocana, José Joagmin
Moren Lorente, Huberto José

Position(s) held
General Manager — Acciona Hnfrastructure - Latin America

. Genkral Mansger - Aceiona Energy — Engineering & Construction

Guneral Manager — Acciona Property .

“Creneral: Manager - EuommmmdFmanmalAn‘a
frernal Audat Mimager

Gene:alManager Aumanmdpnwcr

General Manager - Cupmhmmdﬁlobalmmmg
Genezalegu ‘Corporate Resdurces ’

. General Manages - Office of the Chastman
" CBO - Accions Iffastractite.

Atea General Manager - Acctona Fnergy Development
‘General Manager Civil kas Aucluna Infrastructure

~ General Manager - Acciana Infrastrocture - Economic ConuolAra

- Geniral Manager - Acciona Infrastructure - Labour Relations, Environment Quality

_ Planand Sustainability

Area General Manager - Aocions Water

Gme:a] Manager Technology& Innovatton

Area Geners] Manager - Acttona Extrastrugture — Amtrahaand&ouﬂyBastAsm
Area Gmeral Managw Aecimlnﬁnsu'ucmm Galicia

Area General Managet - Acciong ln&mmcm Cnrpmﬁa Rmumes

_AreaGmemleagm‘ -Leghl Services

Area General Manager — Fiseal

. Area Geners] Manager — Aociona Inustrial and Acciona Service

CEQ - Acciona Energy

CEO - Acciona Eiiergy

General Manager ~ Instituivonal Relations, 'susmnabzhty and Brand
Area General Manager- Railway & Tunncls, Acciona Infrastructures
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Fuli namie or corporate name

Mmo;l .ara € mad.. fuan

. Pasition(sy Lieid
General Manager - Corporate Development and Relations with: Investors

Otazu Aguerri, Jusn Production Area General Manage: - Acciona Energy
Quere Gi1l, Marwo Area General Manager - Tiasneditendned
RegoPrieto, Oicar Liis

Rivas Anero, Fehx

Rodriguez Herdndez, José Luis
Santamana-Paredes Costito. Vicente
Silvd Ferrada, JusnRamon

Soto Conde, Antomo
“Tegero Sanitos, Tosé Angel

Terceiro Mateos, José Mannel
Vega-Perichet Lipez, Jorge

Vicente iseiegnnl lusto )

] Procuremient Area Getieral Manager < Aceiona Infrestructire

Area General Manager - Procurement, Inrevation, Quality and ﬁc Enviromment
. Agea Genetal Manager — Ottier Bissinesses and fnvestces

Afea General Manager —~ Complance
AreaGeneral Minager — Siustainabilit -
Ates General snanager - Grupo Bodegas Palacio 1894

. Area General Manager - Ecanomic Cversight and Finance

Area (eneral Mandgel - Accena nifastructire - Foonomics and Finance

- General Secretary

Area General Manager - Aeciona Lhﬂastmcnue Span and Construction ﬂl-ﬂ'lc.!,
Sweden and Ermrates

18. Environment-related information

Given the activities it develops, the Company has no liabilities, expenses, assets,
provisions or contingencies of an environmental nature that could be material in refation
to the Group’s equity, financial position and results. For this reason, no specific
disclosures are contained in these notes.

19. Other disclosures

19.1 Personnel

The average number of employees in financial years 2017 and 2016, by category, was as

follows:
Categories 2017 2016
Management and supervisors 117 97
Qualified line personnel 136 128
Clerical and support sta(t 59 62
Other employees i 2
Tolal 313 289

Distribution by gender in the course of 2017 and 2016, broken down by category at the
close of the year, was as follows:

2017 2016
Categories Men Women Men  Women
Management and supervisors 89 52 73 48
Qualified hoe personnel 64 65 56 59
Clerical and support staff 18 41 18 43
Other employees | - 1 -
Total 172 158 148 150
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In financial year 2017, 3.60 % of the group’s headcount had a disability equal to or over
33%, mostly under the category of clerical and support personnel.

19.2 Auditor’s fees

In financial years 2017 and 2016, the fees for financial statements auditing services and
for other services provided by the Company’s auditor, KPMG Auditores, S.L (Deloitte,
S.L. in 2016), or by group entities or related to the auditor, were as follows (in thousand
euros):

Services provided by the Services provided by

- main amditor other audit firms

2017 e 0 2007 . 2016
Auditing services 596 . 451, - -
Other verification services 77 107 218 175
TFotal andit-and related sexvices 673 558 218, 175
 Tiscal advice services 23 - 8 167
Other services 1367 2.871 3.547 2754
Total protessional services 1,450 2,871 34625 2921

With regards to the main auditor, “other verification services” includes mainly advisory
services in the scope of sustainability and corporate social responsibility, services to
issue “comfort letters”, and reports on agreed procedures. The concept of “fiscal advice
services” includes mainly fees for advisory services on transfer pricing, corporate tax
and indirect taxation documentation. Finally, “other services” mainly includes advisory
services for the Group’s management of expatriate staff, advice regarding information
security and information technology consultancy services.

Information relating to the services provided by KPMG Auditores, S.L. to companies
controlled by Acciona, S.A. for the year ended 31 December 2017 is included in the
consolidated financial statements of Acciona, S.A. and subsidiaries at 31 December
2017.

20. Events after the reporting period

On 21 February 2018, Acciona Group and the company ATLL Concessionaria de la
Generalitat de Catalunya S.A. became aware of the judgement handed down by the
Supreme Court on the cassation appeal filed by the Generalitat de Catalunya against the
High Court of Justice of Catalonia (TSJC) ruling which invalidated the procedure to
award said concession (appeal 2725/2015). This judgement dismisses the claims brought
forward by the Generalitat and confirms the TSIC ruling. The Acciona Group is
currently waiting for notification of the cassation appeal 2682/2015 filed by Gestid
Catalana de Aigues, and appeal 2678/2015 filed by the Concessionaire and by Acciona
Agua against the TSIC judgement which invalidated the procedure to award said
concession.

On 26 February 2018, an agreement has been reached for the sale of the thermal solar
business in Spain to subsidiaries of the company Contour Global, consisting of five
plants with a total capacity of 250 MW for an amount of 1,093 million euros (including
debt). In addition, the parties have agreed to the payment of an earn-out of up to 27
million euros. The effectiveness of the operation is conditional upon compliance with
several conditions precedent.
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APPENDIX I

GROUP COMPANIES

The subsidiaries of ACCIONA, S.A. considered to be Group companies were treated as such in accordance with IFRS. The companies fully
consolidated in 2017, and the information thereon at 31 December 2017, were the following (amounts in thousand euros):

Mbeardlitipe. ©

bl [nfowmadion

A TTC [ EEe

Limsitiil LT YT [} Lithcnl iwie bl Preniiom LT

ACClong AlTport Serviees

Frankfurt, Gmbh Germany Services c 5,637 0 5637 100.00% 0.00% 100.00% 0 4627 3.401 o 2343 ] o
Coniomeon Acerona Bne gias

Raenovables, S L Maded Enerpy . C X917.224 {373 530} 2,543,584 100 6% 000% 100 0 0 I8 1,914,796 k] 14,317 14 LU
Acciona Concesiones, S.L. Madrid Concessions < 59.060 4] 59.060 100.00% 0.00% 100.00% /] 7,268 49,232 ¢ {7574) 1] &
Accrona Financigemn Filiales Maded Other activines C 41§,826 - 0 411 826 100 iPg 000% 100 00% 0 82413 374446 [} o414 0 i
Acciona Inmobiliaria 5.1 Madrid Other activities c 1.434,434 (540,821} 893.633 100.00% 0.00%  100.00% o] 285,192 535,199 Q (6,398) 0 0
¢eation De Revursas

Corputatives, S L Navaira Other actraties - 3 3 0 100 D% Q0P 100 00%. 1) 5 %y Q oy 1 Q
Bestittver, 5.A. Madrid Other activities C 6.113 4 6,k13 100.00% 000 100.00% 48.078 6,010 2.80¢ 0 49344 (48,078) o]
Bestinvet Gestion S C1IC,

S A Aadind Other aeinihes & 0 o 1] 001% oG oty 106 00 1 331 3.947 [¥] 45,539 {29 04%) b
Bestinver Pensiones (. F.P,,

BA Madrid Other activities C 0 Q ] 0.00% 100.00%  1060.00% 4] 1,204 2.837 0 6561 {5.052) 1}
Beat:nver Soviedad De

Valores § 4 Madrd Orher activibies C [¢] Q o Du1% 9099 100 00% ) 4,515 4816 1 217 9 Q
Corporacion Acciona

Infraestructuras S L Madrid Constr £Engineering 760.052 0 760,052 100.00% C.00%  100.00% i} 70.000 690.047 0 (224} 0 o}
Comyailia Irtepnaciongl De

Consimciones Panana Other activiies - 1,334 4] 1.353% 106G 00% G00% 108 0% ] 1114 5,007 o7 (53] 1] o
Cirtover. 8.1 Madrid Other activities - 3 (3) 4] 100.00% 0.00%  100.00% Q 3 92 ¢ €3] 1} L]
Coefise, 5§ A Switza land Othen activattes = 7H 0 M 100 80% AN0% 100 0% o 785 58% {169 43) 1] &
Copane Valores, 8.1 Madrid Other actrvities 55179 0 55,7719 100.00% 0.00% 100 00% 0 2,383 55,593 0 "7 4] ]
Cent1o D Se1vicios

Comparndes De Accone 51, Madnd Energy 3 [ 3 100 004 Q60% 100 00Fy bs] Ul [ 0 4] 0 [
Dren, 8.4, Madrid Other activities 1,335 o 1.335 100.00% 0.00%  100.00% [¥] 1902 (302) 0 (1) o] 0
Appdorads Carperativa

{lunecal, B A Madnd Other actrvities 60 N it} K] L6%o 000% 100 OfPa U oL {343) 0 (28) i 0
Entidad Efinen, 8. A Madrid Other activities - 4,508 (2.937) 1.571 100 00% 0.00% 100.00% 4 183 1.389 0 [} [ 0
~yesw Enttecnnales Cubiortas

Mexico, $ A De Cy Mexicu Constr &Hogneering € 10 o 4 oules  1OO00% 100 07°% a 15% 21310 (FodD) {7.603) o a
Tinanzas v Certera Uno. S.A.  Madrid Other activities - 15 (L) 3 100.00% 000%  100.00% 0 5 3] 0 {1y 0 a
Fwabzas y Cartera Dos 8§ A Machiw Cher getivihies - L8 {39 34 100 0% 000% T30 0% g 4 89 i} {3 i} [§)
Fenanzas Dos. 8.A Madrid Other activities - 6.626 (5,167 1,457 100 00% 0.00%  100.00%% 0 691 160 V] 606 0 0
Hyos de Antunio Bartelo, Madrid Other activitees C 31 ne [+ 31,710 [00 iy ouo% 108 0L a P e 33,230 3 1038 ¢! 0
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| AT T Tialiawsd e Lt Leeees ! EHv el

5A
Hospital De Leon Bajio, 8.A.

DeC.V. Mexi Cc i C 2,901 1] 2,501 98.00% 200% 100.00% 2,233 2,960 23499 (7,701) 1,665 4] 0
Inemtie, S A Madnd Othet actrvibes - 0 {70} [ 100 00% 0O0% 100 00% ] 210 @210 1] (1) [ 1]
Apocderada General de Service  Madrid Other activities - 18,720 (18,326} 194 100.00% 0.00%  100.00% 0 208 {2) B [ {11) /] 0
SC A2Tramo2 5 A Guadalyera  Conpessions c 14876 (12.527) 1,349 100 00% 000% 10000% 0 14876 (17.853) 0 4,326 ¢ 0
Acciona Logistica, S.A. Madrid Other activities - 326,888 (194,123) 132,765 100,00% 0.00% 100.00% 0 75,700 22,188 0 14,878 0 0
Sedad Empresaria) De

Financiation ¥ Comersie, SL Madrid Other activities - 138 (138) 2} 100 00R% 000% 10000% 0 15 218 0 1) [i] 1}
Tibest Cuatro, 8.4, Madrid Other activities - 13,523 0 13,523 100.00% 000%  100.00% 0 11,195 3,597 0 396 ¢] 0
Tictres, 8§ A Madrid Other avtrvities - 18,249 17,11n 532 100 00% 000% 10000% 0 2,702 (2,010) g (160) o [}
Compafia Trasmediterr

S.A Madrid Other activities o} 3,000 4] 3,000 12.85% 79.85%  92.71% 331 127,329 84,986 1] 146 Q o
‘Total Group Companien 6095007  (1,166795) 4928212

(*) Companies whose financial statements are audited by: (A) Deloitte; (B) PricewaterhouseCoopers; (C) KPMG; (D) Ernst & Young; {E) Other.

- Page 71-



JOINT VENTURES., ASSOCIATES AND OTHER

At 31 December 2017 associates consolidated by application of the equity method were the following:

ST TS T ETES TR it il dinattiiiim

15 |

Uinrpyin

L O] _.___.H: |

Brichisuct
Consir.&Engin

Constructora Necso Sacyr Chile Chile eering 0 0 0 0.0t% 49.99% 50.00% 0 18 (1,195) 1.013 Q 0 0
Tafraestiuctra, Radiates, § A Madrd Concessmms - 25,896 (25 896§ 0 2250 250% 25 0% g 11616 (3674700 1] {39,783} 0 2]
8.C. Puente Del Fbro, 8.4, Aragon Concessions - 6,693 (6.693) ] 50,00% 0.00% 40.00% 0 13.385 (22.551) 0 (9,290 [ 0
Consocio Traze, § & Zurapoze  Gonuedsions D 12074 [ER P 16 60% 0 00% 16 0% 2 575 34973 i} 8. 066} [t} 7936
NORDEX SE Germany  Energy B 753,942 (131,333 £22.609 29.90% 0.00% 29.50% [ 95.982 $34.140 f13.290% 6.1 1] [
by 33 113} i)

798,638  (163,955) 634,683

(¥} Companies whose financial statements are audited bry: (A) Deloitte; {I3) PricewaterhouseCoopers; (C) KPMG; (D) Emst & Young; (E) Other.
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ACCIONA, S.A. AND SUBSIDIARIES
(CONSOLIDATED GROUP)

DIRECTORS’ REPORT — FINANCIAL YEAR 2017

ACCIONA discloses its results in accordance with the International Financial

Reporting Standards (IFRS) under a corporate structure, which comprises three
divisions:

* Energy comprises the electricity business, from construction of wind farms to the
generation, distribution and marketing of different energy sources.

s [Infrastructure:

— Construction includes mainly construction, industrial and engineering activities
as well as transport and hospital concession activities.

- Water includes the construction of desalination, water and wastewater treatment
plants, as well as integral water services management from bulk water
abstraction all the way to discharging treated wastewater to the environment.
ACCIONA Agua also operates waier CONcessions across the entire water cycle.

_ Services include the activities of facility services, airport handling, waste
collection and management and logistic services among others.

= Other activities include the businesses of Trasmediterrédnea, Real Estate, Bestinver
(fund manager), wineries and other businesses.

The Alternative Performance Measures or APM’s used constanly in this half period
report by ACCIONA Group are listed and defined below:

EBITDA: is defined as operating income before depreciation and amortisation, that is,
it shows the operating result of the Group. The Company presents the EBITDA
calculation in the income statement (see consolidated income statement in part 2 of the
Directors’ Report). It is calculated by taking the following items of the consolidated
income statement: “net revenue®, “other revenues”, “change in inventories of finished
goods and work in progress”, “cost of goods sold”, “personnel expenses” and “other
operating expenses”.

Net debt: it shows the Group’s debt, in net terms, deducting cash and cash
equivalents. The detailed reconciliation is broken down in the Cash-flow and Net
Financial Debt Variation section of the Directors’ Report. It is calculated by taking the
following items from the consolidated balance sheet: “non-current interest-bearing
borrowings”, “current interest-bearing borrowings”, less “cash and cash equivalents™
and “other current financial assets”.

Non-recourse debt: as indicated in Note 18 to the consolidated financial statements, it corresponds
to debt that does not have corporate guarantees, and therefore its recourse is Iimited to the debtor’s
assets and cash flows.

Recourse debt: Debt with corporate guarantee.

Financial gearing: it shows the relation between the Group’s financial debt and its
equity. It is calculated dividing “net debt” (calculated as explained above) by “equity”.
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Backlog: is defined as the pending production, that is to say, contractual amounts or
customer orders after having deducted the amounts already accounted for as income on
the income statement. It is calculated on the basis of orders and contracts awarded to
the Group, deducting the realised portion that is accounted on “net revenue” and
adding or subtracting “other variations”, that corresponds to forex adjustments,
modifications to the initial contracts and other changes to be made to the awarded
backiog.

Net Capex: is defined as the net change in the balance of property, plant & equipment,
intangible, financial and real estate assets during the period, corrected by:

e Depreciation, amortisation and impairment of assets during the period
* Results on disposal of non-current assets
¢ Forex fluctuations

When dealing with changes in the consolidation perimeter, net capex is defined as the
net outflow/inflow of used/sourced resources in the purchase/sale of net assets.

Operating Cash Flow: The Operating Cash Flow represents the ability of assets to
generate resources in terms of net debt. It is obtained as follows:

EBITDA plus/minus change in operating working capital minus net financial cost
plus/minus cash inflow/outflow of capital gains plus income from associates
plus/minus other cash inflow/outflow different from those included in the Net
[nvestment Cashflow and from those which constitute remuneration to shareholders.

Net Investment Cashflow: It is calculated by adding Net capex plus/minus change in
payable to capex providers.

Ordinary EBT: it is defined as earnings before tax excluding those accounting
impacts related to exceptional decisions made by the Group’s management, which go
beyond the usual course of business operative decisions made by the different
division’s top management and are detailed in segment information note.

Management uses these APMs to take financial, operational or planning decisions.
They are also used to evaluate the performance of the Group and its subsidiaries.

Management considers these APMs provide useful additional financial information to

evaluate the performance of the Group and its subsidiaries as well as for decision-
making by the users of the financial information.

Executive Summary
Key Highlights of the period:

* ACCIONA generated an income of €7,254 million that represents an increase of 21.4%
vs. FY2016,
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s The EBITDA reached €1,275 million during FY2017, 7.0% more than in FY2016. This
year is characterised by a higher contribution from Infrastructure division (+€106
million) which largely offset the slight decrease in the Energy division (€14 million)
and the lower contribution from Other Activities (-€7 million).

» The Energy division has delivered slightly lower EBITDA (-1.9%) vs FY2016, even
though the Generation business improved its results (+2.5%). Mainly, due to the lower
contribution from third-party turnkey activity, now that the Energy division has decided
to focus exclusively on the construction of assets for its own portfolio.

e The Generation business in Spain increased its EBITDA by 9.7% thanks to the higher
level of wholesale electricity prices as well as higher regulated incomes over to the
periodic review, even these drivers were significantly mitigated by the regulatory
banding mechanism, forward sales, and lower production.

s The International Generation business suffered from lower generation volumes -partly
due to events of force majeure- which led to declining EBITDA (-5.5%), despite the new

capacity in operation.

e The Infrastructure division EBITDA increased across all its business lines and
consolidated its margin levels. The volume in construction business is exceptionally
high due to the simultaneous execution of five big projects.

e In Other Activities, the increased contribution of Bestinver (+18.9%) should be
highlighted, with an EBITDA approaching historical highs.

e In terms of investment force, the Gross Capital Expenditure, in FY2017 reached €920
million, which compares to the €916 million invested in FY2016. The Group’s core
businesses atiracted the majority of the capex, with €468 million in Energy and €359
million across the Infrastructure division, which included one-off investments. Net
Investment Cash-flow amounted to €609 miilion.

e Net Debt reached €5,224 million, 1.8% higher than in FY2016, highlighting the
improvement of working capital and the closing of the sale of Ruta 160 in Q4 2017.

e On the other hand, ordinary financial expenses have decreased by 23.0%, consolidating
the Group’s new funding model as well as marginally improving financial expenses.
Cost of debt decreased to 3.77% in FY2017 vs. 4.74% in FY2016.

e FY2017 has been a year of intense M&A activity, notably divestment deals as the sell
agreement Trasmediterranea (expecting close for H1 2018), the contribution of Real
Estate assets to Testa Residencial and the sale of Ruta 160 concession that was

liquidated in Q4 2017.
Income Statement Data
(Miltion Euros) JanDecl7 Jan-Becl6 Chg %
Revennes 7254 1 5997 21.,4%
EBITDA - 1275 1,192 70%
EBIT 20 988 271%
Ordinary EBT 38 2 2%
EBT 356 408 -126%
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Net attribotable profit

Balance Sheet Data and Capital Expenditure

{Mallion Luros)
Equity
Net debt

(Mrilion suros)
Gross Capex

Net Caperx:
NetInvestnient Cashflow

Operating Data

Construction hcklog (Million euros)
‘Water backlog {Million eurs)

Tota mstled i capority AW)
Total installed capacity (MW)

Total production\GWh) (Jan-Dec)

Average workforce

Consolidated Income Statement

Msthon Euros}

Revenues

Other revenues
Changes 1n mventones of finished goods and work 1 progress
Total Prodnetion Value

Cost.of goods sold
Personnel expensés
Other expenses

ERTIDA

Dayreviation and amortisation
Provisions

Impatrment of asvet value
Results o con-cunent gssets

Other pains or losses

220 352 375%
I-Deec-17 31-Dec-16 Chg. %
3963 4097 3.3%
5224 513t 18%
Jan-Dec 17 Jan-bec 16 Chg. %
920 916 (4%
719 852 -157%,
609" M9 -153%
31-Dee-17 31-Dec-16 Chg. %
6,768 8,140 -169%
11,165 10.469 66%
7.382 7.260 1.7
9022 2913 12%
20431 2080 L%
37403 32835 139%
Jan-Bec 17 Jan-Dec 16 Chp.€m
7,254 s 12m
613 s se
29 8 2
7,896 6541 1,356
4976 (L9S.. (38D
(1,497} (1.248) (20,
@ue)- A @
1,275 1,12 82
1633) {547) (86)
G0 @30 201
N (1o 101
m 640 (528)
4 43 39
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21.4%

10:6%
247 4%
20.7%

2_3'9%
18 3%
277%

7.0%

157%
87 1%
93 7%

-826%

<01 2%,



Net financial result
Tmnslafion differences {net)

Ci};ange in ﬁhanciai mvestment provisions

Share in results of associates aceemted for by the equity method

‘Chanslgf.‘inztbjr‘ valﬁe.‘ of financial instramesits
Tt on profit

Profit !-(loss) from: conﬁnﬁing activities

. Nn_n—.contnlling mierests.

Attributahle Net Profit

@R).

(10}

o

oo -
»
356 |

aosy

251

ai) |

220

@711y

28
0
_ 70
[5)

(34)
374

@2)
352

@68)
349
o8
(1)

(139
48
51)
(72)

&)
(132)

271%

521%
-1357%
129.8%
-1989%

na

~12.6%

211 8%
329%

209%

-31.5%

In order to facilitate the analysis of financial resuits for the period, a simplified Income
Statement separating ordinary from exceptional impacts is provided below.

{Millon Euros)
Revenues
Cost of goods sold, expenses and other

iocome
EBITDA

‘Depreciation and amortisation

Provisions, imparments and other

EBIT

Net financial result

Share n results of assoiates aceounted for
by the equity mefhod

Othér financial resizlis

EBT
“Tax on profit

Profit / (toss) from continuing activities
“Non-controliing iinterésts

Attributahle Nei Profit

Revenues

(Million euros)
Energy
Infrastructures
Other activities

Conselidation adjustments

Jan-Dec 17

Ordi ‘Excep. Total  Ordinar

7,254 - 7,254
(5.979) (59
1,275 . Lms
(633) G
GB7) . 115 T
c0s. 115 70
G2, 0 Gy
75 (145 (0
23 4 27
382 e 356
{108y 3 (105
274 en 4
@iy 0. @1y
233 (13) 2
Jan-Dec 17
1737
4940
690
13
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Jan-Dec 16
Excep.
Empact
5977
{4.786)
1,192
(547):
“3) g
601, 387
GBIy (298)
70 0
13 7
312 95
Ly 83
195 171
49) 27
146 206
funDeel§  Chg €m
1,796 (59).
3,611 1,329
668 . n
8 (15)

* Chg.
=
Total %
5977 21.4%
(4.786) 249%
2,192 7.0%
(547) 15:7%
344 -14.5%
958 0.6%
671). A3%
70 & 5%
20 66.5%
408 225%
349 7:4%.
374 4%
22) -17:2%:
352 §9.8%
Chg. %
3w
36 8%
5.2%
15 7%



. TGTAL Revenue 7,254 5977 1,277 21.4%

Consolidated revenues increased by 21.4% to €7,254 million, mainly due to the
combined effect of:

¢ The decline in Energy revenues (-3.3%) mainly due to the AWP desconso!idation
(wind turbine business) from 1st April 2016, and despite of the higher revenues
from generation (+4.6%)

o Increase in revenues in all Infrastructure business lines (+36.8%)
Revenues from Other Activities slightly increased by 3.2%

EBITDA
(Million Eurosy JmPect? Lo H janDecls iBreps  Che.ém  Chg %
Enzrgy 726 $T% 740 &% (a4 9%
Infrastructares 426 33% 321 7% 106 330%
Other activitics 124 10% 131 1% B s
t.onsolidarton adjustments (1 1% 0 B (N na
TOTAL EBITDA 1275 100% B9 100.0% 88 T0%
Margin (%) 17.6% 19.9% -2.4pp

Note: EBITDA contributions calculated before consolidation adjustments.

EBITDA increased by 7.0% to €1,275 million. This amount is reached due to the higher
contribution of Infrastructure (+33.0%), which largely offset the slight decrease in
Energy division (-1.9%) and the lower contribution from Other Activities (-5.2%).

EBIT

EBIT amounted to €720 million, 27.1% lower than in FY2016. This was mainly due to
the accounting of exceptional impacts last year for a total amount of €375 million
(mainly related to capital gains derived from the AWP-Nordex deal).

Earnings Before Tax (EBT)
(Millson Exros) Jao-Dec16  janDec1?7 Chg.ém  Che %
Energy 134 107 @) 251%
Intrasti aetures 120 122 (2 -1.9%
Other activities 127 8s 42 489%
Consolidation aljustments 1 (3} 4 ha
Ordinary EBT 382 3tz o 23%
Estranrdinaries 26) 95 2 -1267%
TOTAL ET 356 a08 Gl)  126%
Margm (%) 49% 68% -L9pp
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Ordinary EBT increased by 22.3% to €382 million boosted not only by the increase in
EBITDA, but also by the lower financial expenses.

Including the exceptional results derived from the contribution of Real Estate assets to
Testa Residential, Ruta 160°s capital gain and the impairment of the Group’s stake in
Nordex total EBT reached €356 million, -12.6% vs. FY2016.

Attributable Net Profit

Attributable net profit amounted to €220 million, 37.5% lower than in FY2016 mainly
due to higher taxes, since in 2016 a large part of the exceptional impacts generated tax
credits. However, ordinary attributable net profit reached €233 million, which means an
annual growth of 59.5%.

Consolidated Balance Sheet
(Million Eurey) 31Dec-l7  3Decd6  Chg€m  Che %
“Propery, plant and equipment & iitngible assets 8393 . M (LS8D . -1539%:
Financial assets : 1,523 1,340 . 183 13 7%
Goodwill | 186: B e 1%
Other non-vurrent assets 1083 1,291 (208) -16 1%
NON-CURRENT ASSETS 11,164 12684  (L,500)  -118%
Inventories 7 78 38 49%
Accounts receivable 18927 1,724 168 9.8%
Other cuirent assefs 298 250 48 19 1%
Cuirent financial assefs 7 211 36 16.9%
Cash and cash squevalents 1273 1428 (56 -109%
Assets held for sale 1432 3277 £105 337%
‘CURRENT ASSETS s wm o g Wk
TOTAL ASSETS 17,147 17,408 (260) 15%
Caputal 57 0 - 0%
“Reserves 3486 34 M 1.4%
Profit / {oss) athubutable to the Parent Company 20 .32 (132 3TS%
Treasury stock ® ey it 78
EQUITY ATIRIBUTABLE TO THE PARENT : i
N _ 3760 - 3831 i) -1 9%
'NON-CONTROLLING INTERESTS 203 . 26 (€3 -309%
EQUITY 3963 . 409 (1) 34%
Tnterest-hearing berrownmgs - 5272 - 5,602 @30)  -59%
Other not-current liabilities 28050 3237 @32)  -154%.
NON-CIRRENT LIABALITIES 8877 8830 (762) 0.4%
Interest-bearing borrowings 1472 1,169 34 26 (%
Trade payables 2,199 Fo 1 B ) 43%

Cther ament habilities 962 819 143 17 4%




Luabilities assnulatedto assets-heid tor sule
CURRENY LIABILITIES
TOTAL LIABILITIES AND EQUITY

(Million enros)

EBITDA
E——
Working capital

Other operating {:ashﬂo_m
(perating caslhflow

Gross ordinary Capex
Drvestmerts ,
Orther mvestment cashflow
‘NetInves hnemCashﬂow

Tredsury stk
Debt denvatives
Forex

Dividend

Chﬁpgpg 11 scope and otiiors.inc. convertible bonds

Financing/others cashflow

Change in net debt decrease/(inerease)

Attributable Equity

474 186 -
5107 4471
17,147 17,408

Jan-Dee 17 Jan-Dee 16
1.275 1192
(254) (330)
(343) 163
@2s1) 244)

427 780
(2m 916}
201 64
L1C 133
609y (719)
6 -
25 {12)
105 @0
(165) (143)
130 243
89 33
o3 28

287
(260)
Chg
83

76
1505}

(DR,

(353

4
137
23;
0

i)
37
186
(22)
73
122

(21

154:4%
14.2%
-1.5%

Chg. (%)

T{%
230
na

2.9%
-45.3%

-0 4%
na
=17 3%
15a%

i
na
na

-i54%
-36:0%
369.7%

432.1%

ACCIONA's attributable equity as of 31st December 2017 reached €3,760 million, 1,9%

lower than the previous year.

Net Financial Debt

Non-tecourse financial debt

Recowmse fihancial Jebt
Finaneial debt (4
Cash + Cash ef[lmalmts
Net financial deb

= Financial debt includes debentures and bonds.

31-Dec-17
Amount Total

1,889: 28%

4,855 72%

6T 100%
1,520

5224

31-Lec-16

Antount Tomal

2254 33%

4,517 67%

6,771 100%
(1,640

s

Chg. fm Chg. %
(363)-  -162%
338 75%
@n- 04%
(1200 1.3%
93. 1.8%

Net financial debt as of 31st December 2017 totalled €5,224 million, 1.8% above
December 2016 levels. This variation in debt was mainly due to the combination of the

following factors:
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o The Operating Cash-flow amounted to €427 million. This figure has been
affected by:
- The improvement in EBITDA by €83 million
- The investment in working capital vs. the cash received in FY2016 (-€343
million vs. +€162 million in 2016) had a negative impact. The main cause of
this variation is the collection of prepayments from construction projects in
2016 that have been partially consumed in 2017.
- The positive effect of the reduction in financial outflows that fell to -€254
million (€76m lower than in FY2016)
e The Net Investrnent Cash-flow of -€609 million included a few one-off
investments in Infrastructure and Energy divisions.
e The positive effect of the exchange rates (€81 million in 2016 vs. +€105 million
2017).

Financial gearing has evolved as follows:

(Million: Euros) 31-Dec-17 31-Dec-16
Gearmg (et Debt/Equity) (%) 132% 125%.
Capital Expenditure
(Million Euros) JanDec1?  JanDecl6  Chg (€m)  Che (%)

Energy 468 489 21 43%
infrastruchues 359 358 1 03%

Constraction and Industnal

Concessions

Water

Services
Other activities 9% &9 24 34 3%
Total Grass Capex 020 916 s 0.4%
Divestments (@01) (64) a3m 215 2%
Total Net Capex 719 852 e 8%

Gross capital expenditure across ACCIONA’s divisions in FY2017 amounted to €920
million.

Energy and Infrastructure divisions comprise the greatest investment effort. The Energy
division invested €468 million related to, among others, the last payments for projects
already in operation, the construction of new wind power capacity in Mexico, Australia
and Chile and the acquisition of an additional 50% of a wind farm in Canada.
Infrastructure division investments worth €359 million, including the acquisition of
Geotech (€139 million).

In terms of divestments, they include the sell of a real estate asset division and Ruta 160
concession (debt was already classified as liability held for sale).
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As a result, Net Capex has reached €719 million. In terms of cash outflows, Net
Investment Cash-flow amounted to €609 million.

Results by Division
Energy
(Milfion Kuros) JanDec16  Jan-Doclé  Chg.€m  Chg %
Generation 134, 13266 58 46%
National 823 765 58 76%
International S04 501 i o
Nun-ganeration 758 |80 (3223 -139%
Consolidation.adjustments and other (345) -350 6 16%
Revenugs L7137 1,79 (59) 3.3%
Generation 802 782 20 2.5%
Spam 452 412 40 97%
~ Taternanonal 350 370-: (1)) -5.5%.
Non-genetation 32) 27 (59} 2219 1%
Consahdaﬁon adjustments arid-other (44) | -70 25 _36.'5%
LRITDA 726 740 (14 1.9
Margin %] 418% 41.2%
EBT 134 107 27 25.1%
Margin (%) 7.5% 60%

ACCIONA ECnergy's turnover fell by 3.3% compared to FY2016 to €1,737 million.
EBITDA slightly decreased to €726 million (-1.9%).

Generation EBITDA improved by a 2.5% to €802 million.

The Generation business in Spain grew thanks to higher wholesale prices (€52.24/MWh
vs €39.67/MWh in FY2016) and higher regulated revenues after the periodic review at
the beginning of the year, however, these factors have been mitigated by the regulatory
band mechanism (€25 million), forward sales and lower production.

The International Generation business also suffered from lower generation volumes -
partly due to events of force majeure (Mexico and USA), although such effect was partly
offset by the new capacity in operation.

EBITDA contribution coming from Non-Generation activities decteased mainly due to
the reduction in the turnkey project business and AWP deconsolidation.

EBT amounted to €134 million, 25.1% higher than FY2016.

Over the last 12 months, consolidated installed capacity increased by 148MW due to the
increase of the international installed capacity and the reduction of 37MW of wind in
Spain (repowering of a wind farm), and 12MW hydro in Spain (end of this concession).
Internationally, 84MW of wind have been added in Mexico, 75MW of wind in India and
38MW of wind in Canada.
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At operational level, consolidated production amounted to 16,929GWh, 2.4% lower than
in FY2016, due to lower hydro and wind power production in Spain and despite the new
international capacity in operation.

Breakdown of Installed Capacity and Production by Technology

Total ~  °  Consolidated Net

Spain sp1 . 12529 4623 9749 5,229 11,054
Wind 470 980 3433 7060 4042 8392
Hydro 87%6 1804 876 1.804 876 1804
Solar Thermoelectric 250 457 250 457 250 457
Solar BV 3 4 .3 4 3 3
 Biomasé 61 414 61 s 59 397
International 3122 7,901 2,874 7,180 2,085 4923
Wind 2671 7208 2,469 6384 1711 4,456

USA

Me):dco Tt

Austraha _

Ttaly e,

South Afnca

India

Portugal

Cahada

Polund

Costa Rica

LChile

Croatia

Hungary
Solar PV 386 572 41 416 301 387

Chile L 2

South Africa 44

Portugal | _
Solar Thermoelectrs (USA) 64 121 - 64 121 ! 80
TolWind a2 wes s DER S7S 128
Total other technologies 1,640 337 1595 3271 1,531 3,130
Tofal Energy sem mal e me» s 18T
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Infrastructures

(Miliron euros) Jan-Dec 17 Jan-Dee 16 Chg. € Chg. %
Construction 3131 1,983 1148 s79%
Tndustrial 274 174 100 57 4%
Concessions 140 110 30 22:7%
Y aler 682 708 (26) =37
Services 753 677 % 2%
Consehdation adjustnests (393 -41 2 +8%
Revenites 4940 3611 1329 368%
Constrctron 197 116 81 70 4%
fndustrial 10 6. 4 0d%
Concessions 56 51 4 6 7%
Water 130 119 i 92%
Serices 34 28 6 22 6%
EBETDA 426 321 106 3%
Margmm (%) §6% 89%
2ot 120 122 @ e
Murgm %) 24% 3 4%,

Revenues increased in both businesses amounting to €3,131 million in Construction
(+57.9%) and €274 million in Industrial (+57.4%).

EBITDA stood at €207 million backed by the growth of works in progress, as well as the
growth of capital-intensive construction projects, with greater EBITDA margins. It
should be noted that such high level of income and EBITDA is exceptional due to the
simultaneous development of important projects that are investment intensive.

Construction & Industrial Backlog

(Million Euros} 31-Deci7  31-Decl6  Che % “;‘,g"
Construction 6,287 752 -165%- 33%
Industral 481 613 21 5% P
Water 17,165 10,469 6.6% 59%
Services 498 783 147% ki)

10TAL 18,831 1392 29% 100%
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A, Constructiont and Industrial

(Millson Enzos) JanDec17 JanDecl6 Chigé€m  Che %
Goastruction s 198 1,148 ST.9%
Industnal 274 7 100 574%

Reveues M 215 4 57.8%
Canstruction 1w s B T04%
Margin (%) 63% se%

Industrtal 10 - 6 4 60
Margin (%) 35% 3%, '

EBITDA 207 22 85 699%

| Margin (%) 61% 6%

EBT 57 " 56 1 19%

 Margm (%) 17% 26%

Revenues increased in both businesses amounting to €3,131 million in Construction (+57.9%)
and €274 million in Industrial (+57.4%).

EBITDA stood at €207 million backed by the growth of works in progress, as well as the growth
of capital-intensive construction projects, with greater EBITDA margins. It should be noted that
such high level of income and EBITDA is exceptional due to the simultaneous development of
important projects that are investment intensive.

Construction & Industrial Backlog

As of 31st December 2017, backlog amounted to €6,768 million, 16.9% lower than in
FY2016.

It is to be highlighted the award of the contract for the construction of the Ciudad de
Mexico International Airport’s terminal, as well as the new construction projects of
Cebu Bridge in Philippines, Pan America road in Panama and Marga Marga Hospital in
Chile.

Furthermore, ACCIONA-Geotech was awarded during 2017 with a contract regarding
the modernization of the Ballarat Rail Line in Australia, which also contributed to the
construction backlog.

(Million Euros) 31-Dec-17  31-Decl6  Chg % w;?,‘a"‘
Total Spetn. 1,247 . A7 120% 18%
Yotal International 5821 6123 119% 8%
Latin America 2151 Mo -206% 32%
EMEA (nof mc Span} 1.738 2407  -27%% 26%
Ausiralia & Soufh East Asia 1,026 Lias  -105% 15%
Noith America 606 7 459 321% %
TOTAL 6,768 10 -165%  100%
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B. Concessions

(Miflion Euros) Jan-Pec 17 Tag-Dec16  Chg. €m Chg. %

Revenoes 140 110 W 271%

ERIIDA 56 52 4 6.7%
Margun (%) 39.6% 474%

EBT b 13 3 ~203%
A_d":'ar:gm‘ (%) 7.3% _l-l-_fT‘?"n_;

Concessions increased its revenues by 27.7% to €140 million and EBITDA to €56
million.

As of December 31st 2017, Book Value of concessions amounted to €1,211 million

(€368 million in “equity” and €844' million in net debt) and has a total amount of 20
concessions.

*This figure includes the propertional part of the net debt from those concessions accounted by the
equity method {€568m)

C. Water
(Million Eurus) Jan-Deci6  Janlecl? Chg €m  Chg %
‘Revenues 652 768 @)  37%
EBITDA 190 119 1 9.2
Margan (%) 19.1% 16:8%.
EBT 38 38 : 11%
Margin (%) 56% 5:4%

The Water division revenues fell by 3.7%, but EBITDA increased by 9.2% to €130
million, primarily due to the increase of O&M activity which has higher margins.

Water Backlog

Water Backlog as ot December 2017 stood at €11,165 miilion, increasing by 6.6%
compared to FY2016. Among the new-awarded concessions, it is worth to mention the
construction of water treatment facilities in Canada and Panama, as well as the water
management service of Boca de Rio in Mexico.

(Milion euros} 30-Dec-17  31-Dec-16  Chg. (%) “r":;ﬁ"‘
Dec 537 555 -33%. %
08M 2769 2117 308% 259
ATLL 7,858 7.79% 0.8%: 70%
TOTAL 11,168 10,469 66% 1005
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(Million enros) 31-Dec-17 31.Dec-l6  Chg.(%) Vet

—_— : .=
Spain 9,194 9,141 06% B%
International 1970 1,328 484% 18%
TOTAL 16 16469 66%  i00%
D. Services
(Million enres) Jan-Dec 17 Jan-Dee 16 Chg €m Chg %
Revennes 753 617 76 112%
EBITDA 34 © 28 6 226%
Margin (%) 46% . 41%-
EBI 14 s @) -8.5%
- Margin (%) 8% 22% -

The division reported an increase in revenues of 11.2% to €753 million and an EBITDA
increase of 22.6% to €34 million, mainly due to higher volumes in the airport business.

Other Activities
(Million Eurvs) Jan-Dec1?  JanDecl6  Chg.€m  Chg. %

Trasmediterrhrica 426 431 &) 12%

Real Estate 113 105 ] 77%

Bestinver 106 - 85 21 24.9%

Corp and other 45 48 12 <5 0%
Revenues 690 6 2. 3%

Trasmediterrdnea a5 61 (16  260%

Margin (%) 10.5% 141%

Real Estate 12 14 @ -133%

Margin (%} 10.8% . 13.4%

Bestinver 70 - 59 1 189%

Margin (%) 66:1% - 69.4%

Corpr and other @ )] = 5 6%
EBITDA mo om @ s
EBT 127 [ 7 85 - 2 489%
Margin (%) 184% 3 ns%

During FY2017, Other Activities division, which includes Trasmediterrdnea, Real
Estate, Bestinver and others, reported revenues of €690 million, up to 3.2% vs. FY2016.

EBITDA decreased to €124 million (-5.2%), mainly due to Trasmediterranea’s results
and despite the increase in contribution of Bestinver.




Trasmediterranea:

It presents a relatively flat revenues level (-1.2%) with an increase in passengers,
vehicles and lane meters. EBITDA fell to €45 million, due to the increase in fuel costs
related to increase in oil prices.

Jan-Diec 17 Jan-Det 16 Chyg. (%)

Passengers served 2,547,566 2,508,535 1-6%

Cago handled (iane nicties) 6,057,793 5,780,966 4 8%

Vehicles 612046 . 575991 6.3%
Real Estate:

Turnover increased by 7.7% due to the asset rotation strategy (land).

EBITDA, however, fell however by 13.3%, mainly due to desconsotidation of the
divestment of patrimonial assets and relaunching of development activity.

Bestinver:
Bestinver’s AUMs reached €6,058 million as of 31st December 2017, and improved

EBITDA, up to €70 million, 18.9% mainly due to higher average managed funds vs.
FY2016.
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MATERIAL INFORMATION, DIVIDEND AND SHARE DATA

Significant communications to the stock market

16 Januvary 2017: ACCIONA reports the buyback of its remaining convertible
bonds up to a maximum of €108.4m

The Company announced its intention to repurchase up to €108.4m in aggregate
principal amount of its Bonds, representing the outstanding balance of the Bonds not
already held by the Company in treasury stock.

The Repurchase period was expected to close as soon as practicable on 19 January 2017
after market close, subject to the right of the Company to close or extend, at its sole
discretion, the Repurchase at any time.

19 January 2017: ACCIONA informs about the terms & conditions of the buyback
of its remaining convertible bonds

The definitive terms & conditions of the Repurchase were the following:
The aggregate principal amount of the Bonds to be repurchased would be €91,600,000.

The repurchase price per Existing Bond will be 134.80% of its principal amount, which
represents an aggregate consideration of approximately €123.48m for the Repurchase as
a whole.

The Company has accepted all offers for repurchase of the Existing Bonds.

Given that, following completion of the Repurchase, less than 15% in aggregate
principal amount of the Bonds originally issued will be outstanding, the Company will
be able to exercise its early redemption call in relation to all remaining Bonds at its
principal amount plus accrued and unpaid interests, subject to the decision of the Board
of Directors.

08 March 2017: ACCIONA Construction Australia-Geotech Group Transaction

ACCIONA Construccién S.A has indirectly acquired through ACCIONA Geotech
Holding Pty Ltd the 82.4% of Geotech Holdings Pty Ltd, parent company of the
Australian construction group Geotech for a cash consideration of AUD197m (subject to
potential working capital, net debt and capex adjustments) and the assignment to
ACCIONA Australia of three projects currently under tender. The transaction values
Geotech at AUD262m (Enterprise Value) and the undertaking that ACCIONA Australia
will be the bidding vehicle for future civil construction projects in Australia and New
Zealand.

06 April 2017: Official announcement and submission of proposal of the Annual
General Meeting

On 6 April 2017, the company informed the CNMV (Spanish Stock Market Regulator)
of the Annual General Meeting announcement for 17 May 2017 for its first call, or the
18 May 2017 for its second one, and submitted the proposed agreements.
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28 April 2617: Liquidity contracts and specialists

On 28 April 2017, the Company informed about the temporary suspension of the
Liquidity Contract subscribed with Bestinver Sociedad de Valores to manage its treasury
stock in order to allow the purchase of 300,000 shares of ACCIONA 5.A by ACCIONA
S.A. that represent 0.523% of the share capital that is intended to cover 4.3%
outstanding from the Senior Convertible Bonds, after direct repurchases and the ones
made on the 1 7th, 18th and 19th of January 2017.

28 April 2017: Liquidity contracts and specialists

On 28 April 2017, ACCIONA acquired, through a mass operation, a total share issue of
221,357 treasury stocks that represent a 0.386% of the social capital whose unit price is
€74.70. After this transaction, the Company informed about the resumption of the
operations under the liquidity contract subscribed on 3 July 2015 with Bestinver
Sociedad de Valores S.A. in order to manage its treasury stock.

18 May 2017: Annual General Meeting — Approval of Agreements

On 18 May 2017 the Annual General Meeting adopted, among others, the following
agreements:

To approve the individual annual accounts of ACCIONA S.A. for 2016, as well as the
cansolidated annwal accounts of the group companies for which ACCIONA S.A. is the
parent.

To appoint KPMG Auditores S.L. as the accounts auditor of ACCIONA S.A. and its
corporate group for a period of three years.

To re-elect Mr. Jerénimo Gerard Rivero as Independent Director and appoint Ms. Karen
Christiana Figneres Olsen as Independent Director.

To authorise the purchase of shares of ACCIONA S.A. by the Company and other
companies of the Group, respecting the legal limits and requirements and the agreed
conditions, invalidating the authorisation approved at the AGM of Shareholders on 24
May 2012 for the unused amount.

To approve the ACCIONA S.A.’s Directors’ Remuneration Policy for the years 2018,
2019 and 2020. To empower the Board of Directors to interpret, develop, formalise and
execute this agreement,

To increase the maximum number of available shares for the Shares Delivery Plan and
Performance Shares 2014-2019 by 100,000 shares, without prejudice to subsequent
increases, if proposed by the Board of Directors and approved by the General
Shareholders” Meeting.

To approve, for information purposes, the Directors’ Remuneration Report for the year
2016.

To approve the Sustainability Report 2016.

10 July 2017: The Company announces the completion of the lignidity contract
signed on 2 July 2015

ACCIONA informs that the liquidity contract subscribed with Bestinver Sociedad de
Valores, SA has been cancelled due to the entry into force on 11 July 2017, of Circular
1/2017 of 10 May, by the CNMV on liquidity contracts.
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10 July 20i7: ACCIONA announces the subscription of a new liquidity contract in
accordance with Circolar 1/2017 of the CNMV

ACCIONA informs that it has entered into a liquidity agreement with Bestinver
Sociedad de Valores, S.A. for the management of its treasury stock.

The Contract will have a duration of twelve months, which may be extended tacitly for
an equal period.

27 July 2017: ACCIONA reports the agreement reached with Testa Residencial for
the contribution of real estate assets

ACCIONA via its subsidiary ACCIONA Real Estate, S.A.U. has signed an agreement to
contribute its residential rental business to Testa Residencial SOCIMI, S.A. for €336m.
As consideration, ARE will receive newly issued shares in Testa representing 21% of
the total share capital.

1 Angnst 2017: ACCIONA reports the early redemption call of the outstanding
Convertible bonds

ACCIONA informs that there are in circulation less than the 15% of the Bond’s
aggregate principal amount originally issued.

The Company has decided to exercise its early redemption call on all current remaining
Bonds at its principal amount plus accrued and unpaid interest up to (but excluding) the
redemption date pursuant tc the terms and conditions of the Bonds, and redeem and
cancel the issuance entirely.

11 Augnst 2017: ACCIONA announces the agreement for the sale of the Chilean
highway concession, Ruta 160

The Company, via its subsidiaries ACCIONA Concesiones Chile Limitada and
ACCIONA Construccién, S.A., has entered into an agreement with Globalvia for the
sale of 100% of the Ruta 160 shares. The consideration transaction amounts to €335m,
including the assumption of €117m of project debt and €33m corresponding to the
market value of the financial derivatives associated to the debt.

25 October 2017: ACCIONA announces the disposal of its stake in
Trasmediterrdnea

ACCIONA has reached an agreement with Naviera Armas Group for the sale of its
holdings in Trasmediterrdnea (92.71%). The agreement implies an enterprise value for
100% of the company in a range of €419m to €436m, depending on the level of
achievement of an earn out agreed with the Purchaser. The sale price for the shares
owned by the Company amounts to €260.4m, of which €30.4m have been
unconditionally deferred. In addition, the Purchaser will assume the repayment of a debt
between Trasmediterrédnea and other companies belonging to the ACCIONA Group for
an amount of €127.3m. The transaction is subject o the fulfilment of a condition
precedent.

14 December 2017: ACCIONA reports on the modification of the Plan 2014 for
Delivery of Shares and Performance Shares

The Board of Directors of ACCIONA has approved the amendment of the regulation of
the Plan 2017 for Delivery of Shares and Performance Shares to the management of
ACCIONA and its group.

Amendments to the regulation of the Plan consist of*
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a) Regarding Executive Directers:

o Deferral, of at least one vear, in the defivery of 20% of the shares they are
entitled to receive, also subject to the condition that their delivery does not
disclose a material restatement of the ACCIONA Group's consolidated financial
statements.

Possibility of claiming, under cerain circumstances and during the 3 years
foilowing the date on which the delivery of the shares has been made, the refund
of the equivalent amount (“claw-back™).

Q

¢ Delivery date: The date specifically determined by the Board of Directors after
the Ordinary General Shareholders” Meeting.

o The tax regime applicable to the Executive Directors is in line with that
established for the other beneficiaries of the Plan's regulations.

c Remuneration may be replaced at the proposal of Appointments and
Remuneration Committee, in the delivery of shares or different Alternative
Instruments provided for in the Plan’s regulations.

b) Regarding Beneficiaries other than Executive Directors:

o Extend the Plan duration by two additional years (that is, up to and including
2021) under the terms and conditions provided for in the Plan's regulations.

o It is foreseen the possibility of making an extraordinary allotment and delivery
of ACCIONA shares in multi-annual periods (minimum of three years) to one or
more Beneficiary Executives (other than Executive Directors) for the
achievement of extraordinary resulis.

¢ Remuneration may be replaced at the proposal of Appointments and
Remuneration Committee, in the delivery of shares or different Alternative
Instruments provided for in the Plan’s regulations.

18 December 2017: ACCIONA announces the temporary suspension of Liquidity
Contract

ACCIONA announces the temporary suspension of the Liquidity Contract signed on 10
July 2017 with Bestinver Sociedad de Valores, S.A., for the management of its treasuiy
stock to allow the purchase by ACCIONA, S.A., of up to 90,000 shares of ACCIONA,
S.A., representing 0.157% of the social capital through two block transactions. Shares
that will be used to implement the Plan of Delivery of Shares and Performance Shares.

18 December 2017: ACCIONA informs of the resumption of operations under the
Liquidity Contract subscribed after the block transactions.

ACCIONA has acquired, through two block transactions, a total package of 96,000
company’s own shares. representing 0.157% of the social capital at the cost of €70.71
per share. In addition, once completed the reported operations, the Company informs of
the resumption of the transaction under the Liquidity Contract signed on 10 July 2017
with Bestinver Sociedad de Valores, S.A., for the management of its treasury stock.

From 31 December 2017, ACCIONA has released the following material information:

26 Januvary 2018: The Company communicates the internal reorganisation carried
out by one of the reference sharcholders and the subsistence of the Pacto
Parsasocial de Estabilidad

The family Group of Mr. José Marfa Entrecanales de Azcarate, in order to rationalise the
management of its participation, updating and simplifying its corporate governance, has
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implemented an internal reorganisation resulting in La Verdosa SL directly owning
5.31% of ACCIONA.

— The terms of the aforementioned Pacto Parsasocial de Estabilidad, to which La Verdosa
SL. adheres, have not been modified, with each of its signatories retaining full freedom
to vote and, therefore, there is no agreement on ACCIONA’s management.

= (9 February 2018: ACCIONA reports on the news published in the newspaper "El
Economista" regarding certain energy assets.

In relation to the news published in the newspaper "El Economista", ACCIONA informs
that it is holding negotiations with Contour Global to carry out a corporate operation
related to energy assets, but neither the perimeter, nor the valuations, nor the other terms
and conditions mentioned in the article reflect the reality of it.

= 22 Febroary 2018;: ACCIONA reports on the mews published by the media
regarding the Alta Ter-Llobregat (ATLL) water management contract.

- Regarding the news published by the media in relation to the Supreme Court ruling
dismissing the Generalitat de Catalunya and Sociedad General de Aguas de Barcelona,
S.A. contentious-administrative appeal against the ruling of the High Court of Justice of
Catalonia dated 22 June 2015, confirming the annulment of the award of the alta Ter-
Llobregat water management contract already decreed by the High Court of Justice of
Catalonia. ACCIONA reports that its appeal, based on different grounds than those
portrayed on these appeals, has not yet been resolved. Therefore, no sentence has been
notified regarding this matter.

—  Once the Sentence is notified, ACCIONA will analyse the grounds for its decision and
will determine the appropriate legal and/or judicial actions.

~ In any case, it should be remembered that in accordance to Article 56 related to the
public tender and decision of the Regional Departments of Economy & Knowledge and
Territori i Sostenibilitat of the Generalitat de Catalunya dated 5 July 2013, ATLL
Concesionaria de 1a Generalitat de Catalunya is obliged to continue providing service
until the compensation set on the terms of reference and on the Consolidated Text of the
Public Contract Law is paid and until the minutes in relation to the return of the assets
and rights linked to the public service is signed.

Dividend

On the 28 February 2017, ACCIONA’s AGM proposed the payment of a dividend of
€164.6m (€2.875 per share) against the results of 2016 fiscal year. The payment was
made on 3 July 2017.
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Share data and share price performance

ACCIONA Share Price Evolution (€/share)
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Key Share Data
31-Dex-17
Price 4129 December 2017 (E/share) 68,04
Price at 30 December 2016 (€/share) 6993
Low in FY 2017 (10/112017) 6485
High n FY 2017 (06/06/2017) %5 47
Average daily wrading (shares) amay
Average daily trading (€} 12,753 544
Nﬁnbg; qfsha;es o 57,259,55(_)_
Market capitalisation at 29 December 2017 (€ mullions) 3,89

Share Capital

At 31 December 2017 the share capital of ACCIONA amounted to €57,259,550 divided
into 57,259,550 shares with a face value of €1 each.

The group’s treasury shares as of December 31st 2017 amounted to 45,702 shares,
which represent a 0.08% of the share capital.
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The changes in treasury shares in financial year 2017 were as follows:

2017 2016
N:mof Cost Nsm_;z:df . cost

Opening balance T 233,898 14,403 320460 = 20238
Additions 3395430 . 253160 49255 | 382
Retrements - (3392916) (253,124)  (4987221)  (338,300)
 Liquidity contract 2,514 136 5034 a9
Additions G3/05/2017 (%) 21357 16569 = -
Other additions 90,001 6370 -

Retirements N (502068) (34332) . (9159  (5819)
~ Other movemeats 1%0710) (1393  EL599) (5.519)
Closing balunce 45702 3,146 233,898 14,403

* Specific acquisition to meet the convertible bond conversion requirements

Events after the reporting period

On 21 February 2018, Acciona Group and the company ATLL Concessionaria de la
Generalitat de Catalunya S.A. became aware of the judgement handed down by the
Supreme Court on the cassation appeal filed by the Generalitat de Catalunya against the
High Court of Justice of Catalonia (HCJC) ruling which invalidated the procedure to
award said concession (appeal 2725/2015). This judgement dismisses the claims brought
forward by the Generalitat and confirms the HCJC ruling.

The Acciona Group is currently waiting for notification of the cassation appeal
2682/2015 filed by Gestié Catalana de Aigues, and appeal 2678/2015 filed by the
Concessionaire and by Acciona Agua against the HCJC judgement which invalidated the
procedure to award said concession.

On 26 February 2018, an agreement has been reached for the sale of the thermal solar
business in Spain to subsidiaries of the company Contour Global, consisting on five
plants with a total capacity of 250 MW for an amount of 1,093 million euros (including
debt). In addition, the parties have agreed to the payment of an earn-out of up to 27
million euros. The effectiveness of the operation is conditional upon compliance with
several conditions precedent.




Main Risks associated with the ACCIONA Group’s business activities

The risk scenarios considered in the ACCIONA Risk Management System have been
classified into four groups: financial, strategic, operational and unpredictable, with the
first two groups identified by the Group’s executives as those presenting a higher risk
profile.

1. Financial and Econoinic Risks:

Mainly fluctuations in exchange rates, interest rates and financial markets, changes in
the prices of raw materials, liquidity, cash flow, late payment or loss of clients.

In order to mitigate the exchange rate risk, ACCIONA engages currency derivatives
(mainly exchange-rate hedging instruments) to cover significant future transactions and
cash flows in line with the tolerated risk thresholds. Note 19 to the annual accounts for
2017 includes detail of current and non-current assets and liabilities and of net equity at
31 December 2017 in the main currencies in which the Group operates.

Interest rate risk is particularly material with regard to the funding of infrastructure
projects, in concession contracts, in the construction of wind farms or solar plants and
other projects where the variation in interest rates may have a strong impact on their
profitability. It is mitigated by hedging transactions through the engagement of
derivatives. (Mainly Interest Rate Swaps, IRS).

The risk of fluctuations in prices of raw materials, mainly when purchasing fuel, is
fundamentally mitigated in the short term by specific hedging transactions generally
through the engagement of derivatives.

As regards credit and liquidity risks, the Group negotiates operations exclusively with
solvent third parties and requires sufficient assurances to mitigate the risk of financial
losses in the event of any default.

Together with a suitable level of reserves, it also constantly monitors the forecasts and
the current levels of cash flows to match these against the maturity profiles for financial
assets and liabilities.

2. Strategic Risks:

They are risks that have the consequences of reducing the growth of the company and
failing to meet the objectives due to inability to respond to a dynamic and competitive
environment. These risks include organisational changes, investments and divestments,
threats irom competitors, economic, political and legal changes, and the impact of new
technologies or research and development.

ACCIONA minimises this type of risk through its own strategy and business model by
applying adequate sectoral and geographic diversification of its businesses; the
performance of exhaustive market research, surveys of competitors and the countries in
which its activities are carried out; as well as through the encouragement of Research
and Development.
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Risks derived from contrary conduct to ethics and integrity. The markets in which
ACCIONA operates could be exposed to risks of an ethical nature that go against the
principles of integrity and respect in existing legislation. ACCIONA has put in place a
Code of Conduct which establishes the basic principles and commitments that all
directors and employees of the divisions as well as suppliers and third parties in contact
with these companies must fulfil and respect when carrying out their activities. There is
a whistleblowing channel, communicated at all levels of the Organisation, to enable
information to be passed on, with guarantees of confidentiality, regarding any irregular
conduct relating to accounting, supervision and auditing as well as any other non-
compliance or breach of the behaviour promulgated in the Code.

3. Operational Risks:

They are risks concerning processes, people and products. They are related to regulatory,
legal and contractual compliance, control systems and procedures, the supply chain,
auxiliary services, information systems, employee productivity and the loss of key
personnel.

In each line of business, specific systems are implemented to cover their business
requirements, systematizing and documenting processes, quality assurance, operations,
planning and economic oversight.

In order to mitigate the risks in the procurement process, controls have been established
to favour free competition and transparency in the processes and to avoid violating
ACCIONA’s commitment to ethical behaviour in these processes.

Every year ACCIONA draws up a map of the risks with its critical suppliers, analysing
the main risks in its supply chain from the perspectives of economics, the environment,
the prevention of occupational hazards, the activity and the country of origin.

4. Unforeseeable Risks:

They are risks related to damage caused to company assets and civil liability risks that
could negatively impact the company’s performance, including criminal acts of a cyber
nature.

ACCIONA has a Corporate Management System for Environmental Crises. This system
includes measures to be foliowed and the allocation of responsibilities and resources
necessary for the adequate management of a crisis situation following any incident
occurring at facilities owned or operated by the Company and leading to consequences
for the environment.

ACCIONA has consolidated its initiatives for management of risks to the environment,
focusing its efforts on the identification and implementation of measures for the
mitigation of the most relevant risks.

As regards the tax risks faced by the Group, these are basically procedures,
communication with business areas that may lead to an inadequate technical analysis,
changes in tax regulations or administrative and jurisprudential criteria, as well as the
reputational risk arising from tax decisions that may damage the Group's image and
reputation.
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Non-Financial Information Statement

Through ACCIONA’s sustainability strategy defined in its Sustainability Master Plan
(SMP), the company responds to the main challenges of sustainable developraent,
particularly regarding the mitigation of climate change, the provision of soiutions to
address water stress and the design of infrastructure adapted to the new realities.

With a time frame up to 2020, the SMP (hiip://pds2020.4 ciona.com/) is structured in
sirategic and operational objectives, applicable to the whole organisation, with
specifications for the different business lines, within the following areas:

o Society: social impact management, dialogue and leadership, social action and
volunteering.

o Climate Change: carbon neutrality, climate risks and educatios.
Environment; eco-efficiency in operations, sustainable water management,

biodiversity.

» Good Governance: ethics, human rights, corporate governance, risk management
and transparency.

* People: health and safety, development and incentives, diversity and inclusion,
and training.

e Value Chain: sustainable management of the supply chain, partners, and clients.
 Innovation: being at the forefront in the field of collaborative innovation and
operational innovation.

Since 2009, sustainability-related actions and undertakings as well as the objectives in
the field of sustainability are promoted by the Board of Directors’ Sustainability
Committee. In addition, the Management Committee includes a body in charge of
sustainability matters. At the same time, the specific objectives and initiatives of each
division within the SMP framework are driven through the Sustainability Committees of
each business.

In order to maintain an attitude of continuous monitoring of new trends and challenges
in sustainability matters, and to delve deeper into the social, environmentai and
governance aspects of relevance for the business and to focus on accountability.
ACCIONA draws up a materiality survey every year.

In 2017 the materiality analysis was updated based on the previous year's study, which
identified and prioritised issues relevant to each of ACCIONA's main lines of business
and their impact along the entire value chain. With regards to the key issues identified,
"Climate change”, "non-financial risks", "Ethics and anti-corruption ", "Human Rights at
Work" and "Occupational Safety and Health" stand out as relevant in the ACCIONA's
main businesses.

Based on this materiality analysis, ACCTONA exhaustively reports on its commitiments,
practices and performance each year in the Annual Sustainability Report, which is
published on the corporate website (hitp/fwww.aceiona.con).

As required by Royal Decree-Law 18/2017 on non-financial information and diversity,
and in accordance with Directive 2014/95/EU, relevant information relating to
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environmental and social issues is provided below, as well as information regarding
staff, respect for human rights and the fight against corruption and briberyl.

Environmental issues

ACCIONA has four specific policies adopted by the Board of Directors’ Sustainability
Committee, which apply to all business lines and countries in which the company
operates: Environmental Policy, Climate Change Policy, Water Policy and Biodiversity
Policy.

In addition, the Code of Conduct includes the duty of ACCIONA and all its staff to
know and adopt the Environmental Policy, and to strive to minimise the environmental
impact of their activities.

ACCIONA’s environmental management model is based on the principles of improving
environmental performance, and it establishes a common action framework for all
company divisions. This model involves considering environmental aspects from the
perspective of an entire life cycle, as well as the identification of risks and opportunities
to ensure improvement and the planned results. Environmental objectives are established
in all business lines, taking as a reference the objectives included in the SMP and
management systems.

The company’s environmental management systems are certified under various
international standards. Those certified under ISO 14001 for example are 100 % of the
company’s certifiable installed MW, 100 % of the marketing and sale of renewable
energy with guarantees of origin accredited by the CNMV, 100 % of the construction
activity in several countries (Spain, Chile, Mexico, Canada, Poland, Australia, etc.),
among other ACCIONA activities. Energy management systems are also certified
according to ISO 50001:2011, as well as all activities carried out by ACCIONA Aguain
12 of its centres for example, in addition to EMAS certifications for the water
distribution network centres of ATLL, among others. Likewise, the Wineries for Climate
Protection certification has been renewed at Bodegas Vifia Mayor.

Environmental risk management is carried out by applying a procedural® methodology,
with which the risks are identified, assessed, prioritised and communicated to the
decision-making bodies, as well as the potential environmental events that could impact
the company and its centres, and the events generated by the company and its centres
which in turn could impact on the environment, in order to establish action policies and
tolerance thresholds. The focus is on the risks that ACCIONA’s activities pose to the
environment, the risks associated with climate change and those associated with water
resources. In addition, the company has procedural mechanisms to manage risks, with
the aim of addressing risks that have turned into environmental crises.

1 Issues relating to the diversity of the Board of Directors are included in ACCIONA’s 2017 Annual Corporate
Governance Report.

Corporate Standards on Envitonmental Risk Management and asscciated Procedures (Environmentat Responsibility,
Climate Change and Water Resources).
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e In 2017, ACCIONA carried out a top-down analysis of the environmental risks
associated with climate change, following the Intergovernmental Panel on
Climate Change (IPCC) methodotogy. Further work has also been done on the
identification and assessment of risk scenarios that could specifically impact
ACCIONA’s centres, activities and locations. The analysis carried out has
obtained a total of 87 climate risk scenarios, of which 13% correspond to
significant risk scenarios.

o In addition, a top-down analysis of risks and opportunities associated with water
resources was carried out, which was able fo identify 77 risk scenarios, 13% of
which are significant risk scenarios.

e With regard to the risks that ACCIONA’s activities pose to the environment, 115
risk scenarios have been analysed and evaluated within the scope of
environmental risk standards.

ACCIONA. has made a commitment to be a carbon neutral company and therefore, all
emissions generated since 2016 that could not be reduced, are compensated through
certified carbon credits. Thanks to ACCIONA’s electricity generation activities being
100% from renewable sources, ACCIONA has avoided the emission of more than 14
million tonnes of CO2.

With the aim of contributing to the mitigation of climate change, the company has
developed plans and programmes to reduce energy consumption and emissions of
greenhouse gases, with a focus on energy efficiency and the use of renewable energy. In
2017, more than 200 centres have consumed energy from 100% renewable energy
sources3.

Regarding water management, in 2017, ACCIONA’s water footprint has geperated a
positive impact on the planet. In addition, plans to monitor and reduce water
consumption3 have been developed in production centres with intensive use of water
resources.

ACCIONA is committed to driving the transition towards a circular economy. In 2017,
progress has been made in setting and achieving specific anpnual goals within the
framework of its Waste Management Plan 2016-2020 promoting a circular econoiny,
which at the group level sets a target to recover 50% of the waste generated in 2020, and
1o reduce the toial amount of waste generated and not recovered by 10% when compared
to 2015. During 2017, the company has recovered approximately 40% of the waste
generated’.

Finally, the new life cycle analyses undertaken duting 2017 has been incorporated into
the company’s portfolio, reaching a total of 50 analyses corresponding to 19 ACCIONA
Construccién, ACCIONA Agua, ACCIONA Service, ACCIONA Energia and Bodegas
Palacio 1894 Group projects, in which the standardised environmental impacts of
various company products and services are exposed.

3 The consolidated data on emissions, energy consumption, water consumption, waste, among others, are published in
the Sustainability Report, after the calculations were verified by an external entity (ongoing at the date the
Management Report was finalised).
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ACCIONA has a total of 187 facilities that are located completely or partially in
protected areas or non-protected areas with high biodiversity values, occupying around
8,000 hectares. The company has identified and assessed the most significant impacts for
each of the facilities at these locations, taking into account the affected species, the
surface area of the facility, the duration of the impacts and their reversibility or
irreversibility. In 2017, the main impacts have been on the water environment (43 %),
fauna (23 %), vegetation (15 %) and to a lesser extent on the atmosphere, soil, landscape
and habitat. ACCIONA has protected and restored more than 120 hectares in the
surroundings of its projects. In addition, the company has a Biodiversity Compensation
and Improvement Programme which consists in designing and implementing voluntary
initiatives that go beyond the administrative environmental requirements.

On the other hand, and aiming to extend its environmental commitment to its suppliers,
ACCIONA has calculated the greenhouse gas emissions of 100 % of its supply chain for
the fourth consecutive year, and the water consumption of 100 % of the suppliers for the
third consecutive year, which makes it possible to carry out an analysis by country,
procurement sector and division.

Social issues and issues related to staff

ACCIONA has a specific Human Resources and Occupational Health and Safety Policy
which reflects the company's commitment to ensure the respect for human rights and the
principles governed by the International Labour Organisation, as well as its support for
the objectives of the Seoul Declaration on Safety and Health at Work. In addition,
Acciona’s Code of Conduct sets conduct standards regarding respect for people, equality
and safety and health at work, among others.

With a workforce of 37,403 employees of 111 nationalities, 41 % being of non-Spanish
nationality, ACCIONA considers it essential to attract and retain the best talent to
compete in a global market and achieve the strategic goals that are pursued. Human
capital management at ACCIONA is designed based on the definition of the human
resources strategy and each year it is readjusted to the new business requirements.

For the period 2018-2020, the company sets as its main priority the need to put the
employees at the centre of its strategy, with five basic management pillars. During 2017,
the selection methodology has been revised, incorporating new tests that allow the
capabilities that are required to be detected in a more effective way, and it has defined an
internal mobility control panel. In the same way, a new Performance Management
Model has been developed formed by four gears, launched through the first two phrases:
Target Setting, Performance Status, My Development and Pay Decisions.

In addition, the company considers training to be an essential part for the professional
development of individuals and therefore, in 2017, has carried out various initiatives
such as the M3 Plus manager training, the TMAX+ programme for technicians, the new
programme on Digital Skills and the new ACCIONA Sustainability Course, among
others.

In 2017, voluntary rotation has decreased compared to the previous year to 3.7, the total
rotation having increased from 6.59 in 2016 to 7.6 this year,




At ACCIONA, nearly ali employees are covered by collective labour regulations in
different countries (in certain countries, and due to commissioning reasons or legal
framework reasons, there may be a minimum number of workers who are not covered, in
any case this is less than 1% of the total staff).

Depending on the country and the performed activity, the occupational and social risks
associated with the projects carried out by the company are different: the most labour-
intensive businesses increase the risk associated with personnel management. Also, the
protection of minorities stands out in certain countries (BBEEE requirements in South
Africa, First Nations in Canada, Indigenous Peoples in Australia), as well as the
promotion of equality (Europe, Canada, etc.), and the protection of immigrant groups
(Middle East and Asia). The management of these risks at ACCIONA involves aligning
the overall processes and objectives of diversity and socially responsible recruitment
with the development of specific plans and procedures where required. To do this,
externai audit processes on working conditions are established in certain high-risk
situations, as is the case of the United Arab Emirates.

In order to ensure these objectives are met, the results obtained in the field of equality
and socially responsible recruitment are reported on 2 monthly basis. These results are
anatysed by each business and country division in order 1o determine the action and/or
correction plans required to ensure the objectives are met.

In the specific case of Spain, all activity sectors are covered by Equality Plans in
accordance with Organic Law 3/2007 for effective gender equality between woimen and
men, signed with the most representative labour unions, in which the results are reported
and assessed jointly every six months. Similar mechanisms are implemented in countries
such as Australia, Mexico and Canada.

Regarding the gender diversity, in 2017, 30% of the total staff are women, occupying
12.8% of the total number of Director positions and 19.8% of management positions.
With regards to the employability of people with disabilities, 3.52% of the equivalent
employment of the total workforce in Spain has been reached.

In matters regarding occupational safety and health, ACCIONA has action plans and
specific objectives for promoting the health of its employees and collaborators and
preventing occupational risks. Within the occupational risk management system, the
company makes a continuous effort to assess the specific risks associated with each
activity (e.g., risks associated with occupational diseases, construction works,

machinery, work at height, electrical contacts, etc.).

It should be noted that the majority of ACCIONA’s businesses are certified according to
the OHSAS 18001 standard (100% of ACCIONA Energy, 97% of ACCIONA
Infrastructure, 100% Corporate, 100% ACCIONA Real Estate and 100% Bestinver). In
addition, ACCIONA Infrastructure has other local voluntary certifications, such as the
COR in Canada and the OFSC Federal Safety in Australia.

The Prevention Commitice holds a meeting twice a year, made up of the OHS Managers
from ACCIONA’s different divisions and business lines and the human resources
department; the aim is to follow up on the projects that are ongoing and their level of
development, as well as the occupational accidents in the period.
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In the last such Committee, the data on accidents occurred on 2017 was analysed and the
investigations into the causes and corrective measures of fatal accidents both of
employees and subcontracted employees were reviewed. ¢

The company carries out different preventive actions such as the Health and Welfare
Plan, the Road Safety Plan, actions in the field of education in all divisions, raising
awareness and disseminating information relating to safety, among others. Some of the
infrastructure division’s initiatives should be noted, for example, the Leader Project
which establishes leadership habits in OHS, as well as the Behaviour Based Safety for
You (BBS4U) project, the aim of which is to control and prevent risks related to
worker’s behaviour from occurring. At ACCIONA Energia, the Think Safe programme
has been implemented to improve the preventive culture of all the employees of the
division, by taking part in awarcness meetings.

ACCIONA extends its culture and commitment to health and safety through its entire
supply chain, involving contractors or subcontractors in preventive and training
activities, and monitoring the accident rate statistics of contractors and subcontractors. In
addition, specific initiatives have been developed, such as for example, the Voluntary
Protection Programme for companies collaborating with ACCIONA Infrastructuras, so
that these companies improve the occupational risk prevention standards and can be
certified with a seal of approval which qualifies them as "safe companies”. The
implementation of this programme has resulted in 39 improvement plans in 2017.

Social issues related to local communities

ACCIONA's Sustainability Policy, approved by the Board of Directors’ Sustainability
Committee in 2013, includes the company's commitment to create value for the
communities where it operates, as well as to maintain regular and fluid dialogue with its
interest groups. This commitment to the interests of local communities is also
incorporated into the Code of Conduct. In addition, by the end of 2017, work has been
done on developing a specific relational policy with interest groups which will be
adopted in 2018.

The company has developed its own methodology for Social Impact Management
(SIM), to analyse and address the social consequences of the projects on people, both
negative and positive. This methodology is being implemented through a specific
corporate procedure and is applicable to construction, operation and service projects of
ACCIONA Infrastructure and ACCIONA Energy. The Social Impact Management
methodology includes the following phases:

* Characterisation of the social risk: study of the degree of social risk of the project
through the characterisation of the social risk starting at the design and bid phase.

* Social evaluation of the project: analysis of the socio-demographic characteristics
of the populations in the area of influence of the project, identification and
assessment of the positive or negative social impacts, and preparation of a social
action proposal.

4 Accident rates are published in the Sustainability Report, after the ealculations were verified by an
external entity (ongoing at the date the Management Report was finalised).
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e Communication and dialogue with communities: depending on the type of
project, means of communicating are established with local communities and
other interest groups to inform them of the project, its main impacts, and the
social measures to be carried out.

e Implementation and monitoring of the measures: implementation of the measures
identified to avoid and mitigate negative social impacts, as well as to strengthen
the positive impacts.

The possible negative impacts that the SIM methodology focuses on are, among others:
those affecting basic services and supplics to the communities; problems of road safety
in urban environments; alteration of basic rights such as education and health; and
changes in housing prices. On the other hand, the positive impacts that are generated
when projects are developed are the recruitment of local staff, improvement of access to
traffic routes and stimulating the local economy, among others, are highlighted.

With regards to the communications and dialogue with local communities, ACCIONA
Energy, in addition to the usual channels within the projects, has a form on its websile
through which any person or group affected by the projects can raise a query and/or
suggestion. ACCIONA Infrastructure establishes a suggestions and complaints channels
for projects in which the client requires it or allows it.

During 2017, the SIM methodology has been implemented in a totat of 100 ACCIONA
projects (a 22% increase compared to 2016) in 33 countrics (compared to 23 in the
previous year), 13 projects belong to ACCIONA Energy and 87 belonging to ACCIONA
Infrastructure (Construction, Water, Industrial and Services).

In addition, social impact management has been carried out in 12 projects of the
Infrastructure division that have been classified as relevant. i.e. projects which although
are not within the scope of the methodology, are considered as strategic for the business.

The projects involved are diverse: construction of linear infrastructures and buildings,
construction and operation of water treatment plants, and construction and operation of
wind farms and photovoltaic plants, among others. For example, in 2017, the social
impacts have been managed on the construction of the Quito Metro (Ecuador), a water
treatment plant in Metesusto (Colombia), a solar thermal plant in Kathu (South Africa),
a wind farm in Bannur (India), the El Romero Solar photovoltaic plant (Chile), etc.

The main social measures implemented to mitigate negative impacts and enhance the
positive impacts in 2017 have been information campaigns about the project,
rehabilitation and improvement of areas surrounding the projects, professional training
for project workers, as well as environmental awareness-raising and social actions,
education and health campaigns for schools, collaboration agreements to activate the
local economy, among others.

As a novelty, in 2017, 9 external audits have been carried out, 2 on Energy projects and

7 on Infrastructure projects in order to assess the degree of implementation of the SIM
methodology.
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Issues related to human rights

As set out in the Code of Conduct, the Human Rights Policy, and the Human Resources
and Occupational Health and Safety Policy approved by the Board of Directors,
ACCIONA is committed to respecting the human rights and public freedoms recognised
in the Universal Declaration of Human Rights of the United Nations; ACCIONA
assumes the Declaration on Fundamental Principles and Rights at Work, the ILO
Agreements, the OECD's Guidelines for Multinational Enterprises and the United
Nations Global Compact, among others, as basic conduct guidelines. Any alleged breach
or violation of the conducts contained in the Code of Conduct, including human rights
issues, can be communicated through the company’s Ethical Channel.

The company developed a human rights risk diagnosis, taking the UN’s Guiding
Principles on Business and Human Rights as a frame of reference. During 2017, the
human rights risk categories have been reviewed and the risks associated in the coumtries
in which the company carries out its activities have been analysed. It was concluded that
52 % of the countries in which ACCIONA operates have a severe or very severe risk of
violating human tights, according to Maplecroft.

minorities, rights of indigenous people, women and girls, rights to basic services,
violations by hired security forces, migrant workers' rights, working conditions, health
and safety, forced labour and child labour.

Taking the standards of the Danish Institute for Human Rights and the United Nations
Global Compact as a reference, with regard to the control measures identified based on
the analysis of the company’s procedures and policies, it was concluded that 43% are
completed covered, 52% are partly covered, 3% have insufficient coverage and it does
not apply to 2%.

On the other hand, in relation to the rights of local and work communities that may be
affected by ACCIONA’s activities, the Social [mpact Management (SIM) methodology
has been used to study possible infringements of human rights that a particular project or
service could inflict on communities and other interest groups, among other factors. In
addition, it evaluates the social impacts in terms of severity if significant changes are
incurred in the social, economic or cultural structure of a certain population or group of
employees, or if human rights are affected. In this case, the SIM methodology requires
prevention and mitigation measures for these impacts to be established.

In 2017, 12 of the projects in which the SIM methodology has been implemented
identified possible risks of violating human rights. In all of these cases, measures have
been taken to prevent such violations from occurring,

During 2017, different educational initiatives that include human rights issues have also
been implemented. In ACCIONA s Sustainability Course released to more than 10,000
employees from all divisions and geographical areas, training on the company’s
responsibility to respect labour and civil rights is included. In addition, ACCIONA
offers a specific course on the Code of Conduct which includes human rights within
their 17 basic action guidelines. In relation to the training provided to suppliers,
ACCIONA has designed an online course on "Sustainability applied to your company”
in collaboration with the Spanish Network for the United Nations Global Compact,
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which includes a specific module on human rights and social action. It is expected that a
specific course on human rights for company employees will be develeped in 2018.

Issues relating to the fight against corruption and bribery

The policies established by the ACCIONA group to fight against corruption and bribery
are the following:

o Code of Conduct: establishes the values that should guide the behaviour of alt
managers, directors, empioyees and suppliers of ACCIONA group companies.
The Code of Conduct, adopted in 2007, was revised in 2011 and again in 2016
by the Board of Directors.

e Anti-corruption Policy: approved in 2013, establishes the ACCIONA Group’s
clear position against any corrupt or criminal act, as well as the extrapolation of
{his commitment to all the people that make up the group.

e Anti-corruption Action Standards: approved by the Board of Directors in January
2016, provide compliance guidelines to prevent misconduct which are mandatory
for all employees and parties associated with ACCIONA (including agents,
intermediaries, advisers, consultants and suppliers).

¢ Corporate Standard on donations and non-commercial sponsorships: approved in
2017, developed from the anti-corruption standards.

The Compliance Management department, created in 2015 and reporting directly to the
Executive Presidency and to the Board of Directors’ Audit Commitee, supervises the
respect for and the effectiveness of the procedures, controls and internal commitments
established to ensure compliance with voluntary and regulatory obligations regarding
ethical, organisational, environmental and social matters, and the identification,
prevention and mitigation of associated risks.

The ACCIONA Group maintains relations with Public Administrations and participates
in tender processes for infrastructure in different countries when carrying out its
activities, and therefore the risks of public corruption are analysed in cach project,
evaluating the country and importance of the project.

ACCIONA has adopted and implemented a Crime Prevention and Anti-Corruption
Model which has the following features:

« The model is arranged according to ACCIONA group’s organisational structure,
and it specifies the criminal risks and their corresponding controls for each
department of the group in separate sections.

« Internal controls are associated to each identified risk which mitigate or, at any
rate, decrease the chances of each criminal risk occurring.

« The model documents these internal controls, with a series of attributes that
characterise them which include the area or administration responsible for
implementing the control, and a specific description of the control activity.
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* In addition, the model includes controls from ACCIONA group’s Internal
Control over Financial Reporting Systems (ICoFRS) which are suitable for
preventing certain offences from being committed.

The crime prevention model established for Spain and adapted to local legislative
requirements as applicable is progressively being implanted to the other countries in
which the group’s activities are carried out.

In addition, control measures have been implemented to prevent or identify potential
cases of corruption. The most important controls are reviewed periodically by the
assigned managers. The following actions, among others, are highlighted.

The group has implemented an Ethical channel since 2007 which allows others to
communicate any irregular behaviour related to accounting, monitoring, auditing or any
breach or violation of the conducts contained in the Code and internal standards. The
internal standards impose an obligation to let the company know immediately of any
potential irregularities or breaches of the code that employees might become aware of, as
well as to report any fact, act, conduct or behaviour that is contrary to the Anti-
Corruption Standards.

The Code of Conduct Committee ensures that complaints regarding any possible
breaches are analysed thoroughly, always guaranteeing the confidentiality of the
complaints, as well as ensuring that there is no retaliation of any kind against those who
make the complaints in good faith and respecting, in any case, the people allegedly
involved.

In 2017, 45 communications were received through the Ethical Channel compared to 26
in 2016. Specific instructions were carried out for 51% of the communications received,
involving an external instructor in many cases. The other 49 % were closed without any
instruction, since they were not related to the Code of Conduct {non-financial
anonymous complaints that were merely about labour, organisational or functional
issues) without prejudice to the fact that a preliminary investigation was conducted for
the majority of the archived files without a specific instructor being assigned.

The Code of Conduct, the Corporate Policies, and the Anti-Corruption Standards have
been communicated to the employees and published on the company's intranet and web
page. In addition, employees must mandatorily read and accept the Code of Conduct and
the Anti-Corruption Standards

In 2017, the Compliance Management department published relevant information on
anti-corruption on the intranet page, such as examples of reasonable gifts following the
standards of the Foreign Corrupt Practices Act, instructions regarding contracts with
agents and intermediaries, and clauses that must be contained in the agreements, the
importance of the Ethical Channel in order to communicating irregularities, and a
summary of their activities.

Likewise, two training activities were held in 2017. On the one hand, 1,400 executives
and managers were trained in an Anti-Corruption Course. On the other hand, 6,213
employees were trained in a course on the Code of Conduct, which is available to all
employees in 7 languages.
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With regard to due diligence on the knowledge of third parties, the group has
implemented a tool that allows an initial analysis to be carried out on the third parties
that ACCIONA will/or aims to have a commercial/partnership relationship with, and
which improves the risks management in projects. At the end of 2017, more than 170
third parties were evaluated.

Supply Chain: environmental, social, labour, human rights and anti-corruption issues.

ACCIONA works to extend sustainability to its supply chain and promotes the adoption
of the values contained in jts Code of Conduct among its suppliers and contractors. [n
addition, this Code sets specific guidelines on relations with suppliers. Similarly, the
Ethical Principles for Suppliers, Contractors and Partners which were approved in 2011
cover aspects regarding transparency and ethics, human and social rights, health and
safety, and quality and the environment. In addition, the company has established
minimum standards in the field of ethics and integrity, human rights and corporate
responsibility, environment, safety and health, among others, contained in the No Go
Policies.

The main tool used for supply chain management at ACCIONA is PROCUR-¢, the
Supplier Portal and Tender Tool, in which increasingly detailed controls are established
as the criticality increases. All suppliers registered are required to accept the Supplier’s
Self-Declaration of Compliance document, which reflects ACCIONA’s commitment
with international standards, the Code of Conduct, Ethical Principles for suppliers, and
minimum standards in the field of integrity, environment and quality. This requirement
has already been formally accepted by more than 23,500 suppliers.

Any supplier that submits an offer through PROCUR-e, must complete the self-
assessment questionnaire regarding corporate responsibility (CR) and sustainability;
from this moment on the supplier forms part of the Supplier Risk Map which monitors
and updates the level of risk on a daily basis which is based on 10 variables including
Integrity, Country Risk, CR and Sustainability (focussing on Human Rights), Health and
Safety, the Environment, Assessment, etc. By the end of 2017, more than 16,700
suppliers have a Risk Map.

The following control is established for critical suppliers during the Evaluation and
Approval Process, through which the criticality regarding the level of Integrity, country
risk, CR. sustainability, OHS risk, environmental risk, legal documentation and
assessment are reviewed. By the end of 2017, ACCIONA has 3,850 approved suppliers.
Within the approval process, 296 auditing process have been carried out on suppliers, 47
of them on suppliers from risk countries, in order to ensure the non-infringement of
human rights in those areas, among other aspects. 88.46 % suppliers on ACCIONA sites
in risk countries have been audited.

Focus has been on issues relating to the fight against corruption and bribery, and in
2017, the Integrity variable has been monitored for 5,947 suppliers.

ACCIONA offers its suppliers and contractors training programmes in subjects such as

the Code of Conduct, sustainability, human rights, prevention of discrimination, among
others.
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Foreseeable Evolution

In 2017, the upturn in activity that began in mid-2016 was confirmed. This growth,
which occurred surprisingly in Europe and Asia, led to an increase in the global product
which was estimated at 3.7% over the past year, half a point higher than what was
projected in 2016 for the end of 2017.

This growth force, the high confidence levels, and the US fiscal reform are the main
factors that have led to the global growth expectations being revised, placing them at
3.9% per year for 2018 and 2019. There are a number of risks that threaten this growth,
although these seem to be balanced. The possible correction of financial markets is
highlighted, as a result of the increase in the value of assets over the past few years with
very small volatilities, in addition to some isolating measures, the geopolitical tension in
some parts of the globe, and the political uncertainty in certain countries.

It can be concluded that the upward revision of the global outlook is the result of
advanced economies, expecting a growth of 2.3% and 2.2% for 2018 and 2019,
respectively. This revision reflects the expectation that the acceleration of demand and
investment will be maintained, which are the result of the favourable financial
conditions and the improvement in the confidence level.

In addition, as noted, it is expected that the tax reform in the United States is a
temporary boost in the growth of the United States, which was corrected by the IMF in
its latest growth forecasts published in January 2018 to 2.7% in 2018 and 2.5% in 2019,
as well as the growth of its trading partners, especially Mexico and Canada. Although, it
should be noted that even if this stimulus will boost growth in the coming years, the
forecasts then reduce for a few years from 2022.

With regards to the euro zone, the forecasts have also been revised upwards, particularly
those of Italy, Germany and Holland, thanks to the increase in the internal and external
debt. The forecasts are 2.2% for 2018 and 2% for 2019,

With regards to Spain, it should be noted that the growth expected by the end of 2017
will be far greater than the potential, standing at 3.1%. However, political uncertainty
due to the Catalonia situation and its effect on the demand and confidence have led to
the growth expectations for 2018 to be revised downwards, which have changed from
the initially estimated 2.5% to the current 2.4%, and to 2.1% in 2019, In this way, the
Spain forecast is the only one of the large economies that has been reduced for 2018.
However, it remains to be the economy with the highest growth rate among the major
European economies as a result of the reforms adopted in the past and the optimism of
the macro-economic situation in Europe.

The growth forecasts in other advanced economies have also been revised upwards,
especially as a result of the higher growth in the advanced economies of Asia. This is
due to the fact that these economies are more susceptible to changes in the investment
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and international trade prospects, as is the case with Japan, whose growth expectations
have been revised upwards for 2018 and 2019 and are set at 1.2% and 0.9%,
respectively.

The growth of the economies in emerging markets is expected to be 4.9% in 2018 and
5% in 2019, although there is a wide dispersion between the development of each
economy. The Asian region of emerging economies produces more than half of the
global growth, and will grow by around 6.5% in 2018 and 6.6% in 2019, at the same rate
as in 2017. It is expected that the growth jn India will increase to 7.4% in 2018 and to
7.8% in 2019, while in China the growth projections moderate its growth gradually and
it is estimated to be at 6.6% and 6.4% for 2018 and 2019, respectively.

The emerging economics of Europe enjoy relaxed financial conditions and an increase of
exports 1o the euro zone, which has ied to an upward revision of its growth, especially in
Poland and Turkey.

In Latin America, the forecasts show that the recovery will be strengthened, and the
growth has been revised upwards, noting that it will be at 1.9% in 2018 and 2.6% in
2019. This upward revision occurs as a result of the strengthening of Brazil's recovery,
of the new perspectives of Mexico as a result of the tax reform in the United States, and
the effect of the price increase of raw materials and the easing of financial conditions in
some raw material exporting countries. On the other hand, the Venezuelan economy has
been revised downward, which is loosely offset by upward revisions in the remaining
Latin American countries.

The revision of generalised growth caused the growth expectation of Russia to be
revised slightly upward to 1.7% in 2018 and 1.5% in 2019, which has led to an increase
in the growth expectations of the Commonwealth of Independent States, exceeding 2%
in both years.

Average period of pavment to suppticrs and Corporate Social Responsibility

To the effects of the provisions in article 262.1 of Royal Legislative Decree 1/2010, of 2
July, whereby the consolidated text of the Capital Companies Act is approved, the
information on the average period for payment to suppliers is contained in Note 36 to the
financial statements. In addition, and in conformity with recommendation 55 of the Code
of Good Governance of Listed Companies, it is hereby indicated that the aspects related
1o Corporate Social Responsibility are discussed in the Sustainability Report.

Annual Corporate Governance Report

The Annual Corporate Governance Report is available in its entirety on the web site of
the National Securities Market Commission (www.cnmyv.es) and on the Company’s web
page (W v a0iona.gs).
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In addition, the Annual Corporate Governance Report will be notified to the National
Securities Market Commission as a Material Event.
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For the purposes of Royal Decree 1362/2007, of 19 October (art. 8.1 b), the Directors of Acciona, S.A.

now subscribe the following declaration under their own responsibility:

To the best of their knowledge, the Annual Accounts drawn up in accordance with the applicable
accounting principles offer a true and fair view of the equity, financial situation and results of the
issuer, and the directors’ report includes a faithful analysis of the business trend and results, together
with the description of the main risks and uncertainties faced.

Formal Note added to state for the record that the Directors of ACCIONA, S.A, are aware of the
entire contents of the Annual Accounts and the Directors’ Report corresponding to the 2017 financial
year of Acciona, S.A., as submitted to the Board of Directors and duly prepared by the Board at
meeting held on 26 February 2018, printed on 117 sheets, all of them signed by the Secretary and with
the corporate Seal affixed and numbered as follows:

Statement of Recognized Income and Expenditure
Comprehensive Statement of Changes in Equity
Statement of Cash Flows .........cccvcverrerrversnin.

.......................................... Page 1
.......................................... Page 2
.......................................... Page 3
................................ Page 4
................................... Page 5
.......................................... Page 6
Page 7 to Page 77

Page 78 to Page 117

Therefore, in witness of their agreement herewith, this note is signed by all of the members of the

Board of Directors:

Mr. José Manuel Entrecanales Domecq

Chairman
[blank]

Mr. Javier Entrecanales Franco
Member
[blank]

Mr. Daniel Entrecanales Domecq
Member
[blank]

Mr. Jaime Castellanos Borrego
Member
[blank]

Mr. Fernando Rodés Vila
Member
[blank]

Mr. Juan Ignacio Entrecanales Franco

Vice-Chairman

[blank]

Mr. Juan Carlos Garay Ibargaray

Member
[blank]

Ms. Karen Christiana Figueres Olsen

Member
[blank]

Ms. Belén Villalonga Morenés

Member
[blank]

Mr. Jeronimo Marecos Gerard Rivero
Member
[blank]

Ms. Ana Sainz de Vicufia Bemberg

Member
[blank]
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